VIDEO CONFERENCE
RESCHEDULED MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

Tuesday, September 29, 2020
9:00 a.m.

DISTRICT HEADQUARTERS

7995 Bruns Road, Byron, California 94514-1625
Telephone: 209-835-0375 Facsimile: 209-835-2869



RUSSELL KAGEHIRO

Prpadet CHARLES TUSO
Division V i
Director
Davision V1
TIM MAGGIORIES
Vice President o :
Division 111 JEFF BROWN
Director
Division VI

LARRY ENOS, JR
Director

Division ] TOM PERKIRA

Dircetor
MARK MAGGIORI: Diavision VI
Director
Division 11 IACK ALVAREZ
ALK ALY Ll
AGENDA ) Director
FELIX MUSCO Division [X
Director 5 W
Division TV Rescheduled Video Conference Board Meeting
Tuesday, September 29, 2020
9:00 AM

Call-in Information:

Meeting ID: Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/|/8458078863
Meeting ID: 845 807 8863
Call In Number
1-669-900-6833,,8458078863#

NOTE: In accordance with the Governoy's Executive Order (N-29-20) and the declared State of Emergency as a result of the
threat of COVID-19, members of the Board of Directors and staff will be participating in this meeting remotely from multiple
locations. Members of the public are encouraged to use the call-in munber, which will allow them to fully participate in the
meeting without having to be present in person. If members of the public have any problems using the call-in number during
the meeting, please contact the District office at 209-835-0375.

Call to Order/Roll Call/Welcome Division 8 and 9 Directors.

Consider Corrections to the Agenda of Items, as authorized under Government Code Section 54950 et seq.
Opportunity for Public Comment — Any member of the public may address the Board concerning any matter
not on the agenda, but within the Board’s jurisdiction. Public comment is limited to no more than three

minutes per person.

CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and can be acted on in one consolidated
motion as recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at the
request of any person.
1. Approve meeting minute summary of August 25, 2020.
Approve minute summary of WSID meeting of July 22, 2020.
Accept Treasurer’s Report for the month of August 2020.
Approve Check Register for the month of August, 2020.
Approve WSID Check Register through August, 2020.
Accept WSID Treasurer’s Reports through August, 2020.
Ratify the Professional Services Agreement with V&A Consulting Engineers for corrosion engineering
services at Pumping Plant 3 South for an amount not to exceed $15,000.00.
8. Ratify the Professional Services Agreement with Farwest Corrosion Control Company for cathodic

N O e W N

protection system repairs for the District Headquarters hydrant system, Mariposa Energy pipeline and the
Canal 45 Radial Gate for an amount not to exceed $35,000.00.



DISC

9. Review and consider adopting Resolution 2020-9 authorizing execution of Repayment Contract 14-06-200-
758-LTR1-P for Central Valley Project water service, directing staff to file a Notice of Exemption pursuant
to the California Environmental Quality Act, directing staff to file a Validation Action and authorizing
actions in furtherance thereof.

10. Review and consider adopting Resolution 2020-10 authorizing execution of (WSID) Repayment Contract
7-07-20-W00MS-LTRI-P for Central Valley Project water service, directing staff to file a Notice of Exemption
pursuant to the California Envirorunental Quality Act, directing staff to file a Validation Action and
authorizing actions in furtherance thereof.

11. Review and consider “paying off” the Districts” financial obligation of approximately $484,000 under the
San Luis & Delta-Merlota Water Authority Delta Habitat Conservation & Conveyance Plan Activity
Agreement.

12. Consider authorizing the purchase of three pickup trucks with Tracy Ford for a cost not to exceed
$92,300.00

REPORTS
Directors

General Counsel
General Manager



AGENDA ITEM NO: 1

RUSSELL KAGEHIRO FELIX MUSCO
President [Director I
Division V Division [V

TIM MAGGIORIE
Vice President
I vasion 111

CHARLES TUSO
Director
Division VI

LARRY ENOS, [R

Y JEFE BROWN
I .)Ji‘ll:‘(.IUT Director
Divasion 1 Division VII

MARK MAGGIORE RICK GILMORE

et MINUTE SUMMARY g

Video Conference Board Meeting
Tuesday, August 25, 2020, 9:00 AM

Call-in Information:

Meeting ID: Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/i/8458078863
Meeting ID: 845 807 8863
Call In Number
1-669-900-6833..8458078863+#

The Board of Directors of the Byron-Bethany Trrigation District convened at approximately 9:00 a.m. This meeting
was held via teleconference in accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order (N-29-20) and the declared State of
Emergency as a result of the threat of COVID-19, with President Kagehiro presiding

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL 9:08 a.m.
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

M/S/C (T. Maggiore/Brown) Vote: (Ayes: Brown, Kagehiro, M. Maggiore, T. Maggiore, Tuso; Noes: 0; Absent:
Enos, Musco; Abstain: 0): Adopt the Agenda

CONSENT CALENDAR
1.  Approve meeting minute summary of July 21, 2020.
2. Accept Treasurer’s Reports for the months for July 2020.
3. Approve Check Registers for the month of Julu=y 2020.

M/S/C (T. Maggiore/Brown) Vote: (Ayes: Brown, Kagehiro, M. Maggiore, T. Maggiore, Tuso; Noes: 0; Absent:
Enos, Musco; Abstain: 0): Adopt Consent Calendar

DISCUSSION/ACTION CALENDAR
4. Consider authorizing the purchase of an upstream level control gate from Golden Harvest, Inc. for a cost not
to exceed $65,000.00 (Canal 45/Byron Hot Springs Project).

M/S/C (Brown/M. Maggiore) Vote: (Ayes: Brown, Kagehiro, M. Maggiore, T. Maggiore, Tuso; Noes: 0; Absent:
Enos, Musco; Abstain: 0): After reviewing the Independent Auditing firm’s financial report the motion to accept
the FYE 2019 Financial Reports.

5. Lawrence Annexation - requesting Board Authorization to begin the 30-day public review period for
the Proposed Negative Declaration, and distribution to affected agencies for their review.



Minute Summary August 25, 2020

M/S/C (T. Maggiore/Brown) Vote: (Ayes: Brown, Kagehiro, M. Maggiore, T. Maggiore, Tuso; Noes: 0;
Absent: Enos, Musco; Abstain: 0): After giving a report to the Board of Directors, the above vote was

taken,
ADJOURNMENT 9:26 a.m.
Submitted on August 30, 2020 Approved on September 29, 2020
Ms. Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary Mr. Russell Kagehiro, President
ATTENDANCE
Directors Present: Staff/Consultants/Present:
Russell Kagehiro Division V Rick Gilmore, General Manager
Mark Maggiote Division II Kelley Geyer, AGM/Director of Admin
Tim Maggiore Division Il Michael Vergara, 85D Law
Chatles Tuso Division VI Alyson Ackermen, 5SD Law
Jeff Brown Division VIl Nick Janes, J-COMM, Inc.
Directors Absent:
Larry Enos

Felix Musco



AGENDATTEMNO, <

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OF THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION
DISTRICT HELD JULY 22, 2020

These are the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors of The West Side
Irrigation District held July 22, 2020.

The roll was called and the following Directors were present: Alvarez, Mattos &
Pereira telephonically & Serpa at the close of Scheduled Business. Also present were
General Manager Rick Gilmore and Secretary Carol Petz,

The meeting was called io order by President Alvarez.

The Board retired to Closed Session to discuss one existing litigation case. At the
conclusion of Closed Session the Board returned to their seats. President Alvarez
reported that no action was taken.

The General Manager reminded the Directors of the Byron Bethany Irigation
District and The West Side Irrigation District Consolidation telephonic public hearing to
receive any protests against the consolidation. LAFCo has arranged a telephonic hearing
which will be held August 4, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. Providing a less than 50% protest rate for
the consolidation, the Certificate of Completion can be issued for final approval at the
August 13, 2020 LAFCo Meeting.

President Alvarez called for acceptance of the 2019 Annual Independent Audit.
Secretary Petz gave an overview of the Audit. A motion was made by Director Mattos
and seconded by Director Pereira to accept the 2019 Annual Independent Audit as
prepared by Schwartz Giannini Lantsberger & Adamson. Motion carried by the
following vote: Ayes: Alvarez, Mattos, and Pereira. Absent: Serpa.

The General Manager presented the Assignment of Central Valley Project Water
Contract Between The West Side Irrigation District and Byron-Bethany Irrigation
District. Once LAFCO files the Certificate of Completion, the Agreement will be
submitted to the Bureau of Reclamation and will request inclusion of WSID lands into
BBID. Following a brief discussion a motion was made by Director Pereira and
seconded by Director Mattos to accept the Agreement and authorize signing by the
President and Secretary. Motion carried by the following vote: Ayes: Alvarez, Mattos,
and Pereira. Absent: Serpa.

There were no reports.

The supplemental page of the agenda was reviewed.



The minutes from the meeting of the Board of Directors held June 17, 2020, were
presented for approval. Upon a motion made by Director Mattos, and seconded by
Director Serpa, the minutes were approved as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

Thereupon, the Treasurer’s Report for the month of June was presented for
approval along with the following vouchers. Upon a motion made by Director Mattos,
and seconded by Director Serpa, the Treasurer’s Report was approved and the vouchers
were approved as paid. Motion carried unanimously.

THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
VOUCHERS PRESENTED FOR APPROVAL

July 22, 2020

Voucher
No. Name Amount
17877 Alhambra 74.45
17878 AT&T 150.03
17879 Correia Garden Service 80.00
17880 Laurina Rocha 100.00
17881 Delta Water Users Assn. 650.00
17882 PG&E 143.35
17883 Staples Credit Plan 203.24
17884 Tracy Glass Shop 350.00
17885 QOak Valley Community Bank — State Deposit 259.11
17886 QOak Valley Community Bank - Federal Deposit 1,945.64
17887 VALIC 1,789.96
17888 ACWA/IPIA 21,174.43
17889 ARCO 1,441.31
17890 City of Tracy 165.55
17891 Comcast 116.82
17892 Cox Bros Tire Service 20.00
17893 Deere Credit, Inc. 33,999.03
17894 O’Reilly Automotive, Inc. 159.98
17895 Rexel of America, LLC 2,387.82
17896 Van's Ace Hardware 134.76
17897 Zenith Insurance Co. 1,100.00
17898 Delta Disposal Service 129.46
17899 Bureau of Reclamation 53,223.97



17900 AT&T Mobility 133.66

17901 Oak Valley Community Bank — State Deposit 310.88
17902 Oak Valley Community Bank — Federal Deposit 2,233.78
17903 PWRPA 41,703.32
17904 California Welding Supply 26.40
17905 Mechanical Analysis/Repair, Inc. 17,870.04
17906 Mechanics Bank Visa Card 767.63
17907 Alhambra 32.49
17908 AT&T 150.85
17909 Byron-Bethany ID 17,267.63
17910 Herum/Crabtree/Suntag 586.95
17911 PG&E 145.02
17912 Herum/Crabtree/Suntag — Delta Litigation 105.57
17913 Jack Alvarez 100.96
17914 Stephen R. Serpa 100.96
17915 Thomas Pereira 100.96
17916 Randy Mattos 100.96

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned to such
time as a meeting becomes necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Caro] Petz.
Secretary



BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
Treasurer's Monthly Report of Investments as of August 2020
Unaudited For Management Purposes Only

AGENDAITEMNO, —

Transfer Transfer Transfer Payroll Investment Investment | Investment| Investment
Account Account Account Account Acct Acct Acct Acct Petty Cash
Investment (1010A) (1010C) (1010D) (1011A) (1003) (1003A) (1017) (1017) (1080)
Comerica
Comerica Morgan
CVCB ovCeB oveB OoVCB LAIF JPMorgan Stanley
Institution Muni Muni Liquidity Plus | Payroll LAIF Construction Chase Bank On-Hand Total
Interest Rate 0.65% 0.500% 0.500% 0.500% 0.784% 0.784% 1.00% 2.70%
Matunty 04/30/29 03/08/21
Portfolio 1.61% 1.61% 3.21%
Beginning Balance $1,019,169.74 $816,943.21 $6,192,784.47 $0.00 $1,907,292.09 $4,913,000.00 $250,000.00 $250,000.00 $200.00 | $15,349,389.51
Activity $0.00 ($836,066.56) ($205,651.75)] ($88.342.45) $0.00 30.00 $0.00 $0.00 (572.00)| ($1.130.132.76)
Deposits $562.64 $822,188.43 $427 667.31 | $88,342 45 30.00 $0.00 30.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,338,760.82
CLOSING BALANCE  $1,019,732.38 $803,065.08 $ 6,414,800.03 $0.00 $1,907,292.09 $4,913,000.00 $250,000.00 $250,000.00  $128.00 $15,558,017.58
Account
RESERVES Code Total
The above investments include the following Reserves:
Insurance/SIR Reserve GL 3103 5105,000.00
SLDMWA - DHCCP Payment Reserve GL 3109 $1,000,000.00
Rolling Stock Replacement Reserve GL 3105 $100,000.00
Construction Eguipment Replacement Reserve GL 3106 $100,000.00
Groundwater Management Program GL 3107 $200,000.00
OME & GA Reserve GL 3110 $2,933,249.64
Mountain House Infrastructure Replacement GL 3123 $2,000,000.00
CVP Service Area Capital Impravement GL 3122 $50,000.00
PERS Contribution Cantingency GL 3117 $500,000.00
Capital Improvement Plan - Ten year CIP Plan GL 3102 $1,476,085.52
Legal Reserve GL 3100 $1,000,000.00
2017 Series Debt Payment Reserve GL 2850 $1,600,000.00
2018 Revenue Bonds Debt Payment Reserve GL 2850 $1,000,000.00

TOTAL RESERVES

$12,064,335.16

TOTAL CASH

$15,558,017.58

(Less) Designated Reserves

($12,064,335.16)

UNDESIGNATED RESERVES $3,493,682.42

* No investments were made pursuant to Subdivision (I) of Section 53601, 53601.1, and Subdivision (1) Section 53635 of the Government Code.
= Al investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of investment policy and Board instruction.
***  The amounts and maturities of the investments will enable the District to fund its cash flow requirements during the next six months (Gov't Code Sec. 53646 (b) (3)).

¥:\Accounting\Byron Bethany IRRIGATICN District\ 202002020 Treasurer's Report



PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

quifornia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, cPA

Home PMIA Home Contacts Time Deposits LAIF

Search

Home -»> PMIA ->> PMIA Ayveérage Monthly Effective Yields

f‘w ltq%
(=)

“neeen® POOLED MONEY INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields

Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec
1977|5.770 | 5.660 | 5.660 | 5.650 | 5.760 | 5.850 | 5.830 | 6.050 | 6.090 | 6.090 | 6.610 | 6,730
1978|6920 | 7050 | 7.140 ] 7.270 | 7.386 | 7.569 | 7.652 | 7.821 | 7.871 | 8.110 | 8.286 | B.769
1979|8.777 | 8.904 | 8,820 | 9.082 | 5.046 | 9.224 | 9.202 | 9.528 | ©.259 | 9.814 |10.223]10.218
1980(10.880] 11.251[11.480(11.4680|12.017|11.788]10.206] 9.870 | ©.945 |10.055|10.426|10.961
1981 |10.987|11.686]|11.130]11.475|12.179|11.442|12 346 |12 844] 12.059]|12.397|11.887|11.484
1982[11.683]12.044|11.835]11,773|12.270]11.994]12.235]11.909§ 11.151]11.111]10.704] 10,401
1983[10.251| 9.887 | 9.688 | 9.868 | 9.527 | 9.600 | 9.879 |10.076]10.202|10.182|10.184]10.227
1984 [10.312}10.280{10.382]10.594|10.843|11.119]11.355]|11.557] 11.597]|11.681]11.474]11.024
1985|10.579]10.289{10.118]10.025|10.180| 9.743 | 9.656 | 9.417 | 5.572 | 9.482 | 9.488 | .37
1886|9252 | 9.090 | 6.958 | 8.621 | 8.369 | 8.225 | 6.141 | 7.844 | 7.512 ]| 7.588 | 7.432 | 7.439
1987|7.365| 7.157 | 7.205 | 7.044 | 7.294 | 7.289 | 7.464 | 7.562 | 7.712| 7.825 | 8.121 ] 8.071
1988|8.078 | B.0S0 | 7.945 | 7.840 | 7.815 | 7.920 | 8,089 | 8.245 | 8.341 | B.397 | B.467 | 8.563
1989|8698 | 8770 | 8,670 | 8.982 | 9.227 | 9.204 | 9.056 | 8.833| 8.801 | B.771| 8.685 | B.645
41990 8.571 | 8,538 | 8.506 | 8.497 | B.531 | 8.538 | 8.517 | 8.382 | 8.333 | 8.321 | 8.269 | 8.279
1991)8.164 | Bo02 | 7.775| 7.666 | 7.374 | 7.169 | 7.098 | 7.072 | 6.859 | 6.718 | 8.581 | 6.318
1992]6.122 | 5863 | 5.680 | 5,692 | 5.379 | 5.323 | 5.235 | 4.958 | 4.760 | 4.730 | 4.659 | 4.647
1993|4678 | 4649 | 4624 | 4605 | 4.427 | 4.554 | 4.438 | 4.472 | 4.430 ] 4.380 | 4.365 | 4.384
1994]| 4.359| 4176 | 4248 | 4333 | 4 434 | 4623 | 4823 | 4989 | 5106 | 5243 | 5.380 | 5.528
1995|5612 | 5779 | 5.934 | 5.960 | 6.008 | 5997 | 5972 | 5910 | 5832 | 5784 | 5,805 | 5.748
1996|5608 | 5643 | 5.557 | 5.538 | 5.502 | 5.548 | 5.587 | 5.566 | 5.601 | 5.601 | 5.599 | 5.574
1997|5.5083 | 5.575| 5.580 | 5,612 | 5634 | 5.667 | 5.679 | 5.690 | 5.707 | 5.705 | 5.715 | 5.744
1998 5.742 | 5.720 | 5680 | 5672 | 5673 | 5.671 | 5.652 | 5.652 | 5.639 | 5.557 | 5492 | 5.374
1999] 5.265]| 5210 5.136 | 5.119 | 5.086 | 5.0895 | 5.178 | 5.225 | 5.274 | 5.391 | 5.484 | 5.639
2000] 5.760 | 5824 | 5.851 | 6.014 | 6.190 | 5349 | 6.443 | 6.505 | 6.502 | 6.517 | 6.538 | 6.535
2001]|6.372| 6169 | 5.976 | 5.760 | 5.328 | 4.958 | 4.635 | 4,502 | 4.288 | 3.785 | 3.526 | 3.261
2002|3068 | 2967 | 2861 | 2.845 | 2.740 | 2687 | 2.714 | 2.594 | 2.604 | 2.487 | 2.301 | 2.201
2003] 2.103| 1.945| 1.904 | 1.858 | 1.768 | 1.697 | 1.653 | 1632 | 1.635| 1.596 | 1.572 | 1.545
2004|1528 | 1440 | 1.474 | 1.445 | 1.426 | 1460 | 1.604 | 1672 1.771 | 1.890| 2.003 | 2.134
2005| 2.264 | 2.368 | 2.542 | 2.724 | 2.856 | 2.967 | 3.083 | 3.179 | 3.324 | 3.458 | 3636 | 3.808
2006| 2.955 | 4.043 | 4142 | 4.305 | 4.563 | 4.700 | 4.849 | 4.946 | 5.023 | 5098 | 5125 5.129
2007|5.156 | 5181 | 5214 | 5.222 | 5248 | 5250 | 5.2556 | 5.253 | 5.231 | 5137 | 4.862 | 4.801
2008]| 4.620] 4.161| 3.777 | 3.400 | 3.072 | 2.894 | 2.787 | 2.779| 2.774 | 2.709 | 2.568 | 2.353
2009]| 2046|1889 1822 | 1.607 | 1.530 ] 1.377 | 1.035 | 0.925| 0.750 | 0.646 | 0.611 | D.569
2010|0558 | 0577 | 0.547 | 0.588 | 0.560 | 0.528 | 0.531 | 0.513 | 0.500 | 0.480 | 0.454 | 0.462
2011|0538 | 0512 | 0.500 | 0.588 | 0.413 | 0448 | 0.381 | 0D.408 | 0.378 | 0.385 | 0.401 | 0.382
2012|0385 0,389 | 0.283 | 0,367 | 0.363 | 0.258 | 0.363 | 0.377 | 0.348 | 0.340 | 0.324 | 0.326
2013|0300 | 0286 | 0.285 | 0.264 | 0.245 | 0.244 | 0.267 | 0.271 | 0.257 | D.266 | 0.263 | 0.264
2014|0244 | 0236 | 02368 | 0.233 | 0,228 | 0.228 | 0.244 | 0.260 | 0.246 | D.261 | 0.261 | 0.2687
2015|0262 | 0.266 | 0.278 | 0.283 | 0.280 | 0.289 | 0.320 | 0.330 | 0.337 | 0.357 | 0.374 | D.400
2016|0446 04567 | 0506 | 0.525 | 0.552 | 0.576 | 0.588 | 0.614 | 0.634 | 0.654 | 0.678 | 0.719
2017/ 0.751 | 0,777 | 0.821 | 0.884 | 0.925 | 0.678 | 1.051 | 1.084] 1.111 ] 1.143 | 1.172 | 1.238
2018|1350 1412 | 1.524 | 1.661 | 1.755 | 1.854 | 1.844 | 1.998 | 2,053 | 2144 | 2.208 | 2.291
2019|2355 | 2302 | 2436 | 2.445 | 2.449 | 2.428 | 2379 | 2.341] 2.280] 2.190 | 2.103 | 2.043
2020]1.967 | 1.912| 1.787 | 1.648 | 1,363 | 1.217 | 0.920 | 0.764

Heme | OpenGovernment | Careers

Page 1 of 2

| Contazt | Cal

Home | Comments | Disclosure Notice | Privacy Notice | Accessibility Statement | Unclaimed Property | Site Map | Download Adobe Reader

file:///C:/Users/IT/Desktop/PMIA%20Average%20Monthly%20Effective%20Yields.htm 09/ 1/2020



Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

Revenues

CVPSA Supplemental Water Sales
Construction Water

Supplemental Water Option
Mountain House Water

BOR AG

BOR M/

CVPIA Restoration (M&1)
CVPIA Restoration (Ag)
SLDMWA O&M

Byron Ag Service Area

Byron Mé&1 Service Area

Bethany Ag Service Area

Bethany M&I Service Area (MEP)
USBR Trinity PUD Assessment
Gas Tax Refund

Administration Costs - Fees
Annexation Fees

Interest on Bank Accounts
Stand-by Revenue

CVPSA Ag O&M Charge

CVPSA M & 1 O&M Charge
CVPSA M/I with AG Alloc Charge
Alameda Property Tax Revenue
Contra Costa Property Tax Rev
San Joaquin 46701 Zn2 Prop Tax
Reimburse SLDMWA Assess
Supplemental Water CVPSA
PG&E Power(CVPSA)Reimbursed
O&M Labor Recovery

Equipment Use Recovery

O & M Materials Recovery
Engineering Recovety

Admin Labor Recovery

JPIA Refunds

Reimburse Director’s Benefit
Legal Cost Recovery

Rental Unit

Agricultural Leases

Other Income

Total Revenues

Cost of Sales
Total Cost of Sales

Income Statement
Compared with Budget
For the Eight Months Ending August 31, 2020
Current Month Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Actual Budget
3 05,957.50 § 227,907.50 $ 300,000.00
2,954.00 18,638.00 3,500.00
0.00 597,631.98 0.00
87,149.53 483,939.96 725,000.00
85,254.21 361,233.98 0.00
1,702.10 11,625.94 0.00
1,287.38 0,781.25 0.00
9,028.35 55,327.02 0.00
20,014.62 92,834.54 0.00
112,021.65 446 489.55 400,000.00
5,006.50 5,006.50 15,000.00
49,501.40 188,284.20 190,000.00
2,064.41 14,925.74 22.,000.00
264.63 1,633.68 0.00
0.00 1,580.55 1,580.55
25.00 375.00 1,800.00
0.00 63,918.00 0.00
3,265.31 130,107.60 300,000.00
0.00 80,958.63 80,718.64
0.00 20,157.56 20,000.00
0.00 161,397.96 167,000.00
0.00 12,525.27 10,000.00
17,583.36 165,944.73 330,000.00
0.00 167,595.90 350,000.00
1,629.02 1,972,575.96 3,750,000.00
22,140.46 102,121.60 0.00
0.00 2.167.82 0.00
16,871.63 60,764.13 75,000.00
7,657.00 117,105.00 50,000.00
0.00 2,975.00 0.00
16,762.66 100,447.58 30,000.00
0.00 60,739.75 7.500.00
6,366.67 43.673.36 62,000.00
0.00 45,953.50 0.00
13,286.06 52,649.24 78,726.36
0.00 51,829.28 0.00
560.00 4,760.00 7,280.00
0.00 7,125.00 4,402.50
1,399.22 1,437.27 (.00
579,752.67 5,946,145.53 6,981,508.05
0.00 .00 0.00
579,152.67 5,946,145.53 6,981,508.05

Gross Profit




Expenses

BOR AG

BOR M/1

CVPSA Restoration (M&I)
CVPSA Restoration (Ag)
SLDMWA O&M

USBR Trinity PUD Assess REIMB
O&M Auto & General Liability
Transformer Maintenance
Maintenance Trans. Lines/Poles
Pump Control Panels

Sub-Station

SLDMWA Membership Assessment
ElectricalEngineering Services
SWRCB User Fee (CVPSA)
WSID Wheeling Fee
Supplemental Water Purchase
Pump/Motor Maintenance
Pump/Motor Maintenance (CVPSA)
Pump/Motor Maintenance (RWSALI)
Pump/Motor Lube
SCADA/Telemetry-Auto Control
Motor Control Maintenance
Motor Control Maint. (CVPSA)
Motor Control Maint. (RWSAT1)
PG&E Power

PG&E Power(CVPSA)
Emergency Generators

WAPA Power

WAPA Restoration

O&M Employee Relations
WWTF Chief Operator

O&M Labor Full Time

0&M Other Compensation

O&M Health Insurance

O&M Dental Insurance

O&M Vision Insurance

O&M Retirement (PERS)

O&M Worker's Comp

0&M Medicare

Q&M Social Security

0O&M Life Insurance

O&M Longevity

O&M Pesticide

0&M Overtime

O&M - Employee Assist Program
Canal Maintenance

Station Maintenance
Laterals/Structures
Laterals/Structures(CVPSA)
Material/Hardware/Fasteners

Sub laterals/Pipelines

Canal Gate Maintenance

Canal Gate Maintenance (CYPSA)
Surface Drains

19,684.70
1,272.62
1,265.56

0.00
0.00
6.96
1,684.05
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
30,647.41
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
(354.00)
0.00
0.00
0.0
4,743.03
12,677.51
0.00
5,926.50
0.00
0.00
2,080.00

39,402.16
1,947.05
8,928.61

280.80
167.04
1,967.83
0.00
681.90
2,915.65
119.90
323.10
218.18
3,056.25
501.48
0.00
156.94
0.00
0.00
10,452.81
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

524,745.46
9,128.09
9,600.80

44,207.32
84,857.68
698.16
13,472.40
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
72,728.22
0.00

0.00
309.00
57,703.08
2,107.73
5,968.07
0.00

0.00
11,813.53
0.00

0.00

0.00
33,613.62

130,544.10

3,885.12
61,737.87
15,824.33

183.81
18,135.00
311,678.05
43,816.56
76,472.25

2,464.80

1,466.24
29,427.21
25,939.89

5,697.56
24,361.47

1,053.60

2,607.87

1,418.16
15,272.25

683.80
0.00
1,846.65
0.00

0.00
94,914.66
2,096.91
4,066.10
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
20,526.45
3,0600.00
20,000.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
80,000.00
3,000.00
25,000.00
309.00
60,000.00
10,000.00
2,500.00
2,500.00
1,500.00
35,000.00
5,000.00
2,500.00
2,500.00
70,000.00
20,000.00
10,000.00
180,000.00
45,000.00
1,000.00
36,000.00
607,601.49
85,457.17
164,784.72
6,847.68
2,227.20
60,000.00
40,000.00
9,422.85
40,290.79
1,630.80
4,150.00
600.00
50,000.00
1,308.40
10,000.00
8,000.00
10,000.00
5,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
8,000.00
2,000.00
9,000.00



Tile Drains

Canal Crossings
Communications

Small Tools & Equipment
Building Maintenance
Grounds Maintenance

Fire System

Security System

HVAC Service Supplies
Janitorial Services/Supply
Pest Management
Uniforms/Clothing Allowance
Shop Suppties

Welding Shop & Supplies
Metet Shop

Vehicle Maintenance
Equipment Maint,
Fuel/Lube/Qil/Tires
MileageReimbursement
Waste Qit Disposal

Canal Fences

Rodent Control

Right of Way Weed Control
Weed Burning

Aquatic Weed Control
Road Maint, & Right of Way
Water Quality Testing

Flow Meter Repairs

Flow Meter Repairs(CVPSA)
Safety Supplies/Equipment
Worker Safety Training
Physical Exams
Engineering

GSA Implementation

O&M Continuing Education
Permits/Licenses(CVPSA)
Propane Facilities
Refuse/Disposal

Bottled Water Service
(General Manager

Admin Support Staff
Admin Part Time

Ditector of Business Admin
Admin Other Compensation
Admin Health Insurance
Admin Dental Insurance
Admin Vision Insurance
Admin Retirement (PERS)
Admin Worker's Comp
Admin Social Security
Admin Medicare

Admin Life Insurance
Admin Longevity

Admin Pesticide

Admin Employee Refations

0.00
0.00
524,07
0.60
0.00
1,370.00
0.60
549.63
0.00
205.66
76.00
380.48
174.42
0.0
0.00
318.07
245.78
8,383.63
71.47
0.0
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
861.90
0.00
0.00
0.00
1,865.25
6,635.97
0.00
206.40
8,230.90
35,782.43
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
277.38
20,765.44
6,937.50
0.00
9,800.30
765.00
3,977.89
124.80
74.24
1,890.67
0.00
1,092.34
559.58
106.16
230.78
92.30
0.00

0.00

0.00
13,056.78
5,113.13
1,194.45
10,655.83
2,628.36
2,929.56
3,980.34
1,836.14
768.00
4,753.24
1,594.56
2,729.24
0.00
10,331.74
7,553.34
63,714.79
708.61
555.00
0.00
500.34
1,600.64
629.39
89,124.92
0.00

0.00

0.00
1,865.25
14,806.11
888.98
695.05
102,415.05
389.81
340.00
0.00
2,399.07
3,091.69
2,517.55
176,506.23
54,223.50
3,287.85
83,302.55
39,405.89
35,428.40
1,123.20
668.16
28,273.24
3,234.89
18,018.15
5,187.71
955.44
1,869.31
784.55
161.81

5,000.00
2,000.00
20,000.00
10,000.00
5,000.00
17,000.00
9,000.00
6,500.00
7,000.00
20,000.00
1,800.00
8,500.00
6,500.00
4,000.00
1,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00
90,000.00
500.00
500.00
2,500.00
2,000.00
40,000.00
2,000.00
150,000.00
10,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00
1,000.00
11,000.00
4,500.00
3,000.00
215,000.00
70,000.00
3,500.00
2,000.00
2,500.00
5,000.00
4,000.00
269,950.64
113,422.40
37.440.00
127,403.90
55,843.61
44,303.88
1,497.60
890.88
58,030.50
3,000.00
31,922.37
7,465.72
1,273.92
2,900.00
1,200.00
400.00



State Unemployment Insurance
FUTA Tax '
Office Supplies

Payroll Services

Postage

Printing, Forms, Maps, Etc
Printing (Legal)

DHQ Telephone

Bank Fees

Trustee Fees

Dir -Employee Assist Program

Admin-Employee Assist Program
Admin Auto & Liability Program

Property Insurance

Business Systems Services
Pension Fund - 401A

OPEB

Retiree’s Health Insurance
State Emp. Training Tax
Director's Fees/ Expenses
Director's Benefits

District Officials’

Legal Services

CVPSA - Legal
Legal-Development Services
Auditing

Actuarial Services

Election

Record Retention

Rental Unit

Permits, Dues & Subscriptions
Admin. Continuing Education
Recording Fees

Interest Expense
Hardware/Software

Public Outreach

Website

State/Federal Representation
HR Consulting
Miscellaneous Expense

Total Expenses

Net Income

0.00 2,248.59 4,000.00
Q.00 613.25 800.00
464.35 3,602.36 5,000.00
349.24 325427 5,500.00
0.00 700.00 1,300.00
0.00 268.43 3,000.00
0.00 0.00 800.00
852.26 6,784.84 8,000.00
0.00 39.00 1,000.00
0.00 0.00 1,500.00
17.99 163.45 215.88
10.28 93.40 1,123.36
1,122.70 3,981.60 13,677.30
2,495.97 17,998.32 26,012.76
633.54 5,103.81 11,600.00
0.00 11,550.00 19,800.00

0.00 63,601.00 0.00
2,631.90 26,208.20 43,418.16
0.00 102.22 150.00
0.00 2,931.09 15,000.00
13,460.62 121,145.58 161,527.44
0.00 7,109.10 45,000.00
17,156.88 307,418.50 770,000.00
10,081.98 63,859.19 70,000.00
0.00 130,959.56 0.00
15,713.40 15,713.40 14,000.00
0.00 1,900.00 4,000.00

0.00 0.00 2,500.00
0.00 0.00 250.00
30.02 30.02 1,000.00
287.00 22,762.09 50,000.00
0.00 0.00 1,0600.00
22,00 138.00 500.00
0.00 100,348.50 200,697.00
675.04 7.234.48 15,000.00
4,900.00 39,200.00 61,800.00
2,100.00 16,800.00 25,400.00
0.00 63,171.18 150,000.00

0.00 24,000.60 48,000.00
0.00 4,863.40 (.00
336,335,70 3,635,642.09 5,120,373.87
$ 24341697 §  2,310,503.44 $ 1,861,134.18




Current Assets
Cash-L.A.LF. State Treasurer
Cash-L.A.LF. Construction
CVCB Muni
OVCB Muni
Liquidity Plus
Comerica
Petty Cash
Accts Receivable
Accts Receivable - Other
Prepaid Insurance

Total Cumrent Assets

Property and Equipment
Allowance for Depreciation
District Lands
General Properties
CVPSA Distribution System
Pumping Plant
Telemetry/SCADA
Office Equipment
Automotive Equipment
General Tools & Equipment
PL 934 Project
Mariposa Energy Plant
Work in Progress

Total Property and Equipment
Other Assets
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Health Insurance Payable
Deferred Comp - Payable
Accrued Vacation
Dental Insurance Payable
Developer Security Deposit
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Inflows
Deferred Outflows
Deferred Qutflows Contribution
Net OPEB Liability/Asset
Deferred Qutflows (OPEB)

Total Current Liabilities

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

Balance Sheet
August 31, 2020

ASSETS

$ 1,907,292.09
4,913,000.00
1,019,732.38
799,897.74
6,414,800.03
481,980.00

128.00

132,748.18

52,385.52

25,844.51

(15,822,694.16)
1,837,509.52
17,769,887.28
792,082.88
15,033,122.70
261,167.19
144,242.93
1,006,175.81
1,505,905.68
2,166,723.17
4,716,153.80
5,540,987.51

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

$ 108,410.61
(368.54)
9,075.00
75,826.60
361.99
45,000.00
597,819.00
109,085.00
{159,428.00)
(56,329.00)
(213,572.00)
113,913.00

15,747,808.45

34,951,264.31

0.00

50,699,072.76

Unaudited - For Management Purposes Only

629,793.66



Long-Term Liabilities

2018 Enterprise Revenue Bond
2017 Revenue Refi Bond
Long Term Burean Debt

Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Capital
Retained Earnings
Legal Reserve
10 Year CIP Reserve
Insurance/SIR Reserve
Rolling Stock Replacement Res.
Construction Equipment Replace
Groundwater Mgmt Program Res
SLDMWA-DHCCP Reserve
Op & Maint, Eng. & Gen. Admin.
PERS Contribution Contingency
CVPSA Capital Improve Reserve
RWSAlnfrastructure Replacement
2017 Seties Debt Payment Reser

2018 Revenue Beonds Debt Pmt Re

Net Income
Total Capital

Total Liabilities & Capital

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Balance Sheet
August 31, 2020

4,755,000.00
1,944,000.00
2,542,989.00

26,452,451.50
1,000,000.00
1,476,085.52
105,000.00
100,000.00
100,000.00
200,000.00
1,000,000.00
2,933,249.64
500,000.00
50,000.00
2,000,000.00
1,600,000.00
1,000,000.00
2,310,503.44

$

Unawdited - For Management Purpaoses Only

9,241,989.00

9,871,782.66

40,827,290.10

50,699,072.76




92120 at 12:59:14.86

Fifter Criteria includes: Report is printed in Detail Foamat,

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Account Reconciliation
As of Aug 31, 2020
1010A - CVCB Muni
Bank Statement Date: August 31, 2020

i

Page: 1

Beginning GL Balance
Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements
Add (Less) Other

Ending GL Balance
Ending Bank Balance

Add back deposits in transit
Total deposits in transit
(Less) outstanding checks
Total outstanding checks
Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconcited difference
Ending GL Balance

1,019,169.74

562.64
1,018,732.38
1,016,732.38

0.00
1,019,732.38



Statement of Account

XX
BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT 8-31-20 Page 1
7995 BRUNS RD
BYRON CA 94514-1625 Accoln+ Number

LODI OFFICE
(559)298-1775 24-Hour BankLine 559} 297-6638
Out of Local area (866) 455-6638

Introducing Digital Wallet
You can now connect your Central Valley Community Bank
Personal, Business, and Health Savings Account Debit Cards
to Apple Pay, Google Pay or Samsung Pa¥ and use your smartphone to make
purchases. Learn more about Digital Wallet at www.cvcb.com/digital-wallet

ACCOUNT NUMBER SPECIAL MONEY MARKET CHECKING
ACCOUNT SUMMARY
Previous Balance 7-31-20 1,019,169.74
+ Deposits/Credits .00
- Checks/Debits .00
- Service Charge .00
+ Interest Pai 562.64
Current Balance 8-31-20 1,019,732.38
CREDIT ACTIVITY AND OTHER DEBITS
Date Tracer Description Amount
8-31 899 INTEREST PAYMENT 562.64
INTEREST SUMMARY
Interest Earned From 8/01/20 Through 8/31/20
Da¥5 in Statement Period 31
Interest Earned 562.64
Annual Percentage Yield Earned .65 %
Interest Paid this Year B.513.63
Interest Withheld this Year .00
* - - - - = - - - -0VERDRAFT CHARGES/REFUNDS SUMMARY - - - - - - - - *
This Cycle YTD
Total returned item fees .00 .00
Total overdraft fees .00 .00
Total fees charged .00 .00
This Cycle YTD
Refund of returned check fees .00 .00
Refund of paid check fees .00 .00
Total fees refunded .00 .00
DAILY BALANCE
Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance
7=31 1019169.74 8-31 1019732 .38

Continued on Next Page

7100 N. Financial Drive, Suite 101, Fresno, CA 93720 - (800) 298-1775 = cvcb.com



941120 at 16:30:15.62

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

Account Reconciliation
As of Aug 31, 2020
1010C - OVCE Muni

Bank Statement Date: August 31, 2020

Filter Critesia mciudes: Report is printed in Detall Format,

Page: 1

Beginning GL Balance

Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursemenls

Add (Less) Other

Ending GL Balance

Ending Bank Balance

Add back deposits in transit

Total deposits in transit

{Less) outstanding checks
Jul 1, 2020
Aug 11, 2020
Aug 17, 2020
Aug 18, 2020

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled differenca

Ending GL Balance

770,891.04
611,045.20
{270,624.65)
(311,513.34)
799,897.74
803,085.08

42668 {800.34)
42789 (405.00)
42811 (192,

42815 (1.870.00)

(3,167.34)

0.00
__ 7980774



QAK VALLEY COMMUNITY BANK
TRACY

1034 NORTH CENTRAL AVE.
TRACY CA 95376
(209)834-3340

BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT ACCOUNT NUMBER: "
MUNI ACCOUNT STATEMENT DATE: 8/31/20
7985 BRUNS ROAD PAGE: 1 OF 31
BYRON CA 84514-1625
WEB SITE: www, oveh, com
www.escbhbank.com
TOLL FREE NUMBER: 866-844-~-7500
RCONOMY CHECKING-PUBLIC BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT Acct
MUNI ACCOUNT
Beginning Balance 8/01/20 Bl6,943.21
Deposits / Misc Credits 20 822,188.43
Withdrawals / Misc Debits a3 B36,066.56
*% Ending Balance 8/31/20 BO3,065.08 *+
Service Charge .00
Enclosures 71
-------------- DEPOSITS/CREDITS T
Date Depcgits Withdrawals  Activity Description
8/04 435.47 Trngfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0095
g/0% 4,452 .60 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 009%
8/08 31,327.28 Trnegfr from Checking Ac¢ct Ending in 0095
g/07 16,481.21 Trngfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0095
8/10 84,593.68 DEPOSIT
8/10 522.00 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0095
8/12 44,131.47 DEPOSIT
8/12 144,71 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0035 :
8/14 1,453.14 Trnasfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0095
8/17 11,212.85 : Ternsfr £rom Checking Acct Ending in 0095
8/18 36,218.66 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0085
8/19 139,337.98 DEPOSIT
8/19 2,526.50 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0085
8/21 40,013.17 Trngfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0095
8/24 145,214 .99 DEPOSIT
8/24 18,684.14 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0095
8/26 17,754.48 } Trhsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0055
8/27 2,185.70 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 009S
8/31 203,258.56 DEPOSIT

8/31 22,229.84 Trasfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0085



912120 at 11:41:45.02

Filar Criteria includes: Reportia printed in Detall Fommat,

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Account Reconciliation
As of Aug 31, 2020
41010D - Liquidity Plus
Bank Statement Date: August 31, 2020

Page: 1

Beginning GL Balance
Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements
Add (Less) Other

Ending GL Balance

Erding Bank Balance

Add back deposits in transit
Total deposits in transit
(Less) outstanding checks
Total outstanding checks
Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference
Ending GL Balance

8,192,784.47

222,015.58
6,414,800.03
6,414,6800.03

0.00
6,414,600.03



. -9

OAK VALLEY COMMUNITY BANK
TRACY

1034 NORTH CENTRAL AVE.
TRACY CA 95376
(209)834-3340

BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT ACCOUNT NUMBER:
7995 BRUNS ROAD STATEMENT DATE: a/31/20
BYRON CA 94514-1625 PAGE: 1 OF 2
L]
WEB SITE: www.ovch. com
www.escbank. com
TOLL FREE NUMBER: 866-844-7500
OAK TREE CHECKING-PUBLIC " BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT Acct
Beginning Balance 8/01/20 6,192,784.47
Deposits / Misc Credits [ 427,667 .31
Withdrawals / Misc Debits 15 205,651.75
*% Ending Balance 8/31/20 6,414,800.403 *=*
Sexrvice Charge .00
Interest Paid Thru 8/31/20 2,702.67
Interest Paid Year To Date 33,322.90
Minimum Balance 6,318,264
-------------- DEPOSITS/CREDITS I
Date Deposits Withdrawaly Aetivity Description
8/03 178,698.81 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/11 83,088.68 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0060
B8/13 44,130.47 Trnefr from Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/20 11,353.45 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/25 107,693.23 Trnsfr from Checking Acet Ending in 0060
8/31 2,702.67 INTEREST BARNED
%
-------------- OTHER WITHDRAWALS/DEBITS - = === - - .= e - ==
Date Deposits Withdrawale Activity Description
8/04 435.47 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/05 4,452.60 Trnafr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/06 31,327.28 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/07 16,481.21 Triaefr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/10 522.00 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/12 144.71 Trnefr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/14 : -1,453.14 - - Trhaefr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/17 11,212.85 Trnefr ta Checking Acct Ending in 0060
B/18 36,218.66 Trnefr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/19 2,526.50 Trnefr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/21 40,013.17 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in Q60

8/24 18,684,14 Trmefr to Checking Acct Ending in 0060



8/124/20 at 10:49:22.28

Account Reconciliation
As of Aug 31, 2020
1011A - OVCB Payroll

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

Bank Statement Date: August 31, 2020

Fiter Criteria incluedas: Report is printed in Datail Format.

Page: 1

Beginning GL Balance
Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements
Add (Less) Other

Ending GL Balance

Ending Bank Balance

Add back deposits in transit
Total deposits in transit
{Less) cutstanding checks
Total outsianding checks
Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference
Ending GL Balance

0.00



OAK VALLEY COMMUNITY BANK
TRACY

1034 NORTH CENTRAL AVE.
TRACY CA 25376
(209)834-3340

BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT ACCOUNT NUMBER:
PAYROLL ACCOUNT STATEMENRT DATE: B/31/20
7955 BRUNS ROAD PAGE: 1 OF 2
RYRON CA 94514-1625
WER SITE: www.ovch. com
www . escbank. com
TOLL FREE NUMBER: §66-844-7500
BCONOMY CHECKIRG-PFUBLIC BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT Acct
. PAYROLL ACCOUNT
Beginning Palance a/01/20 .00
Deposits / Misc Credits 5 B8, 342.45
Withdrawala / Misc Debits ) 88,342.45
#+ BEnding Balance 8/31/20 .00 xx
Service Charge .00 ]
-------------- DEPOSITS/CREDITS - - =k - - - - - - == -
Date Deposita Withdrawals Activity Description
a/06 27,777.05 Tensfy from Checking Acct Ending in 0060
a/07 14,366.346 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in Q060
8/14 5§9.54 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0060
a/20 30,661.67 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0060
8/21 1%,477.82 Trnsfr from Checking Acct BEnding in 0060
-------------- OTHER WITHDRAWALS/DEBITS S L R
Date Deposits Withdrawals Activity Description
8/06 290.29 PAYCHEX CGS/GARNISH
8/06 27,486.76 PAYCHEX/PAYROLL
B/07 140.35 PAYCHEX EIB/INVQOICE
8/07 14,226.01 PAYCHEX TPS/TAXES
B/14 59.54 PAYCHEX-HRS/HRS PMT
8/20 290.29 PAYCHEX CGS/GARNISH
8/20 30,371.38 PAYCHEX/PAYROLL
B/21 149.35 PAYCHEX EIB/INVOICE
8/21 15,328.48 PAYCHEX TPS/TAXES
-------------- DAILY BALANCE SUMMARY R
Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance

g8/o0e .00 8/07 -00 B8/14 .00



7118120 at 13:36:11.87

Fitar Catoria includes; Repart ig printed in Qatall Formet.

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Account Reconciliation
As of Aug 31, 2020
1003 - Cash-L.A.l.F. State Treasurer
Bank Statement Date: August 31, 2020

Page: 1

Beginning GL Balance
Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements
Add (Less) Other

Ending GL Balance
Ending Bank Balance

Add back deposits in transit
Total deposits in transit
(Less) cutstanding checks
Total outstanding checks
Add (Less) Other

Total ather

Unrecanciled difference

Ending GL Balance

1,807,292.09

1,807,262.09
1,807,292.09

0.00
1.807,262.09




711620 at 13:50:24.84 Page: 1
Byron-Bethany irrigation District
Account Reconciliation
As of Aug 31, 2020
1003A - Cash-l..A.l.F. Construction

Bank Statement Date: August 31, 2020
Fitter Criteria inchwdies: Raport is printed in Datell Format.

Beginning GL Balance 4,913,000.00
Add: Cash Receipts
Less: Cash Disbursements

Add (Less) Other
Ending GL Batance 4,913,000.00
Ending Bank Balance 4,913,000.00

Add back deposits in fransit

Total deposits in transit

{Less) outstanding checks

Total outstanding checks

Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference 0.00

Ending GL Balance 4,913,000.00 .




Untitled Page

file:///C:/Users/I'T/Desktop/Untitled%20Page.html

BETTY T. YEE

California State Controller

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

Agency Name BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DIST

Account Number

As of 07/15/2020, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 06/30/2020.

Earnings Ratio | .00003710668261400
Interest Rate 1.36%
Dollar Day Total $ 618,082,952.20
Quarter End Principal Balance $ 6,797,357.08
Quarterly Interest Earned $ 22,935.01

Page 1 of 1

07/16/2020



TM6120 at 13:67:02.58

Filter Criteria includes: Reporl is prinled in Delall Fonmat.

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Account Reconciliation
As of Aug 31, 2020
1017 - Comerica
Bank Statement Date: August 31, 2020

Page: 1

Beginning GL Balance
Add: Cash Recsipts

Less: Cash Disbursements
Add (Less) Other

Ending GL Balance

Ending Bank Balance

Add back deposils in transit
Total deposits in transit
(Less) outstanding checks
Total outstanding checks
Add (Less) Other

Total other

Unreconciled difference
Ending GL Balance

481,880.00

481,980.00

481,980.00

0.00
481,880.00



e ) Comerica Seeurilies, Inc.
\ ‘Comerica Securities, Inc. 411 West Latayette

-

Samisan -~ NemberURNSPC  MalColedtst - 8 - . Brokerage
Phone: 800.232.6563- o ) . i
s o Ackdla(SEdien)
JUL 082020
¥ 0213654 02 AV 0.386 02 TR 01076 X113PD19 000000
April 1,2020 - June 30, 2020 Byron-Bethany
Account Number: : - . .
BYRON-BETHANY ID irrigation District
RICK GILMORE )
7995 BRUNS RD @
BYRON CA 94514-1625 = _
ST DU EEUTTLETU CUTCLLLT || LR | FLLEC R | FU LU T Portfolio at a Glance
This Period Vear-to-Date »
Your Financial Consultant: BEGINNING ACCOUNT VALUE $457,512.50 $751,426.90 =
Theut/Rademaker Net Cash Deposits and Withdrawals 0.00 -302,744.35 =
(800) 327-7058 Adjusted Previous Account Value 457,512.50 448,682.55 @
Dividends, Interast and Other Income 0.00 6,467.45 =
Net Change in Portfolio’ _ 24,467.50 26,830.00 =
ENDING ACCOUNIT VALUE 5481,980.00) S48111980100 g
Accrued Interest $2,526.03 =
Estimated Annual Income $9,327.04 3

1 Net Change in Portfolio is the difference between the ending account value and
beginning account value after activity.

Asset'Summary,

Peromt Asset Type Prior Year-End Last Period This Period
100% Fixed Income : 705,150.00 457,512.50 481,980.00
0% Cash, Money Funds, and Bank Deposits 46,276.90 0.00 0.00
100% Account Total $751,426.90 $457,512.50 $481,980.00

Please review your allocation periodically with your Financial Consultant.
Your Account is 100% invested in Fixed Income.

Summary of Gains andLosses

__Additional Information

Descripiion This Period Vear-to-Date Realized This Pesiod  Realized Vezr-fo-Date Urtrezlized
Principal Payments $0.00 $250,000.00 Long-Term Gain/Loss 0.00 0.00 -18,020.00
Net Gain/Loss 0.00 0.00 -18,020.00

This summary excludes transactions where cost basis information is not available.
Pagelof 9
- Rated Excellent Clearing through Pershing LLC, a wholly owned

ADDO0DODCSFIRN GD paper'ess é Every Year Since 2007 subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon
ASK ABOUT E-DELIVERY DB(MM RATED COMMUNICATIONS Cerporaticn (BNY Mellon)

S

Pershing LLC, member FINRA, NYSE, SIPC



918120 at 11:04:32.77

Fiter Criteria mcludes: Report is printed in Detal Fonmet.

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Account Reconciliation
As of Aug 31, 2020
1080 - Petty Cash
Bank Statement Date: August 31, 2020

Beginning GL Balance
Add: Cash Receipts

Less: Cash Disbursements
Add (Less) Other

Ending GL Balance

Ending Bank Balance

Add back deposits in transit
Total deposits in transit
(Less) outstanding checks
Total sutstanding checks
Add (Less) Other

Total olher

Unreconciled difference
Ending GL Balance

200.00

(72.00)
128.00
128.00

0.00
128.00



Byron Bethany Irrigation District

Petty Cash Reconciliation
Beq. Balance
$200.00
Date Description Debit | Credit| GL | Running Balance
[08/13/2020  |SJC Recorder - Release of a Lien plus parking 22,00 | 6332 $178.00
[08/17/2020  [Petty Cash to CLAO1 due to Power Cutage at Rental Unit 50.00 | 4395 $128.00
$128.00
Currency on Hand Quantity Total
$0.01 x 25 0.25
$0.05 X 51 2.55
$0.10 X 62 6.20
$0.25 x 24 6.00
$1.00 X 3 3.00
$2.00 x .0 -
$5.00 X o 4 20.00
$10.00 x ! 10.00
$20.00 X .4 80.00
$50.00 X L -
$100.00 X - - -
Total Cash on Hand 128.00

2
Prepared By: Julia Gavrilenko ¢ :;f Checked By: Ilona Lament
Date  G/pfioro U Z/mh_Zuyuntr alp2020
/ -

Approved By:
Date:




9/14/20 at 12:01:30.87

AGENDAEMNO_ DX

Byron-Bethany lrrigation District
Check Register

For the Period From Aug 1, 2020 to Aug 31, 2020
Filtar Criteria includes: Report order is by Dale.

Page: 1

Check# Date Payee Cash Ac Amount
42735 8/1/20  Alhambra Water Service 1010C 277.35
42736 81720  Brentwood Ace Hardware 1010C 29.20
42737 8M120  Fruit Growers Laboratory Inc. 1010C 1,504.60
42738 8M/20  Home Depot Credit Services 1010C 347
42739 8/1/20  Hotsy Pacific 1010C 1,384 .60
42740 8/1/20  Julia Gavrilenko 1010C 145.71
42741 8/1/20  Occupational Health Centers of CA 1010C 108.00
42742 8M/20  Shred-It USALLC 1010C 193.61
42743 B8/M/20  Target Specialty Products 1010C 1,600.64
42784 8M/20  Asbury Environmental Services 1010C 180.00
42755 BM/20  Cintas Corporation #9522 1010C 121.42
42756 8M/20  Foley & Lardner LLP 1010C 1,837.50
42757 81120  McCampbell Analvlical Inc 1010C 456.90
42758 8M1/20  Ramos Ol Co., Inc. i010C 1,634.56
42759 81/20  Underground Service Alert i010C 3,535.20
42760 B/11720  ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority 1010C 32,248.74
427861 BA1/20 AT&T Land Line 1010C 852.26
42762 8/11/20 Chase Card Services 1010C 10,406.64
42763 8M1/20 Cintas Corporalion #922 1010C 241.23
42764 811120 City of Brentwood 1010C 20,638.85
42765 8/11/20  Condor Earth Technologies Inc 1010C 1,985.00
42766 81120 Cardmember Service 110C 1,308.87
42767 81120 DIRECTV 1010C €69.99
42768 8/11/20  Del Puerto Water District 1010C 806.21
42788 8/11/20  Fruit Growers Laboratory Inc. 1010C 405.00
42770 8M1/20 Honey Bucket 1010C 227.30
42771 81120  J-COMM Inc 1010C 7,000.00
42772 811720  McCampbel Analytical Inc 1010C 456.90
42773 8M1/20 Brentwood Auto Parts Inc 1010C 184.42
42774 8/11/20 Central Valley Motor Parts, Inc. 1010C 254.62
42775 811/20  Pacific Gas & Electric 4120 1010C 45,382.81
42776 81120 Plait 1010C 640.62



BHA20 at 12:01:30.68

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Check Register

For the Period From Aug 1, 2020 to Aug 31, 2020
Fitter Creria includes; Repost order is by Date.

Page: 2

Check# Date Payee Cash Ac Amount
42777 81120 Rames Oil Co., Inc. 1010C 3,897.49
42778 811220  San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority 1010C 12,137.91
42779 811220 Kimberly Ann Sakoi 1010C 288.40
42780 8/11/20 Tully & Young, Inc. 1010C 720.00
42781 8/M1/20 Westem Area Power Administration 1010C 5,928.50
42782 81120 CorelLogic Solutions, LLC 10M0C 302.50
42783 81120 CATD Exchange Services 1010C 4.894.51
42784 8111120 Pacific Gas & Electric 2085 1010C 7,102.73
42785 81120 San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority 1010C 18,509.50
42786 8M1/20 The Wilson Bohannan Company 1010C 54963
42787 8M1/20 Beckley, Inc 1010C 89.95
42788 8M1/20 Brentwood Ace Hardware 1010C 23.16
42789 811120  Central Valley Motor Parts, inc. 1010C 5.39
42780 8/13/20 Tracy Delta Solid Waste Management, Inc  1010C 883.95
42761 813720 Equipco Sales and Service 1010C 770.30
42792 8M13/20 AlligareLLC 1010C 3,0268.37
42793 8M13/20 Cintas Comporation #322 1010C 143.38
42794 8/13/20 Creative Qutdoor Environments, Inc. 1010C 1.050.00
42795 8M13/20 RobertW. JohnsonCF A 1010C 15,500.00
42798 8/14/20 CARB/PERP 1010C 736.00
42797 8/M14/20 AT & T Mobility 1010C 453.08
42798 8M14/20 Ramaos Qil Co., Inc. 1010C 1,330.56
42799 8/14/20 Somach, Simmons & Dunn 1010C 27,238.88
42811 8/47/20 California Water Environment Assoc. 1010C 192.00
42812 8M7/20 Wells Fargo Financial Leasing iac 437.86
42813 8/18/20  Creative Outdoor Environments, Inc. 1010C 320.00
42814 8118120 Underground Services Alert of NorCA &NV 1010C 2,613.23
42815 8/18/20 Booth Electric 1010C 1,670.00
42816 8/18/20 McCauley Ag Services 1010C 76.00
42817 8M18/20  Natividad Clark 1010C 153.17
42818 8/18/20 DOI - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 1010C 1,266.14
42819 8/18/20 DOl - BOR - Reglon: Mid Pacific 1010C 2,403.68



SM4i20 at 12:01:30.70

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

Check Register

For the Period From Aug 1, 2620 to Aug 31, 2020
Filter Critevia includes: Report order is by Date.

Check # Date Payee Cash Ac Amount
42820 8118/20 DOl - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 1010C 1,265.56
42821 81820 DOl - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 1010C 8.98
42822 8/18/20 DOl - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 1010C 17,287.50
42823 8/16/20 CH2M HILL Enginesrs, Inc 1010C 1,311.75
Total 270,624.66



Byron-Bethany Irrigation District
Purchase Journal
For the Period From Aug 1, 2020 to Aug 31, 2020

Debit Amount redit Amount

Date Invoice/CM # Line Description

8/1/20 00036 Urine Collection - VEG01 98.40

8/1/20 00038 Kimberly Ann Sakoi 98.40

8/2/20 08022020 Truth Finder - Background Check Subrscription 27.78

8/2/20 08022020 Network Solutions - BSD Website Security 7.99

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Power Steering Rack & Pinion & Tie Rods for WSID Truck 236.85

8/2/20 08022020 Safeway - Fuel 51.41

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Manhole Hook, Cover Lifter & Pick for BSD 613.77

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Transmission Supply Automatic & Converter for WSID Truck 1,460.29

8/2/120 08022020 Amazon - Power Adapter Plug for Camera DVR, LED Light Strip for PS4 10.45

8/2/20 08022020 Podesto's Market - 2019 Audit Refreshments 159.31

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Power Strips 14.06

8/2/120 08022020 Staples - Copy Paper & Multi-Purpose Paper 118.99

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Camecho 8in. LCD Monitor 62.77

8/2/20 08022020 Staples - Copy Paper 113.63

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Lock Safe Cabinet 75.76

8/2/20 08022020 Podesto's Market - 2019 Audit Refreshments 54.09

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Hydro Power Soft Wash Brush for PS3 Trash Rack 21.18

8/2/20 08022020 NationEW.com - Sanitizing Machine 5,827.74

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Tanis Brush, Metal Back Strip Brush for PS3 Trash Rack 88.96

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Tanis Brush, Metal Back Strip Brush for PS3 Trash Rack 46.80

8/2/20 08022020 Buy Auto Parts - AC Repair for Unit #69-06 270.15

8/2/120 08022020 Amazon - Replacement Particulate Fitter Element for Unit #12-20 2595

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Lexmark Cartridge 112.68 *

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Chain Hook 35.61

8/2/20 (8022020 Amazon - Toner Cariridge 43.29

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - INET Remote Ethemet, Access Point & Dual Remote 318.77

8/2/20 08022020 Amazon - Employee Smart Watches 478.35

8/2/20 08022020 Canepa Car Wash 35.00

8/2/20 08022020 Chase Bank - Annual Membership Fee 95.00

8/2/20 08022020 Chase Card Services 10,406.64

8/3/20 080320 Communications, Qutreach and Public Affairs for July 2020 4,900.00

8/3/20 080320 Website Services 2,100.00

8/3/20 080320 J-COMM Inc 7.000.00

8/3/20 131600 Unleaded ($2.544 per gallon) Clear Diesel {$2.478 per gallon) 2,000.65

8/3/20 131600 Ramos Qil Co., Inc. 2,000.65

8/3/20 971600 Freon & Core Deposit - Unit #69-06 84.40

8/3/20 971600 Central Valley Motor Parts, Inc. 84.40

8/3/20 AR13864 Groundwater Support Services for April 2020 10,902.10

8/3/20 AR13864 Groundwater Support Services for May 2020 7,653.57

8/3/20 AR13864 Groundwater Support Services for June 2020 2,183.18

8/3/20 AR13864 City of Brentwood 20,638.85

8/4/120 0175247 Pump Maintenance, Supplies & Expenses - Padlocks 549,63

8/4/20 0175247 The Wilson Bohannan Company 549.63
GSA Support - Review Materials & Project Communications - Tracy

8/4/20 3860 Subbasin GSP Technical Team 720.00

8/4/20 3860 Tully & Young, Inc. . 720.00

8/4/20 964829 Battery and Freon - WSID 184.42

8/4/20 964829 Breniwood Auto Parts Inc 184.42

8/5/20 004815 DHCCP 2013A - 9/1/20 Interest Debt Service 12,137.91

8/5/20 004815 San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority 12,137.91

8/5/20 2007E82 Tests: SW8315Am {Acrolein) 456.90

8/5/20 2007E82 McCampbell Analytical Inc 456.80
General Membership - Legislative & CVP Operational Affairs - Contract

8/6/20 004782 Renewal Coordinator (FY 20/21 2nd Install) 18,509.50

8/6/20 004782 San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority 18,509.50

8/6/20 4058055971 DHQ Janitorial Supplies 4.75

8/6/20 4058055971 Weekly Uniform Service for the week ending 8/6/2020 93.87

09/14/2020 at 12:19 PM Page: 1



Date  Invoice/CM # Line Description Debit Amount redit Amount

8/6/20 4058055971 Cintas Corporation #922 128.62

8/6/20 G0633305 Rental of Genset 150 for R&T Farms, M.P. 8.51 4,984.51

8/6/20 G0833305 CATD Exchange Services 4,994.51

8/6/20 NNPB0C00030720 WAPA Power for the Month of July 2020 - Regular 5,926.50

8/6/20 NNPBO00D030720 Western Area Power Administration 5,926.50

8/7/20 08072020 Mobile Data plan & Usage for the Period: 8/8/2020 - 9/7/2020 453.09

8/7/20 (08072020 AT & T Mobility 453.08
Ricoh Copier Rental (Contract #603-0227169-000; Serial

8/7/20 5011463703 #3129RA00486; Model IM C4500) 437.85

8/7/20 5011463703 Wells Fargo Financial Leasing 437.85
Calibration, cleaning, and cerification of YSI 556 MPS, 4M Meter

8/7/20 $S68629 {0BE1426AE, 16C30) 320.53

8/7/120 $68629 Equipco Sales and Service 320.53

8/7/20 568630 Testing and cleaning of Solinst 101 (19450) 258.94

8/7/20 S68630 Equipco Sales and Service 258.94
Calibration, cleaning, and cerlification of GasAlertMicro Meter (SE312-

8/7/20 $68631 001077) for BSD 190.83 -,

8/7120 S68631 Equipco Sales and Service 180.83

8/10/20 02637 Landscape Grounds Maintenance for the period of: August 2020 1,050.00

8/10/20 02637 Creative Outdoor Environments, Inc. 1,050.00

81020 131816 Unleaded ($2.544 per gallon) Clear Diesel {$2.55 per gallon) 1,330.58

81020 131816 Ramos Qil Co., Inc. 1,330.58

8/11/20 1-13584 Thrust Alignment for WSID Vehicle 69.95

8/11/20 1-13584 Beckley, Inc 69.95
Construction Maintenance Equipment Supplies - Poly Tarps for Unit #86-

8M11/20 177523 09 20.44

8/11/20 1775623 Brentwood Ace Hardware 20.44

8/11/20 3008275 Professional Legal Services by Michael E. Vergara (General) - July 2020 8,176.00

8/11/20 3008275 Somach, Simmons & Dunn 8,176.00
Professional Legal Services by Michael E. Vergara (WSID Merger) - July

8/11/20 3008276 2020 5,956.88

8/11/20 3008276 Somach, Simmons & Dunn 5,956.88
Professional Legal Services by Michael E. Vergara (Legislation} - July

8/11/20 3008277 2020 522.00

8/11/20 3008277 Somach, Simmons & Dunn 522.00
Professional Legal Services by Michael E. Vergara (CVP Issues) - July

8/M11/20 3008278 2020 10,081.98

8/11/20 3008278 Somach, Simmons & Dunn 10,081.98

8/11/20 3008279 Professional Legal Services by Michael E. Vergara (6th DCA) - July 2020 2,037.00

8/11/20 3008279 Somach, Simmons & Dunn 2,037.00
Professional Legal Services by Michael E. Vergara (Employment) - July =

8M11/20 3008280 2020 465.00

8/11/20 3008280 Somach, Simmons & Dunn 465.00

8/11/20 8062 Perform Audit for Year Ending: December 31, 2019 15,500.00

8M1/20 6062 Robert W. Johnson CP A 15,500.00

8/11/20 972518 Freon & Core Deposit for Unit #60-07 27.04

8/11/20 972518 Central Valley Motor Parts, Inc. 27.04

8/11/20 972519 Core Deposit Return for Unit #60-07 2165

8/11/20 972519 Central Valley Motor Parts, Inc. 21.65

8/11/20 AR13893 Groundwater Support Services for July 2020 14,423.63

8/11/20 AR13883 City of Brentwood 14,423.63

813/20 02668 Replacement of 6 irrigation rotors - Lawn area on North side of property 320.00

8/13/20 02668 Creative Outdoor Environments, Inc. 320.00
Engineering and/or Professional Services for the period of 6/27/2020 -

8/13/20 199766CH023-45 7/31/2020 SCADA and Programming On-Call Services 354.00

8M3/20 199766CH023-45 CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc 354.00

8/13/20 4058710952 DHQ Janitorial Supplies 44.51

8/13/20 4058710952 Weekly Uniform Service for the week ending 8/13/2020 98.87

813120 4058710952 Cintas Corporation #922 143.38

8/14/20 08142020 CWEA Association Membership & CSJS Membership 192.00

8M4/20 08142020 California Water Environment Assoc. 192.00

09/14/2020 at 12:19 PM Page: 2



Date  Invoice/CM # Line Deacription Debit Amount redit Amount
Mileage Reimbursement - Contra Costa County Elections Office and

8M14/20 08142020 Equipco 71.47

8M4/20 08142020 Julia Gawvrilenko 71.47

8/14/20 104220D1G20 California State Fee for Regulatory Costs (5,508 Tickets) - BSD 2,613.23

8M4/20 104220D1G20 Underground Services Alert of NorCA &NV " 281323

8/115/20 12898 Final Report & Inflow/Infiliration Analysis 5,500.00

8/15i20 12898 Infrastructure Engineering Coorporation 5,500.00

8/15/20 8180281832 Shred it Service Dates: 6/23/2020 & 7/712020 195.89

8M5/20 8180281832 Shred-It USA LLC 19569

8M6/20 1044027t 081620 Botiled Water Deliveries on 7/24/2020 & 8/7/2020 277.38

8M6/20 10440271 081820 Alhambra Water Service 277.38

817120 132021 Unleaded ($2.676 per gallon) Clear Diesel ($2.535 per gallon) 890.57

8M7/20 132021 Rames Qil Co., Inc. 850.57

8/18/20 D50591A Organic Analysis - EPA 548.1 405.00

8/18/20 050591A Fruit Growers Laboratory Inc. 405.00

8/18/20 08182020 CLAO1 Hotel Accommodations due to Power Outage at Rental Unit 163.17

8M8/20 08182020 Natividad Clark 153.17

8/18/20 110000009333-001 14" H3OFF Gate Valve for CVP Meter, MP 12.27 1,865.25

8/18/20 110000009333-001  Cal-Sierra Pipe, LLC 1,885.25

8M18/20 13543851 Monthly Pest Control Service at BBID: 8/18/2020 76.00

8/18/20 13543851 McCauley Ag Services 76.00
Engineering and/or Professional Services for the period of 6/27/2020 -

8/18/20 199766CH023-51 7/31/2020 - Pump Station 4 Replacement Project 1,865.75

81820 199766CH023-51 CH2M HILL Engineers, Inc 1,665.75

81820 456 Video camera pols and power installation - PS 4N 1,670.00

818120 456 Booth Eleciric 1,670.00

8/18/20 68769908 DOT Physical Recertification - MEHO1 108.00

81820 68769908 Qccupational Health Centers of CA W 108.00

8/18/20 R50006K-08182020 M&I Waler Reclamation Charge for the Month of: July 2020 (True-up) 43,66
MS&I Musco Olive Water Reclamation Charge for the Manth of: July 2020

8/18/20 RS0006K-08182020 (True-up) $,222.48

8/18/20 RS0006K-08182020 Conlract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1

8/18/20 RS0006K-08182020 DOI - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 1,266.14

8/18/20 RS50006K-08182020-2 Ag Water Reclamation Charge for the Month of: July 2020 2,397.20

8/18/20 RSC006K-08192020-2 M&) Water Reclamation Charge for the Month of: July 2020 6.48

8/18/20 R60008K-08182020-2 Contract No. 18-WC-20-5474

8/18/20 RS50006K-08182020-2 DOI - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 240368

8/18120 RS50006K-08182020-3 Ag Water Reclamation Charge for the Month of: July 2020 17,287.50

£8/18/20 RSCO06K-08182020-3 Contract No. 20-WC-20-5638

8/18/20 RSC006K-08182020-3 DOI - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 17,287.50

818120 RS5173FF-08182020 CVPIA Restoration Charge for Month of: July 2020 (M&1) 4384

8/18/20 RS173FF-08182020 CVPIA Restoration Charge for Month of: July 2020 (M&! Musco Qlive) 1,221.92

8/18/20 R5173FF-08182020 Contract No. 14-08-200-785-LTR1

8/18/20 R5173FF-08182020 DOI - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 1,265.56

§/16/20 R65008F-08182020  Trinity PUD Assesament for the Month of: July 2020 (M&I) 0.24

8/18/20 R65008F-08182020  Trinity PUD Assessment for the Month of: July 2020 (M&I Musco Olive) 8.72

8/18/20 RG5008F-08182020 Contract No, 14-06-200-785-LTR1

8M8/20 RE5008F-08182020 DOI - BOR - Region: Mid Pacific 6.86

8/20/20 4059358679 DHQ Janitorial Supplies 27.56

B/20/20 4059358879 Weekly Uniform Service for the week ending 8/20/2020 93.87

B/20/20 4059358879 Cintas Corporation #0922 121.42

8/21/20 08212020 General Malerials - Tape Measures - 31.47

8/21/20 08212020 Pre-blended 2-Cycle Fuel 4397

8/21/20 08212020 All-purpose Cleaners 37.36

8/21/20 08212020 Doormat, sprayer, buckets, batteries 174.42

8/21/20 08212020 Aerosol Wasp and Homet Killer 25.58

8/21/20 08212020 Air Filters - 7777 Bruns Road 30.02

8/21/20 08212020 Home Depot Credit Services 279.86

8/24/20 132227 Unleaded ($2.586 per gallon) Clear Diesel ($2.513 per gallon) 2,980.54

8/24/20 132227 Ramos Oil Co., Inc. 2,986.54

8/25/20 08252020 Monthly Service Charge for Telephone #209-835-0375 723.50

05/14/2020 at 12:18 PV Page: 3



Date  Invoice/CM # Line Description Debit Amount redit Amount
8/25/20 08252020 Menthly Service Charge for Telephone #925-308-7595 60.09
8/25/20 08252020 Monthly Service Charge for Telephone #925-513-0050 62.63
8/25/20 08252020 AT&T Summary Billing Account Services 6.04
8/25/20 08252020 AT&T Land Line 852.26
8/26/20 12227778 Gray & Yellow Spray for Unit #64-07 140.94
8/26/20 12227778 Pape Machinery 140.94
8/26/20 20134-001-18 713172020 - General On Call Engineering Services (Project #20134-001) 2,730.90
Engineering and/or Professional Services for the period of 7/1/2020 -
8/26/20 20134-001-18 713172020 - PS4N Replacement (Project #20134-002) 846.25
Engineering and/or Professional 7/1/2020 - 7/31/2020 - Mountain House
8/26/20 20134-001-18 Pipeline Condition Assessment Project (Project 20134-003) 1,271.26
Engineering and/or Professional Services for the period of 7/1/2020 -
7/31/2020 - Mountain House Pump Station Asset Management Pilot
8/26/20 20134-001-18 Project (Project 20134-004) 3,841.25
Engineering and/or Professional Services for the period of 7/1/2020 -
7/31/2020 - Canal 45N Lining & Siphon Crossing Final Design Project
8/26/20 20134-001-18 {Project 20134-006) 19,935.00
8/26/20 20134-001-18 Hazen & Sawyer 28,624 65
8/26/20 $1986880.001 Remote Display Cable for PS4 38.44 ¢
8/26/20 S51986880.001 Willie Electric Supply Co., Inc. 3844
8127120 08272020 Adobe Acrobat Pro DC Subscription 14.99
8/27/120 08272020 Apple - ITunes Cloud Backup 0.99
8/27/20 08272020 Homedepot.com - Stain and Odor Remover 28.38
827120 08272020 Tractor Supply - Lynch Pins, Lift Arm Bushing for Unit #82 7.53
8/27/20 08272020 Cardmember Service 51.89
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4120785230 Irrigation Pump-
8/27/20 08272020 Walnuts for Service Period 7/22/2020 - 8/20/2020 308.52
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4122301135 Sandhu MP17.59
827/20 08272020 for Service Period 7/22/2020 - 8/20/2020 4,589.13
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4120785586 Griffith 15.10R for
8/27/20 08272020 Service Period 7/11/2020 - 8/11/2020 113.67
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4120785554 for Service Period
8/27/20 08272020 71222020 - 8/20/2020 22.89
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4120785189 Spatafore 13.25R
8/27/20 08272020 for Service Period 7/22/2020 - 8/20/2020 305.57
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4120785535 for Service Period
8/27/20 08272020 712212020 - 8/20/2020 65.77
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4123236877 for Service Period
8/27/20 08272020 7/22/2020 - 8/20/2020 211.42
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4120785354 Tatla MP19.15
8/27/120 08272020 Chrisman Road for Service Period 7/22/2020 - 8/20/2020 1,915.45
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4129023266 Delta Mendota .
8/27/20 08272020 Canal for Service Period 7/22/2020 - 8/20/2020 916.10
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #4120785317 RC Capital
8/27/20 08272020 MP19.40 for Service Period 7/22/2020 - 8/20/2020 3,946.17
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #412684479 Pumping Cost for
B/27/20 08272020 Well on Corral Hollow for Service Period 7/22/2020 - 8/20/2020 282.82
8/27/20 08272020 Pacific Gas & Electric 4120 12,677.51
8/27/20 4060003036 DHQ Janitorial Supplies 33.12
8/27/20 4060003036 Weekly Uniform Service for the week ending 8/27/2020 93.87
8/27/20 4060003036 Cintas Corparation #922 126.99
8/28/20 37726937626 Satellite Service for the period 8/28/2020 - 8/27/2020 69.99
8/28/20 37726937626 DIRECTV 69.99
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #7267502832 480 Hoffman Ln
8/31/20 08312020 for Period: 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 1,364.49
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #2085093362 6P N/Marsh Creek
8/31/20 08312020 Rd for Period; 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 1,956.85
Pacific Gas & Etectric Charges Account #2085093666 WS Bethany
8/31/20 08312020 Canal 3P for Period: 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 934.67
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #2085093230 (SIM34) N/S Hwy
8/31/120 08312020 4 QPP for Period: 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 99.89
09/14/2020 at 12:19 PM Page: 4



Date Invoice/CM # Line Description Debit Amount redit Amount
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #2085093073 N/S Hoffman 5P
8/31/20 08312020 for Peried: 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 38.22
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #2085093184 W SPRR S
8/31/20 08312020 Hoffman Ln for Period: 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 66.87
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #2080801459 2200 Hoffman Ln
8131120 08312020 for Period: 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 98.67
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #2085093357 7777 Bruns Rd for -
8/31/120 08312020 Period: 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 153.15
Pacific Gas & Electric Charges Account #2084691543 Herdlyn Rd &
8/31/20 08312020 Byron Rd: 7/24/2020 - 8/24/2020 30.22
8/31/20 08312020 Pacific Gas & Electric 2085 4,743.03
8/31/20 132422 Unleaded ($2.691 per gallon) Clear Digsel ($2.551 per gallon) 1,076.91
831720 132422 Raros Qil Co., Inc. 1,076.91
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 ARAO01 - O&M Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 762.21
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ARAQ1 - O&M Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ARAQ1 - O&M Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ARAQ1 - O&M Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 11.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ARAQ1 - O&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits06853358 BRO3 - Director Health Benefits for the Period of: Octeber 2020 986.28
8/31/20 2020Benefits0663358 BRO3 - Director Dental Benefits for the Period of: Ociober 2020 31.20
8131120 2020Benefits0653358 BROS3 - Director Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0663358 BRO3 - Director Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 4.60
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 BRO3 - Director Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 DeBorba - Retiree Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 548.54
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 ENO12 - Director Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 2613.65
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ENO12 - Director Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 106.41
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ENO12 - Director Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ENQ12 - Director Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 3.40
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ENQ12 - Director Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GAVO1 - Admin Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 762.21
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GAVO1 - Admin Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GAVO1 - Admin Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GAVO1 - Admin Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 16.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GAV01 - Admin Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits0553358 GEY01 - Admin Health Benefits for the Period of; October 2020 986.28
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GEY01 - Admin Dental Benefits for the Pericd of; October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GEY01 - Admin Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GEY01 - Admin Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 41.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GEY01 - Admin Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits0663358 GILO1 - Admin Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 1,094.58
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GILO1 - Admin Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GILO1 - Admin Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GILO1 - Admin Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 41.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 GILO1 - Admin Employee Assistance Program - Octaber 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 Griffith - Retiree Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 986.28
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 KAGO1 - Director Health Benefits for the Pericd of: October 2020 2,613.65
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 KAGO1 - Director Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 106.41
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 KAGO1 - Director Vision Benefits for the Pericd of: Oclober 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 KAGO1 - Director Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 10.40
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 KAGO1 - Director Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 Kopp - Retiree Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 548.54
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 LAMO1 - Admin Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 1,134.82
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 LAMO1 - Admin Health Benefits Liability for the Period of: October 2020 372.60
8/31/20 2020Benefits0663358 LAMO1 - Admin Dental Benefits for the Pericd of: October 2020 31.20-
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 LAMO1 - Admin Dental Benefits Liability for the Period of. October 2020 33.01
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 LAMO1 - Admin Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 LAMO1 - Admin Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 8.16
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 LAMO1 - Admin Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0B53358 MAG10 - Director Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 261365
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MAG10 - Director Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 106.41
8/31/120 2020Benefits0653358 MAG10 - Director Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
09/14/2020 at 12:19 PM Page: 5



Date  Invoice/CM # Line Description Debit Amount redit Amount
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MAG10 - Director Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 5.90
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MAG10 - Director Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MAG11 - Director Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 086.28
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MAG11 - Director Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 64.21
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MAG11 - Director Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MAG11 - Director Life Benefits for the Period of: QOctober 2020 7.70
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MAG11 - Director Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MEHO01 - O&M Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 1,094.58
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MEH01 - O&M Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MEHO1 - O&M Vision Benefits for the Period of: QOctober 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MEHO1 - O&M Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 28.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MEH01 - O&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MONO1 - O&M Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 762.21
8/317/20 2020Benefits0653358 MONO1 - O&M Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0663358 MONO1 - O&M Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MONO1 - O8M Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 8.30
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MONO1 - O&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MUS10 - Director Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 086.28
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 MUS10 - Director Dental Benefits for the Period of; October 2020 31.20 .
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MUS10 - Director Vision Benefits for the Peried of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 MUS10 - Director Life Benefits for the Period of. October 2020 5.0
8/31/20 2020Benefits0553358 MUS10 - Director Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 OROO01 - O&M Health Benefits for the Pericd of: October 2020 1,444.08
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ORQ01 - O&M Health Benefits Liability for the Period of: October 2020 681.87
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ORO01 - O&M Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 OROO01 - Q&M Dental Benefits Liability for the Period of: October 2020 75.21
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 OROO01 - O&M Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020BenefitsC853358 OROO01 - O&M Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 10.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 ORO01 - O&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 PAPO1 - O&M Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 762.21
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 PAPO1 - O&M Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 PAPO1 - O&M Vision Benefits for the Period of; October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 PAPO1 - Q&M Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 10.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 PAPO1 - O&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits(06533568 RES01 - O&M Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 762.21
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 RESO01 - Admin Dental Benefits for the Period of: Octaber 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 RES01 - Admin Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/120 2020Benefits0653358 RESO1 - O&M Life Benefils for the Period of: October 2020 11.00
8/31/20 2020Benefils0653358 RESO1 - 0&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 Shoemaker - Retiree Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 548.54
8/31/20 2020Benefits(06533568 CLAQ1 - O&M Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 1,134.82
8/31/20 2020Benefits06533568 CLAO1 - O&M Health Benefits Liability for the Pericd of: October 2020 37260
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 CLAO1 - O&M Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20 -
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 CLAO1 - O&M Health Benefits Liability for the Pericd of: October 2020 33.01
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 CLAO1 - O&M Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits(0653356 CLAD1 - O&M Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 14.60
8/31/20 2020Benefits0663358 CLAO1 - O&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 TUS15 - Director Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 1,972.56
8/31/20 2020Bensfits0653358 TUS15 - Director Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 64.21
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 TUS15 - Director Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 TUS1S - Director Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 10.40
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 TUS15 - Director Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 2.57
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 VAZD1 - O&M Health Benefits for the Pericd of: October 2020 1,444.08
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 VAZO1 - O&M Health Benefits Liability for the Period of: October 2020 681.87
8/31/20 20208enefits06853358 VAZ01 - O&M Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 VAZ01 - O&M Dental Benefits Liability for the Period of: October 2020 75.21
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 VAZ01 - Q&M Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
8/31/20 2020Benefits0B53358 VAZ01 - Q&M Life Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 16.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 VAZO1 - O&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 VEGO1 - O&M Health Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 762.21
8/31/20 2020Benefils0653358 VEGO1 - O&M Dental Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 31.20
8/31/20 2020Benefits0853358 VEGO1 - Admin Vision Benefits for the Period of: October 2020 18.56
09/14/2020 at 12:19 PM Page: 6



Date  Invoice/CM # Line Description Debit Amount redit Amount
8/31/20 2020Benefits0663368 VEGO1 - O&M Life Benefits for the Period of: Octaber 2020 11.00
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 VEGO1 - O&M Employee Assistance Program - October 2020 257
8/31/20 2020Benefits0653358 ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority 32,248.74
8/31/20 82038032 Realgquest Geographic Package for Month of: August 2020 313.50
831220 82038032 Corel.ogic Solutions, LLC 313.50

268,298.21  268,298.21

0614/2020 st 12:19 PM



West Side irrigation District

918 AWM
09147120 Check Detail
August 2020
__Type Num ~  Dale Hame ltem ___Account PaldAmount  Original Amount
Paycheck 6207 0BHA2020 Carcl A Pelz 4116 - Oak Valley Co... -1,380,18
8501 - Gross Wages-... 4500 48.00
6501 - Gross Wages-... -1,723.00 1,726.00
2190 - Pension Withh. . 0365 -88.85
2101 - Faderal Withho... 126.00 -126.00
5750 - Employer FICA +109.92 109.02
2102-2 - WSID 109.92 10002
2102:1 - Employee 109,92 10092
£760 - Empiover Medi... 2570 2570
2103-2 - WSID 25.70 2570
2103-1 - Emiployeo 25.70 -26.70
2104 - Slate WiH 24.82 -24.82
2105 - 501 17.73 A7.73
TOTAL -1,360.14 1,380.18
Paycheck €208 0aM412020 Juan Cortes 1116 - Oak Valley Co... 1,531.64
6575 - Gross Wages.... -1,823.37 192337
@378 - Grogs Wages-... 00,40 20040
2180 - Penslon Wilth... 101,18 101,18
2101 - Federgl Withho. .. 155.00 -155.00
6760 - Employes FICA -125.47 12547
2102.2 - WSID 125.47 -12547
210241 - Employes 126.47 «125.47
4760 - Employer Medi... «29.34 29.34
2103-2 - WSID 9.3 2934
2102-1 - Employee 204 29.34
2104 - State Wit 81.02 61,02
2108 - 54 20.24 20.24
TOTAL -1,631.61 1.531.51
Paychock 6209 081412070 Richard A Martinet 1148 + Oak Veltey Co... -A,764.29
8576 - Gioss Wages-... «2,353.68 238308
6575 - Gross Wegas.... -327.50 27.50
2120 - Pension Wilhh... 21¢.8% -218.80
4310 - Renlal Income 125.00 -128.00
2101 - Fedoial Williho... 200.00 -209.00
§750 - Employar FICA -188.10 168.10
21022 - WSID 168.10 -168.10
210241 - Employes 186.10 -188.10
5780 - Employer Madi... 3831 9.
21032 - WSID 39,31 -49.91
21031 - Employee 39.31 309
2104 - Stoke WiH 7148 7148
2105 - SOl 2714 2711
TOTAL -1,764.2¢ 178420
Paycheck G210 0811412020 Richard A Marlinez, Jv. 1148 « Oak Valey Co... 4,259.10
6575 - Gross Wages-... -1,690.73 1680.73
5740 - Group Insyrance 45.73 45,73
2190 - Pension Willth... 84.84 -84.54
2101 - Faderel Withho... 132.00 132,00
6750 - Employer FICA -104.83 104,63
2102-2 - WSID 104.83 -104.83
2102-1 - Employee 104,83 -104.83
$700 - Employer Madi... =24 52 24.52
2103.2 - WStD 2452 -24.52
21034 - Empleyee 24.52 24,82
2104 - Siale VWH 2310 -23.10
2105 - SOI 18.91 -18.91
TOTAL -1,25.10 1.259.10

Page 1




9:1 AN West Side Irrigation District
0917120 Check Detail
August 2020
Type Num Dale Namo ftem __ Account Pald Amount Original Amount
Paycheck g211 oaa11i2020 Cavol A Patz 1118 - Oak Vatley Co... -1,804.87
8501 - Gross Wages-... -15.00 45.00
6501 - Geoss Wages.... 2,038,530 2,038,950
2180 - Pension Withth, .. 104.18 104.18
2101 - Foderal Withho.., 162,00 -162.00
£750 - Employes FICA -129.18 120.10
2102-2 - WSiID 128.18 -120.18
2102-1 - Employes 129.10 126,18
§700 - Employer Med:... -a0.22 30.22
2103-2 - WSID 30.22 -30.22
21031 - .22 +30.42
2104 - State WH 24 S2.d1
2105 - 80! 20.84 -20.84
TOTAL -1,604.67 1,604.67
Paycheck 8212 084/2020 Juan Cones 1116 - Oak Valley Co... -1,531.851
8575 - Gross Wages-... +1,823.37 182337
8575 - Gross Wages-... -200.40 200.40
2190 - Pension Withh.., 10012 ~101.19
2101 - Fedesal Wiliho.., 155.00 «155.00
5750 - Employar FICA -126.47 12547
20022 - WSID 12547 12847
21021 - Employee 12847 -126.47
§760 - Employer Medi.. 20,04 2034
2103.2 - WSID 204 28,34
2103-1 - Empioyea 29,34 29.
2104 - State Wi 84.02 -61.02
2105 - SO 20.24 204
TOTAL 1,5831.81 1,621.54
Paycheck ax3 08112029 Richard A Martinez 1416 - Oak Veliey Co... +1,648.48
0575 - Grass Wages..., 238388 2,383.08
6875 - Grogs Wages-... -131.00 131.00
2190 - Pension Wiihh... 20097 W17
4310 - Rental Income: 126.00 «145.00
2101 - Fedesal Withho... 2569.00 -269.00
5750 + Emphoyer FICA -155.01 185,99
2102:2 - WSID 1558.91 -165.91
2102-1 + Employee 155.91 «158.91
5760 - Employer Medi... 3847 AT
2103.2 « Ws(D 047 -36.47
21031 - Employee 3047 2847
2104 - Slate WWH 6352 43.82
2108 - SN 25.16 25,15
TOTAL ~1,840.46 1684846
Paycheck 6214 0813112020 Richard A Mariines, Jr. 1416 - Oak Valley Co... -1,260,12
G575 - Gross Wagos-... -1,600.73 1,600.73
5740 - Gaoup Insurance 4573 4573
2150 - Pension'Withh... 84.54 84.64
2101 + Federal Wilhwo... 132.00 -132.00
8780 - Employsr FICA -104.82 104.82
2102-2 - WSID 104.82 -104.82
2102-1 - Employee 104,82 -104.62
5780 - Employer Medl... 24.81 24.51
21032 - WSIB 24.51 «24.51
210341 - Employse 24.51 -24.51
2104 - State WHH 2310 2310
21056 - SDY 16.91 1691
TOTAL -1,269.12 1,250.12
Check 17918 08/4212020 ACWALIPIA 1118 » Dak Valley Co.., 21,174.43
5740 - Group Insutance 2117442 17443
TOTAL 21,174.43 21,174,432

Page 2




918 AN Woest Side Irrigation District
0817120 Check Detail
August 2020
Type Humy Date Mo __tem Accoumt Pald Amount Original Amounit
Check 17929 031212020 ARGO 1118 « Oah Valley Co... 4,207.12
5480 - Fuellube -1,207.12 £,207.12
TOTAL -1,207.12 1,207.12
Check 17930 082020 Catliosala WeldIng S... 1116 - Oak Valley Co... -21.28
5470 - Shop Mainlena... -27.28 27,28
TOTAL -21.28 2026
Chack 17934 081212020 Comeast 1116 - Ok Vatley Co... -116.62
5700 - Ofkca Supplies 416,62 _ 1882
TOTAL ~116.62 118.02
Check 17532 0312/12020 Cox Bros. Tire Service 1116 « Oak Vatley Co... A7.67
5500 - Auto Expense A7.57 47.57
TOTAL 47.67 47.87
Chock 17933 0811212020 San Luis & Delta-Me.. 1116 - Qak Valley Co... +2,356,00
5870 - Dues -2,355.00 2,955.00
TOTAL -2,355.00 2,355.00
Check 17934 0311212020 HerumiCrablresiSuth... 1116 - 02k Vailay Co... -785.40
5830 - Legal Expense - ~785.40 786.40
TOTAL -785.40 735.40
Check 17935 03122020 PG&E 1116 - Dak Vatlay Co... <205.56
5720 - Office Pove! +205.58 . 205.56
TOTAL «205.588 205.59
Check 17938 0811212020 Van's Ace Hardware 1116 - Oph Valloy Co... 21
5470 - Shop Mainlena... -27. 1 27.0t
TOTAL 2701 270
Chack 11937 081212020 Mike Grijalva 1116 - Oak Vatloy Co.. 45000
5850 - Janitorial Expe... -1%0.00 £50.00
TOTAL -153.00 150.00
Check 17938 031212020 County of San Joaguin §116 - Oak Vallay Co... 38144
6440 - Wead/Rodent 144 381.44
TOTAL 30144 368144
Chack 17939 09120020 Zontth (nsurance Co.. 1116 « Oah Vallay Co... -1,180.00
5720 - Worckman's Co... +1,100.00 1,100.00
TOTAL -1,100,00 1.100.50

Page 3




0:49 At Woest Side Irrigation District
oon10 Check Detail
August 2020
Type Hum Pate _ Name ) ftem Account Pald Amount Quigleal Amount
Chath 17940 081212020 SSVUAPCD 111§ - Oak Valley Co... -160.00
5970 - Oues . te0c0 ... 10000
TOTAL -160.00 160.00
Liabdlity Check 12941 0341512020 Oak Valley Comeminl... 1116 » Oak Vatlay Co... -262.41
2105 - S0 -81.99 81.0%
2104 - Slale WH o ____-180.42 180.42
TOTAL -282.41 262.44
Liabifity Check 17942 DaMBIZN0 Oak Velley Commun... 1116 - Oak Valley Co... -1,948.38
2101 - Fedass! Withho... ~112.00 712,00
2103-2 - WSID -118.07 118.97
2103-1 - Employee 118,67 118.87
21022 - WSID 508,32 508.32
21021 - Employee 508,32 508.32
TOTAL +1,260,36 1,968,398
Check 17843 Q08M 212020 PWRPA 1118 - Oak Valey Co... -43,065.69
5240 - WAPA Posver -41,072.32 41,8022
8807 - P-3 Funding -1,102.38 1,183.38
TOTAL -43,G85.68 43,065.68
Chetk 17944 081812020 Alhantbra 1116 - Oak Valley Co... -48.99
5700 - Offica Supplies -45.99 45,99
TOTAL -45.98 45.09
Check 17848 0B162020 ATLT Mobility 1448 - Oak Valtey Co... 13388
5810 - Celiiar Phone 13388 123.68
TOTAL -133.88 133,85
Check 17848 03HBa2020 Bank of America 1116 - Oak Valley Co... -38.718
5700 - Olfice Supplies -36.70 .
TOTAL -36.70 .75
Chack 17047 081812020 Bureau of Reclamall... 1116 - Dak Vaiky Co... +2,767.99
5100 - CVP Waler Pur,.. 242608 2,426.06
5110 - CVP Restoralion 335,21 3821
120 - CVP - Q8 Ob... 372 372
TOTAL -2, 76799 2,761.0%
Chack 1r9de 06102920 Byron-Bethany ID 1116 - Oak Valley Co... 781312
6899 - Distict Manage... -4.188.67 4,180.87
5490 - Plpetine Mainle... S81.73 541,76
5200 - Pumphouse M... 2Z214.00 214.00
5460 - Roadway MalnL.. 426.00 429.00
5500 - Aulo Expense 24430 2442
TOTAL 2.813.73 701078

Page 4




9:18 AM West Side iIrrigation District
QOHTID Check Detail
August 2020
Type Numi Dato Hame Itam Account Pald Amount Orlginal Amouni
Check 17940 05/18/2020 CHly Garago 1116 - Oak Vallay Co... +509.19
5500 - Aula Expanse -£00.19 500.19
TOTAL 509,19 £09.19
Chack 17960 0BHS8I2020 Detta Disposal Sarvice 1116 - Dok Valley Co.., «129.48
§470 - Shop Mz!ntena... -120.46 129.46
TOTAL -128.46 120.46
Chotk 17951 08M8I2020 County of San Josquin 1416 - Dak Vallay Co... 78287
$440 - WeedRodent 762.87 76287
TOTAL -762.87 76287
Check 17852 0811812020 San Luls & DeNa-Mo... 118 « Oak Valloy Co... 103,39
8102 - CVP-Self Fundi... -703.39 703.30
TOTAL 70338 703.99
Cheek 17953 081812020 Wagnor & Bonslgnory 1416 - Ouak Velioy Co... 91140
5130 - Water Rights 911,40 a0
TOTAL 411.40 #1140
Chack 17054 08/2712020 ATST 1116 - Oak Valloy Co... -158.59
5800 - Phone -80.50 50.50
5800 - Phone -108,08 108.00
TOTAL 158.59 155.59
Chack 17956 O3I2712020 Correla Garden Servl... 1116 - Qak Vailey Co... -80.00
5890 - Lawn Maltiena... -80.00 20.00
TOTAL £0.00 20.00
Check $7956 08I27/2020 Lauring Rocha 1146 - Ok Velley Co... 160,00
B5a50 - Janitorial Expe... -150.00 150.00
TOTAL 180,60 150,00
Check 17987 9912712020 PORE 1116 « Oak Vallay Co... 143,38
5280 - Othet Power -143.35 143.35
TOTAL A43.36 143,38
Chack 17938 08/27/2020 San Joaguin County .. 116 « 0% Valtey Co... -100.00
5820 + DirectorsfOffick... -100.00 1¢0.00
TOTAL -§00.00 160.00
Liabikty Chack 17959 0813172020 Qak Valley Commund... 1416 + Oak Valloy Co... «263.19
2105 - SM -B3.14 8344
2104 - State WIH -180.05 180.05
TOTAL -203.19 263.19

Page 8




9:18 AW Waest Side Irrigation District

0947120 Check Detail
August 2020
Type . N um Data Name |17 Agtoun Pabd Amound Original Areount

Liabllity Chock 17880 083112020 0ok Vaflay Commuonl... 416 - Dak Valloy Co... +1,979.84
2401 - Fedaral Withho... J08.00 708.00
2103-2 - WSID +120.54 120,54
2103-1 - Empiloyee -120.54 120.54
2102:2 - WSID 51836 515.28
2102-% - Employee ; _415.33 515.38

TOTAL 1.979.64 1,679.84

Liabiilty Chack 17961 08131/2020 VALIC 1116 - Ozk Valloy Co... ~1,807.94
5730 - Pension Expen... 028,59 825.50
2190 - Pension Withh... . 982,35 962.35

TOTAL «1,807.84 1,807 94

Page 6




‘AGENDA ITEM NO, 6

THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT DATE: August 31, 2020
TOTAL Osk valey
RECEIPTS ALL FUNDS Checdng
1.16%
Interes on Bank Acvoenity (Racetved) 13704 | & L3704
Stanet fiy Chages (Reesivesd) LS07.50 | ¢ 1907.50
mmw -
Sirface Rocaked - _
Wakes Seles 8 Vol (Receivert) &4&% 12465508
Intesest an Past Dua Arornts (Hec'd} i _n_m
Grower Oepos2 on Acnownt {Reteived) S350 2500
Gty eppmpraisd Furds 8.5 606
“Fransfor Foom Fund 8 Fund -
Ciber Csh Retstved: -
aDEPOIR Iterest (5 Chediin) -
TOTAL CASH RECEIPTS ROR THE MOINTH 128,557, $ . - |3 - 1L = I . s ~ 13 .
JREASURER'S BALANCE —
{End of Provious Month} $ 3,355,507.27
TOTAL $ 348406479
TOTAL Qak valley
DISBURSEMENTS ALL FUNDS Checking
Matnioaence & Opemion (Pld Out) 9152947} ¢ 9152947
Songruction & Equlpmont (i Out) -
Tiunshers to Ve Fonds -
Payroll {ret} 10978.84 1§ 1197484
Other Dbursementt -
TOTAL CASH DISBUASEG FORTHEHDNTH | & 1 1 3 - |3 - i DO K ] - 3 - 15 -
TREASURER'S BALANCE
{End of Curvent Momth) § 3,380,556.49
om $ 3,484,064.70
LOCATION OF CASH | GUTSTANDING WARRANTS
[Office Casn $ 16000 [Randy Mattos $ 100.96
County of San Joansin-Bat $ 287
aTeT $ 158.58
Lawwina Rocha $ 150.00
PGRE $ 14335
|51 Gourty Ag Ventre $ 10000
(Corepia Garden Service $ 80.00
ik Vallay Commenity Bank $ 3,360,456.48 |cante vistay Biank - Pad Depastt $ L9703
vaLIC 5 LM
|Richard A, Martinez $  LEH%
Caral A Petz $  LOME7
hard A X $ 1,292
ke Vialky Bank - State Deposit $ 263,19
TREASURER'S CASH AALANCE 1 S56.48




THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT DATE: July 31, 2020
TOTAL Ok Viahey
RECEIPTS ALL FUNDS Cheddeg
L16%.
Rmberest-on Bank Actunts (Recebved) 135796 (£ 13579
“Stand 9y Chusges (Rseshed) L6 164050
et Tan {Recrivrd) 12000 | « 180.00
Surthce Oriinage (Raeeiver) - s
Watet Sates  Tolls (Recetwed) 175,708.65 $ IS5 N6
MMMMM‘EGI =
Girowds Depott on Aecount (Beodved) - —
Souny Appropinied funds WAls e
Transfer From Fured bo Rund -
Othar Cish Recaived: -
Depaeh Intorast o Checking a
TOTAL CASH RECEIPTS FOR THE MONTH 17903292 % % hod : ¥ ol
TREASURER'S RALAICE
1End o Previous Hoeth) $ 3,393,355.33
LEEY $ 3,572,388.35
TOTAL Cak Vadlay
DISBURSEMENTS MLEUNDE | Charking
Mainie o B Opction (Rl Oty — A, 13843 | § 2043843
Condtnaction & hd
Tnirefeni fo Wirous Fundt bl rrarrr—
Lyl jnet) 137405515 137625
Othety Distmoritzonstis e
TOTAL CASH OISEURSED FORTHEHONTH_[ $ 216,860,998 3 3 - i £ -
TREASUSER'S BALANCE
(€nd &f Qsant Mocety) $ 3,355,507.27
TOTAL $ 3,572,388.25
LOCATION OF CASH OUYSTANDING WARRANTS
Office Cash $ 100,00 Dwck Alvarer 3 10096
|Randy Mamos $ 100.96
|rexst of ametiea L1 $ 2248
i $  1am4
Carol A, Petz 5 164308
|richard A. Martinez . 3 129903
[Turf-t-Traa s 100000
ok Bank | § 3,355,407.27 Joak vatey Bark - Sats Depost s 6
| City of Tracy $ 17249
l PoAE s Mo
Lsurina Rocha $ 100.00
Caral Petz - Reimb. Suppkes $ o348
[Comela Garden Servios $ 20.00
TREASURER'S CASH BALMNNCE $ 3,355,507.27 |Ray Morgan Co. $ M0




42 354& TRACY
5 JJ,.J,(_; {’ =0 1034 NORTH CENTRAL AVE.
e o, 2 TRACY CA 95376

OAK VALLEY C OMATUNITY 13 \\.u (209)834-3340

=

2458 THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

PO BOX 177
TRACY CA 95378 ACCOUNT NUMBER: (RSLERED
STATEMENT DATE: 8/31/20
PAGE : 1 OF 2
WEB SITE: Wi . oveh . com
wer . eschank . com
TOLL FREE NUMBER: 866-844-7500
DAK TREE CHECKING-PUBLIC THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT Acct (i
Beginning Balance 8/01/20 3.164,542.15
Deposits / Misc Credits 6 121,732.76
Withdrawals / Misc Debits 13 95,759.44
** Ending Balance 8/31/20 3,190,515.47 **
Service Charge .00
Interest Paid Thru 8/31/20 1,347.04
Interest Paid Year To Date 15,987.30
Hinimum Balance 3,155,789
-------------- DEPOSITS/CREDITS R
Date Deposits Withdrawals Activity Description
8/11 7.514.77 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0044
= 8/13 1,069.60 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0044
Wk 8/14 70.110.74 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/19 33.643.17 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/25 8.047.44 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/31 1,347.04 INTEREST EARNED
-------------- OTHER WITHDRAWALS/DEBITS P e e e dw E e & e =
Date Deposits Withdrawals Activity Description
8/03 3,750.32  Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/04 1.931.49 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/05 2.071.15 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/07 1.000.00 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/12 99.96 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/17 70,192.34  Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/18 4,233.79 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/20 26.01 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/21 1,084.83 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/24 9,231.10 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044
8/27 174.45 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044

8/28 1,531.51 Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044



OUTSTANDING CHECKS

] 1. Suoib checks in sequence by check number,

Mo. AMOUNTY
2 Compare each imaged item with your check stub or check register and mark paid.
3. Bank balance shown on front of statemenl .o oovieiiiiaininiiainiins T,
S 4. Compore any deposits shown on statement, including bank originated credits,
with those entered in your check register, Add any not shown on statement. . .ooouvveiiia _—
O T | T S P T
6, Subtract total of entstanding checks ..ot iiiiiii et e i s Y
w T ACCOUNE DAMINCE. o\ \ it s seansans e s sen st ssan e aenrssasssinssseisrnnssesios J—
8. Yourcherk hook balnnice ¢ v eveveeiononsnsoionesrassrasssrsrsrssseressisssessnrssssysns —
9, Subtract uny bank charges including monthly service charge and automatic repayments
or Lransfers you have authorized and have been deducted on this statement. (ooooaioiiiiiiia
—— s e o 10,  Adjusted clieckbook DRTANCE . v st ivieinianesue dadian e i inmesssions iy siesiness
e -mwaj

haportant: Adjusted checkbook should ngree with account halanee,
Desciiptions of ACH items are printed as supplied by originaling company.

NOTICE REGARDING REPORTS OF NEGATIVE INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR ACCOUNT

We may report information about your sceount to eredit bureans. Late payinents, missed puyments or other defaults on your account may be reflected in your credit report,

Any Charge for Imprinted Checks Ineludes State Sales Tax Compuled at the Current Rate, When Applicable

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT YOUR OPEN END CREDIT LINE,

METHOD USED TO DETERMINE THE BALANCE ON WHICH THE FINANCE CHARGE WILL BE COMPUTED: A daily FINANCE CHARGE will be imposed on all eredit
advances made under your LINE OF CREDIT from the date of each advance based on the “AVERAGE DAILY BALANCE" method. To get the average daily balance we take
the beginning balance of your LINE OF CREDIT cach day, add any new advances and subtract any payments or credits and any unpaid FINANCE CHARGES, This gives us
a daily balance. Tlen, we add up all the daily balances for the billing cycle and divide the total by the number of days in the billing cycle. This gives us the “AVERAGE DAILY
BALANCE.” The FINANCE CHARGE is determined by applying the “Periodic Rate” lo the AVERAGE DAILY BALANCE described above. Then we multiply by the number
of days in the billing eyele. This is your FINANCE CHARGE caleulated by applying a Periodic Rate.

BILLING RIGHTS SURMMARY

What To Do If You Think You Find A Mistake On Your Statemend:
If you think there is an error on your statement, write to us at: PO Box 98, Onkdale, CA 83361, In your letter, give us the following information:

' Aecount Information: Your name and account number,
¢ Dollar Amount: The dellar amount of the suspected error.
. Deseription of Prablem: I you think there is an error on your bill, describe what you believe is wrong and why you believe it is a mislake.

You must contact us within 60 days after the error appenred on your statement,

You must notify us of any potential errors in writing. You many call us, but if you do we are not required to investigate any potential errors and you may have to
pay the amount in question

While we investigate whether or not there has been an error, the following ave true:

. We eannot try to collect the amount in question, or report you as delinquent on that amount.

. The charge in question may remnin on your statement, and we may continue to charge you interest on that amount. But, if we determine that
we made a mistake, you will nat have to pay the amount in question or any interest or other fees related to that amount.

¢ While you do not have to pay the antount in question, you ave responsible for the remainder of your balance.

. We can apply any unpaid nmount against your eredit limit.

IN CASE OF ERRORS OR QUESTIONS REGARDING ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS ON CHECKING OR SAVINGS ACCOUNTS

Contacl us at 200-844-7500 or the address shown on the front of this stalement as soon as you can if you think your statement or receipt is wrong or if you need more
information about a transfer on the statement or receipt. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we first sent you the FIRST statement on which the problem
appeared, Be prepared to:

. Tell us your name and account number

. Deseribe the error or the transfer you are unsure about, and explain ns clearly as you can why you believe it is an error or why you need more
information
. Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error

We will investigate your complaint and will corvect any error promptly. Ifwe take move than 10 business days ta do this, we will credit your account for the amount you

think is an errar; so that you will have use of the money during the time it tukes us to complete our investigation.

rov 6/10




THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

- - ACCOUNT CONTINUED - -

Balance

ACCOUNT NUMBER:
STATEHENT DATE:
PAGE ;

HEB SITE:

TOLL FREE PHONE:

OTHER WITHDRAHALS/DEBITS

Withdrawals
432.49

DAILY BALANCE SUMMARY

Date

8/13
8/14
8/17
8/18
8/19
8/20

Activity Description

2 OF 2

vt oveb. com

viad. eschank . com

866-844-7500

Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0044

Balance

3.164,273.60
3.234,384.34
3.164,192.00
3.1569,958.21
3,193,601.38
3,193,575.37

Date

8/21
8/24
8/25
8rs27
8/28
8/31

Balance

J,192,490.54
3,183.259.44
3,191,306.688
3,191,132.43
3.189,600.92
3.190,515.47




ST : TRACY
...;_g_é}{’g?w{ 53‘» 1034 NORTH CENTRAL AVE.
___ﬁ_.,.._-“'f." .“ ; TRACY CA 95376
UAJ{ V‘\I LEY COMMUNITY 13 wu (209)834-3340

3191 THE YWEST SIDE TRRIGATION DISTRICT

PO BOX 177
TRACY CA 95378 ACCOUNT NUMBER:
STATEMENT DATE: 8/31/20
PAGE : 1 OF 3
WEB SITE: v, oveh . com
weiel . eschank .com
TOLL FREE NUMBER: 866-844-7500
ECONOMY CHECKING-PUBLIC THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT Acct AR
Beginning Balance 8/01/20 200,000.00
Deposits / Misc Credits 18 222.969.92
Withdrawals / Misc Debits 48 222,969.92
** Ending Balance 8/31/20 200,000.00 **
Service Charge .00
Enclosures 40
-------------- DEPOSITS/CREDITS e
Date Deposits Withdrawals Activity Description
8/03 3.750.32 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/04 1,931.49 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/05 2.071.15 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/07 1,000.00 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/10 7.595.77 DEPOSIT
8/12 99.96 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/13 72,862.85 DEPOSIT
8/17 70,192.34 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/18 36,194.26 DEPOSIT
8/18 4,233.79 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/20 26.01 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/21 1,084.83 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/24 8,222.10 DEPOSIT
8/24 9,231.10 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/27 174 .45 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/28 2,335.50 DEPOSIT
8/28 1,531.51 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/31 432 .49 Trnsfr from Checking Acct Ending in 0052
-------------- OTHER WITHDRAWALS/DEBITS e e
Date Deposits Withdrawals Activity Description
8/03 276.56  EMPLOYMENT DEVEL/EDD EFTPMT

8/11 7.514.77  Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0052



e

-—
AN VALLEY COMMUNTTY IIANE Easip et Srires Conniuriny I

3191

THE VEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT ACCOUNT NUMBER: glqlgoonu
STATEMENT DATE: 8/31/20

PAGE : 2 OF 3

WEB SITE: vl oveh . com
viivd. eschank ..com
TOLL FREE PHONE: 866-844-7500
- - ACCOUNT CONTINUED - -

-------------- OTHER WITHDRAKALS/DEBITS s e R R m e S

Date Deposits Withdrawals Aclivity Description

8/13 1,069.60  Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/14 70,110.74  Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/18 262.41-" EMPLOYMENT DEVEL/EDD EFTPMT

8/18 1,966.38" IRS/USATAXPYMT

8/19 33,643.17  Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0052
8/25 8.047.44  Trnsfr to Checking Acct Ending in 0052

-------------- CHECKS PAID CONVENTIONALLY Smw s m s &S e
* indicates skip in check numbers

Date Check No. Amount Date Check No. Amount Date Check No. Amount
8/05 6203 1,643.05.- 8705 17925 24.207 8/21 17938 381.44~
8703 6206* 1,259.13 8/03 17926 2,214.63 8/17 17939 1,100.00 ~
8/17 6207 1,380.18" 8/07 17927 1,000.00. 8/19 17940 160.00 -
8/14 6208 1,5631.518/17 17928 21,174.43- 8/17 17943* 43,065.68-~
8/17 6209 1,764.29. 8/19 17929 1,207.12. 8/27 17944 45,99~
8/17 6210 1.259.10. 8/17 17930 27.287 8/25 17945 133.66-
8/28 6212% 1,531.51-78/17 17931 116.82- 8/24 17946 36.78
8/12 17913* 100.96-8/19 17932 47.57- 8/31 17947 2,767.99
8704 17919* 1,931.49 8/18 17933 2.355.00- 8/24 17948 7.813.73
8/05 17920 83.68 8/19 17934 785.40 8/24 17949 509.19
8/05 17921 172.09 8/17 17935 205.56 8/27 17950 129 .46
8/11 17922 80.00 8/20 17936 27.01 8/21 17952% 703.39
8/17 17923 100.00 8/13 17937 150,00 8/24 17953 911.40
8705 17924 148.13

-------------- DAILY BALANCE SUMMARY LRI R LSS

Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance
8703 200,000.00 8/11 200,001.00 8/18 235,844 .26
8704 200,000.00 8/12 200,000.00 8/19 200,001.00
8/05 200,000.00 8/13 271,643.25 8/20 200.000.00
8/07 200,000.00 8/14 200.001.00 8/21 200,000.00

8/10 207.,595.77 8/17 200.000.00 8/24 208.182.10



5

i)
DA VALLEY COSDMUSTTY LANE EASTE RN SUrepA oDty B
f————————7 -\

THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

- - ACCOUNT CONTINUED - -

DAILY BALANCE SUMMARY
Balance Date

202,335.50 8/31

Date Balance Date

8/25 200,001.00 8/28
8/27 200,000.00

ACCOUNT NUMBER:
STATEMENT DATE:
PAGE:

WEB SITE:

TOLL FREE PHONE:

3191

(Bt
8/31/20

3 OF 3
v, oveh . com

weiel . eschank . com
866-844-7500

Balance

200,000.00




AGENDA FIEM 7

BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: 24 SEPTEMBER, 2020
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: RICK GILMORE, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT: RATIFY THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH V&A
CONSULTING ENGINEERS FOR CORROSION ENGINEERING
SERVICES - PUMPING PLANT 3

BACKGROUND:

Soil resistivity testing at Pumping Plant 3 has determined that the soil is corrosive to the
approximately 140 feet of mortar coated welded steel discharge piping that serves Canal
120 and 155. BBID received several proposals for corrosion engineering services and
selected V&A Consulting Engineers.

V&A will prepare a Technical Memorandum with the testing results and make a
recommendation on the type of cathodic protection system that should be designed. V&A
will also prepare plans and specifications for the cathedic protection system, once
selected.

V&A proposes to complete this work at a cost not to exceed $15,000.00. A Purchase Order
was issued on September 16, 2020.

RECOMMENDATION:

The General Manager respectfully requests the Board of Directors ratify the services of
V&A Consulting Engineers at a cost not to exceed $15,000.00



AGENDATITEM 8

BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: 24 SEPTEMBER, 2020
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: RICK GILMORE, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT: RATIFY THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
FARWEST CORROSION CONTROL COMPANY FOR CATHODIC
PROTECTION SYSTEM REPAIRS

BACKGROUND:

In March 2020, the District requested Farwest to conduct a corrasion protection survey on
several of BBID's assets. Based on the survey BBID requested a proposal to replace/install
magnesium anodes on three fire risers at Headquarters, three locations along the
Mariposa Energy pipeline and at the Radial Gate in Byron. The proposal was provided by
task/site at a cost of $32,000. In order to schedule the work, a Purchase Order was issued
on September 9, 2020.

RECOMMENDATION:

The General Manager respectfully requests the Board of Directors ratify the services of
Farwest Corrosion Control Company at a cost not to exceed $32,000.



AGENDATTEM 9

BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: 24 SEPTEMBER, 2020
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: RICK GILMORE, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF REPAYMENT CONTRACT 14-06-
200-785-LTR1-P BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND BYRON-
BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT FOR CENTRAL VALLEY
PROJECT WATER SERVICE, DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE NOTICE
OF EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO CALIFONRIA ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY ACT, DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE A VALIDATION
ACTION AND AUTHORIZING ACTIONS IN FURTHERANCE
THEREOF

BACKGROUNI:

As you may recall, the Board authorized staff to proceed with converting its” existing
water service contract to a permanent repayment contract under the Water Infrastructure
Improvements for the Nation Act (WIIN Act). The WIIN Act authority for contract
conversions sunsets December 16, 2021, which means Reclamation and the Contractors
must have the conversion contracts negotiated and executed prior to December 16, 2021.

Contractors that fully prepay their construction obligation of the CVP will no longer be
subject to requirements of the RRA, once full payout is verified and approved by the
Commissioner. Contractors will receive a letter once this occurs. The District’s repaymeht
obligation is approximately $2.2 million and will be funded through the California
Municipal Public Finance Authority.

The Repayment Contract is not a project under CEQA because it is a financial activity,
having no impact on the physical environment. BBID may invoke the ongoing project and
existing facilities exemptions in the event the Repayment Contract is deemed a “project.”
Finally, BBID may rely on the common-sense exception because the Repayment Contract
does not result in changes from the environmental baseline.

RECOMMENDATION:
The General Manager respectfully requests the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 2020-
9 as attached to this report.



RESOLUTION 2020-9
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF REPAYMENT CONTRACT 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P
BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
FOR CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT WATER SERVICE, DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE NOTICE
OF EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO CALIFONRIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT,
DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE A VALIDATION ACTION AND
AUTHORIZING ACTIONS IN FURTHERANCE THEREOF

CVP Water Service Contracts

WHEREAS, Plain View Water District (PVWD) entered into a contract with the United States
Bureau of Reclamation (United States) providing for the delivery of up to 20,600 acre-feet of water
diverted through Ceniral Valley Project (CVP) facilities and PVWLY's distribution system (Contract
No. 14-06-200-785 and hereinafter referred to as, “Original Contract”);

WHEREAS, the Original Contract expired on February 28, 1994, and PVWD thereafter
entered into successive interim contract renewals with the United States providing for continued
water service to PVWD in accordance with substantially the same terms and conditions, except
price and length, as the Original Contract, from March 1, 1994, through February 28, 2006
{(Contract Nos. 14-06-200-785-IR1 through 14-06-200-785-IR10, collectively referred to hereinafter
as, “Interim Renewal Contracts”);

WHEREAS, BBID is a multi-county irrigation district established under irrigation district law
(Wat. Code, § 20500 et seq.) providing water for irrigation and municipal and industrial purposes of
use within its boundaries;

WHEREAS, on August 12, 2004, PVWD and Byron-Bethany Irrigation District (BBID)
consolidated, dissolving PVWD and reorganizing PVWID's territory into BBID, thereby establishing
a CVP service area that includes lands formerly part of PVWD, within the boundaries of BBID;

WHEREAS, the United States and BBID executed a Long-Term Renewal Confract effective
March 1, 2005, through February 28, 2030, with substantially the same terms and conditions as the
Interim Renewal Contracts (Contract No. 14-200-785-LTR1 and hereinafter referred to as, “Long-
Term Renewal Contract”);

WHEREAS, PVYWD and/or BBID has fully utilized through reasonable beneficial use all
water provided under the Original Contract, Interim Renewal Contracts, and Long-Term Renewal
Contract, either by receiving and delivering such water to lands within its CVP service area, or by
conserving and/or transferring such water in accordance with law;

WHEREAS, BBID considers the water it is entitled to receive under the Long-Term Renewal
Contract essential to its water supply;



WIIN Act

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2016, the 114th Congress of the United States of America
enacted the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (Public Law (Pub. L.) 114-322
(Dec. 16, 2016) 130 Stat. 1628), Section 4011 (a-d) and (f) (WIIN Act);

WHEREAS, Section 4011(a)(1) of the WIIN Act provides, “upon request of the confractor, the
Secretary of the Department of the Interior shall convert any water service contract in effect on the
date of enactment of this subtitle and between the United States and a [Contractor] to allow for
prepayment of the repayment contract pursuant to paragraph (2) under mutually agreeable terms
and conditions[;]”

WHEREAS, Section 4011 (a)(4XC) of the WIIN Act further provides that all contracts entered
into pursuant to Section 4011(a){1) shall “not modify other water service, repayment, exchange and
transfer contractual rights between the [Contractor], and [the United States], or any rights,
obligations, or relationships of the [Contractor] and their landowners as provided under State
law[;]"

BBID’s Repayment Contract

WHEREAS, upon BBID's request, the United States offered BBID a proposed contract to
allow for prepayment of BBID's repayment obligations, converting its Long-Term Renewal Contract
into a permanent repayment contract (Repayment Contract, attached hereto as Exhibit “A");

WHEREAS, the Repayment Contract provides BBID continued entitlement to water service
in accordance with substantially the same terms and conditions as the Long-Term Renewal Contract,
except the timing of payment (affecting price due to accrual of interest) and length;

WHEREAS, the Repayment Contract requires BBID to pay the remaining amount of
construction costs and/or other capitalized costs associated with the CVP that are allocable to BBID
{(Repayment Obligation) by a date certain;

WHEREAS, the United States estimates BBID’s Repayment Obligation is $2,210,535.00;
WHEREAS, upon execution, the Repayment Contract will be perpetual;

WHEREAS, it is imperative to BBID and its landowners that BBID execute the Repayment
Contract to continue its entitlement to CVP water delivery and to control costs associated with
BBID'’s repayment obligation to the United States;

WHEREAS, the BBID Board of Directors (Board) reviewed the terms of the Repayment
Contract, which provides that water will be diverted through the same CVP facilities as the water
diverted under the Original Contract, Interim Renewal Contracts, and Long-Term Renewal
Contract;



WHEREAS, BBID will distribute CVP water received through the same distribution system
as used for the Original Contract, Interim Renewal Contracts, and Long-Term Renewal Contract and
will deliver such CVP water under the Repayment Contract to the same lands within the BBID CVP
service area;

WHEREAS, BBID has copies of contracts, water delivery reports, crop information, and other
data supporting these findings;

California Environmental Quality Act

WHEREAS, the Board reviewed staff’'s Memorandum regarding Preliminary Environmental
Assessment for the Repayment Contract, which is on file with the Secretary of the Board, concluding
that BBID's actions in executing the Repayment Contract are exempt from environmental review
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the reasons set forth in the
memorandum;

Validation

WHEREAS, the Repayment Contract provides that after execution of the Repayment
Contract, BBID will provide to the United States a certified copy of a final decree of a court of
competent jurisdiction confirming BBID's proceedings for authorizing its execution of the
Repayment Contract.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The facts set forth in the recitals above and in the referenced documents are true and correct,
and the Board so finds and determines.

2. The Board further finds that:

A. Approval of the Repayment Project is not a “project” under CEQA, as defined in
California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15378, because it is merely a legal
and financial transaction that will not cause any physical impact on the environment.

B. If approval of the Repayment Contract is deemed a “project” under CEQA, it is
statutorily exempt from further environmental review under CEQA as an “on-going
project,” as defined in California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15261,
subdivision (a), because it is merely the continuation of a project approved, funded,
and fully operated prior to November 23, 1970, and no modification or alteration in
the facilities, or the amount of water entitled for delivery, is projected.

C. If approval of the Repayment Contract is deemed a “project” under CEQA, it is
categorically exempt from further environmental review under CEQA as “existing
facilities,” as defined in California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15301,



because it merely provides for the continued operation of existing facilities, involving
no or negligible expansion of use.

D. If approval of the Repayment Contract is deemed a “project” under CEQA, it is
exempt from further environmental review under CEQA’s “common sense”
exemption, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15061,
subdivision (b)(3), because there is no possibility that executing the Repayment
Contract may have a significant effect on the environment.

E. Approval of the Repayment Contract will not create any of the effects provided in
California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15300.2, regarding exceptions to
CEQA exemptions.

. The General Manager of BBID is authorized and directed to prepare and file within five (5)
days of the Board adopting this Resolution a Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk of
San Joaquin County for BBID's Repayment Contract, in accordance with the California Code
of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15062, Subdivision {c)(2).

. The Repayment Contract is in substantially the same form presented to the Board and on file
with the Secretary.

. The Board approves the Repayment Contract.

. The President, General Manager and Secretary of BBID are authorized and directed to
execute the Repayment Contract in substantially the same form presented to the Board,
subject to such additions, deletions, and revisions as the executing officers may approve prior

to execution. Execution provides conclusive proof of such approval.

The Board approves payment of the Repayment Obligation in the amount of $2,210,535.00.

. BBID' s officers, staff, and consultants are authorized and directed to take all additional

actions deemed necessary or appropriate to carry out the intent of this Resolution and to
ensure continued water service to BBID and its water users, including to file, as appropriate,
a validation action pursuant to Water Code section 23225.



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Rescheduled Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Byron Bethany
Irrigation District on 29 September, 2020 by the following vote:

Ayes: ALVAREZ, BROWN, ENOS, KAGEHIRO, M. MAGGIORE, T. MAGGIORE MUSCO,
PEREIRA, TUS0O

Noes:

Abstained:

Absent:

Russell Kagehiro, President

Secretary’s Certification
I, Kelley Geyet, Deputy Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Byron Bethany Itrigation District, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Resolution is a true and correct copy entered into the Minutes of the Meeting of 29 September, 2020 at which tlme a quorum was present,
and no motion to amend or rescind the above resolution was made,

Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary



B Lo NOL AW

©

Irrigation and M&I
Contract No.14-06-200-785-LTR[-P

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Central Valley Project, California

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES
AND
BYRON-BETHANY 1 ATIO STRICT

PROVIDING FOR PROJECT WATER SERVICE
FROM DELTA DIVISION AND FACILITIES REPAYMENT

TABLE OF TENTS

Title Page No.
Preamble .......oovurnee . 1
Explanatory Recitals cresssbesais cessrsassetias 2
Definitions. ....cocooucersssscscsrsurmsnsssnsnines . 7
Term of Contract — Right to Use of Water .... . 12
Water to be Made Available and Delivered to the Contractor 14
Time for Delivery of Water ... . 18
Point of Diversion and Responmbllnty for DIStl‘lbllthI'l of Water.......cvevvruervsvenns 20
Measurement of Water Within the Contractor’s Service Area 22
Rates, Method of Payment for Water and Accelerated Repayment of Facilities . 24
Non-Interest Bearing O&M Deficits ......... 34
Sales, Transfers, or Exchanges of Water ........ocuuierenrnesrennnisicicscsnccnanns .. 34
Application of Payments and Adjustments . .36
Temporary Reductions — Return FIOWS ...t 37
Constraints on the Availability of Water . S, 38
Unavoidable Groundwater Percolation vevesssssrseseeseseiesnessssssssns 30
Compliance with Federal Reclamation Laws ........c.ceeiiiirieiinrmrninncscnnnnscens 41
Protection of Water and Air QUality .....covveiviciciinioriasincasaniens |
Water Acquired by the Contractor Other Than From the United Stahes .. 42
Opinions and Determinations ......cveiicecininiiiniiiimm i ssssnsassasssssesens 45
Coordination and Cooperation..... rerestsrssrrsaseereraatats 46
Charges for Delinquent PAYMeEnts ... caiiiiinssimnsiinimsssssenins 43
Equal Employment Opportunity ... . . 48
General Obligation — Benefits Conditioned Upon Payment...........cccovevvveeienernns 50
Compliance with Civil Rights Laws and Regulations..... . 50




Article No.

23.
24,
25,
26.
27.
28,
29,
30.
31.
32,
33.
34,
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
4Q,
41,

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

Table of Contents = continued

Title Page No.
Privacy Act Compliance ... ; creeresssiressssseesnsessesees I 1
Contractor to Pay Certain Mlsccllaneous COSES vrerrrssenncecsermmrsssisssaesarserssnsannns 52
Water Conservation eeemtteteabansese e ettt ssbsbs st sssstestsnne D
Existing or Acquired Water or Water nghts ........................................................ 54
Operation and Maintenance by the Operating Non-Federal Entity .........cccceenee 54
Contingent on Appropriation or Allotment of Funds ... veveeererreresarins 56
Baooks, Records, and Reports 56
Assignment Limited — Successors and Assigns Obllgated ................................... 57
Severability ... e e eR e AT e s eEnEes 57
Resolution of Disputes ............................................... 58
Officials Not to Benefit... ereeerreeeeereseteatassisiass 9
Changes in Contractor’s Orgamzatlon and/or Service Area 59
Federal Laws........... et bs s s e b s s st asr s sans 60
Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 ceesesnsansesasasasrsssrsroresasrenersansnsns OU
Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities ..........cooviicininccniicnnssiinnnn. 60
NOICES woveraccerrnerrrernr e sierresssssssransmnnsaes reetreeenesenannennens 61

Medium for Transmitting Payment.............ccocevicimmcnininnininiinsincncscsicsnsssssssssseans 01
Contract Drafting Considerations .............ccoevvvivnsineriesnnenisssssssssnesssssesssorsesassses 01
Confirmation of Contract........... cererranseenes SR . 7.
SigNAtUPe PAZE ...civiiiiiiirininnnrnrenrenseciisiiininissisies s s ssssississssssssssssssissssssssssssassasss 63

Exhibit A — Map of Contractor’s Service Area
Exhibit B — Rates and Charges
Exhibit C — Repayment Obligation



wn

10

11

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Central Valley Project, California

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES
AND
BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PROVIDING FOR PROJECT WATER SERVICE
FROM DELTA DIVISION AND FACILITIES REPAYMENT

THIS CONTRACT, made this ___ day of , 20XX, in

pursuance generally of the Act of June 17, 1902, (32 Stat. 388), and acts amendatory thereof or
supplementary thereto, including but not limited to, the Acts of August 26, 1937 (50 Stat. 844),
as amended and supplemented, August 4, 1939 (53 Stat. 1187), as amended and supplemented,
July 2, 1956 (70 Stat. 483), June 21, 1963 (77 Stat. 68), October 12, 1982 (96 Stat. 1263),
October 27, 1986 (100 Stat. 3050), as amended. Title XXXIV of the Act of October 30, 1992
(106 Stat. 4706), as amended. and the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act
(Public Law (Pub. L.) 114-322, 130 Stat. 1628), Section 4011 (a-d) and (f) (“WIIN Act”), all
collectively hereinafter referred to as Federal Reclamation law, between the UNITED STATES
OF AMERICA, hereinafter referred to as the United States, represented by the officer executing
this Contract, hereinafter referred to as the Contracting Officer, and BYRON-BETHANY
IRRIGATION DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, a public agency of the State
of California, duly organized. existing, and acting pursuant to the laws thereof;

WITNESSETH, That:



15

15

17

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

3

32

3

34

35

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

EXPLANATORY RECITALS

[1] WHEREAS, the United States has constructed and is operating the
California Central Valley Project (Project), for diversion, storage, carriage, distribution, and
beneficial use, for flood control, irrigation, municipal, domestic, industrial, fish and
wildlife mitigation, protection and restoration, generation and distribution of electric energy,
salinity control, navigation, and other beneficial uses, of waters of the Sacramento River,
the American River, the Trinity River, and the San Joaquin River and their tributaries;
and

[2™] WHEREAS, the United States constructed the Delta-Mendota Canal and
related facilities, which will be used in part for the furnishing of water to the Contractor
pursuant to the terms of this Contract; and

[3¥] WHEREAS, the rights to Project Water were acquired by the United
States pursuant to California law for operation of the Project; and

[4““] WHEREAS, the United States and the Contractor entered into
Contract No. 14-06-200-7835, as amended, which in Part A thereof, established terms for the
delivery to the Contractor of Project Water from the Delta Division facilities from May 22,
1953, though February 28, 1994; and

[5"] WHEREAS, the United States and the Contractor have pursuant to
Subsection 3404(c)(1) of the Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA),
subsequently entered into interim renewal contract(s) identified as Contract No. 14-06-

200-785-IR1 and subsequent Interim Renewal Contracts 14-06-200-785-IR2 through 14-06-



36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

45

46

47

48

49

50

31

32

53

54

53

56

57

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

200-785-1R 10, which provided for water service to the Contractor from March 1, 1994
through February 28, 2006; and

[6"] WHEREAS, the United States and the Contractor entered into a long-term
contract identified as Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1, hereinafter referred to as the Existing
Contract, which provided for the continued water service to the Contractor following expiration
of Contract No. 14-06-200-785-IR 10, and which was in effect the date the WIIN Act was
enacted; and

[7*"] WHEREAS, Plain View Water District and Byron-Bethany
Irrigation District determined that consolidation of the two districts would improve
the administrative efficiency of the districts and enhance the districts® stability; and

[8"] WHEREAS, San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission
approved consolidation of Plain View Water District and Byron-Bethany Irrigation
District on August 12, 2004, by dissolving Plain View Water District and
reorganizing the territory to Byron-Bethany Irrigation District; and

[9'*] WHEREAS, the consolidation referred to in the preceding two
explanatory recitals did not, in any manner, change the area to which the Project
Water may be delivered pursuant to the Existing Contract; and

[10™ WHEREAS, on December 16, 2016, the 114" Congress of the United
States of America enacted the WIIN Act; and

(11" WHEREAS, Section 4011(a)(1) provides that “upon request of the
contractor, the Secretary of the Interior shall convert any water service contract in effect on the

date of enactment of this subtitle and between the United States and a waier users’ association



58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

[Contractor] to allow for prepayment of the repayment contract pursuant to paragraph (2) under
mutually agreeable terms and conditions.”; and

[12%] WHEREAS, Section 4011(a)(1) further provides that “the manner of
conversion under this paragraph shall be as follows: (A) Water service contracts that were
entered into under section (e) of the Act of August 4, 1939 (53 Stat. 1196), to be converted under
this section shall be converted to repayment contracts under section 9(d) of that Act (53 Stat.
1195)”; and “(B) Water service contracts that were entered under subsection (c)(2) of section 9
of the Act of August 4, 1939 (53 Stat. 1194), to be converted under this section shall be
converted to a contract under subsection (c)(1) of section 9 of that Act (53 Stat. 1195).”; and

[13*" WHEREAS, Section 4011(a)(4)(C) further provides all contracts entered
into pursuant to Section 4011(a)(1), (2), and (3) shal! “not modify other water service,
repayment, exchange and transfer contractual rights between the water users’ association
[Contractor], and the Bureau of Reclamation, or any rights, obligations, or relationships of the
water users’ association [Contractor] and their landowners as provided under State law.”; and

[14%] WHEREAS, Section 4011(d)(3) and (4) of the WIIN Act provides that
“implementation of the provisions of this subtitle shall not alter...(3) the priority of a water
service or repayment contractor to receive water; or (4) except as expressly provided in this
section, any obligations under the Federal Reclamation law, including the continuation of
Restoration Fund charges pursuant to section 3407(d) (Pub. L. 102-575), of the water service and
repayment contractors making prepayments pursuant to this section.”; and

[15"] WHEREAS, upon the request of the Contractor, the WIIN Act directs the

Secretary to convert irrigation water service contracts and municipal and industrial (M&!) water



g0

81

82

33

34

35

86

87

88

89

9

93

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

service contracts into repayment contracts, amend existing repayment contracts, and allow
contractors to prepay their construction cost obligations pursuant to applicable Federal
Reclamation law; and

[16"] WHEREAS, the United States has determined that the Contractor
has fulfilled all of its obligations under the Existing Contract; and

[17"] WHEREAS, the Contractor has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the
Contracting Officer that the Contractor has utilized the Project Water supplies available
to it for reasonable and beneficial use and/or has demonstrated future demand for water
use such that the Contractor has the capability and expects to utilize fully for reasonable
and beneficial use the quantity of Project Water to be made available to it pursuant to
this Contract; and

[18%] WHEREAS, water obtained from the Project has been relied upon by
urban and agricultural areas within California for more than 50 years, and is considered
by the Contractor as an essential portion of its water supply; and

[19%] WHEREAS, the economies of regions within the Project, including the
Contractor’s, depend upon the continued availability of water, including water service
from the Project; and

[20%] WHEREAS, the Secretary intends through coordination, cooperation, and
partnerships to pursue measures to improve water supply, water quality, and reliability of the
Project for all Project purposes; and

{21%'] WHEREAS, the mutual goals of the United States and the Contractor

include: to provide for reliable Project Water supplies; to control costs of those supplies;



102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

11

12

13

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

to achieve repayment of the Project as required by law; to guard reasonably against Project
Water shortages; to achieve a reasonable balance among competing demands for use of
Praject Water; and to comply with all applicable environmental statutes, all consistent with
the legal obligations of the United States relative to the Project; and

[22"] WHEREAS, the parties intend by this Contract to maintain a cooperative
relationship in order to achieve their mutual goals; and

[23%) WHEREAS, the Contractor has utilized or may utilize transfers, contract
assignments, rescheduling, and conveyance of Project Water and non-Project water under this
Contract as tools to minimize the impacts of a Condition of Shortage and to maximize the
beneficial use of water; and

[24'*] WHEREAS, the parties desire and intend that this Contract not provide a
disincentive to the Contractor in continuing to carry out the beneficial activities set out in
the Explanatory Recital immediately above; and

[25%] WHEREAS, the Contracting Officer and the Contractor agree that this
Contract complies with Section 4011 of the WIIN Act; and

[26") WHEREAS, the Contracting Officer and the Contractor agree to amend
and convert the Existing Contract pursuant to section 4011 of the WIIN Act and other Federal
Reclamation law on the terms and conditions set forth below;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual and dependent covenants

herein contained, it is hereby mutually agreed by the parties hercto as follows:



122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

140

141

142

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

DEFINITIONS

1. When used herein unless otherwise distinctly expressed, or manifestly
incompatible with the intent of the parties as expressed in this Contract, the term:

(a) “Additional Capital Obligation” shall mean construction costs or other
capitalized costs incurred after the Effective Date or not reflected in the Existing Capital
Obligation as defined herein and in accordance with Section 4011, subsection (2)(2)(B) and
(a)(3)(B) of the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (Pub. L. 114-322, 130
Stat. 1628) (“WIIN Act”);

(b)  “Calendar Year” shall mean the period January 1 through December 31,
both dates inclusive;

(¢)  “Charges” shall mean the payments required by Federal Reclamation law
in addition to the Rates and Tiered Pricing Component specified in this Contract as
determined annually by the Contracting Officer pursuant to this Contract;

(d)  “Condition of Shortage” shall mean a condition respecting the Project
during any Year such that the Contracting Officer is unable to deliver sufficient water to meet the
Contract Total;

(e) “Contracting Officer” shall mean the Secretary of the Interior's duly
authorized representative acting pursuant to this Contract or applicable Federal Reclamation law
or regulation;

® “Contract Total” shall mean the maximum amount of water to which the

Contractor is entitled under subdivision (a) of Article 3 of this Contract;



143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

(g) “Contractor's Service Area” shall mean the area to which the Contractor is
permitted to provide Project Water under this Contract as described in Exhibit “A”
attached hereto, which may be modified from time to time in accordance with Article 34
of this Contract without amendment of this Contract;

(h)  “CVPIA” shall mean the Central Valley Project Improvement Act, Title
XXXIV of the Act of October 30, 1992 (106 Stat. 4706);

) “Delta Division Facilities” shall mean those existing and future Project
facilities in and south of the Sacramento-San Joaguin Rivers Delta, including, but not
limited to, the C.W. “Bill” Jones Pumping Plant, the O"Neiill Forebay, the O'Neill
Pumping/Generating Plant, and the San Luis Reservoir, used to divert, store, and convey
water to those Project Contractors entitled to receive water conveyed through the Delta-
Mendota Canal;

)] “Eligible Lands” shall mean all lands to which Irrigation Water may be
delivered in accordance with Section 204 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (96 Stat.
1263), as amended;

(k)  “Excess Lands™ shall mean all lands in excess of the limitations
contained in Section 204 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982, other than those lands
exempt from acreage limitation under Federal Reclamation law;

) “Existing Capital Obligation” shall mean the remaining amount of
construction costs or other capitalized costs allocable to the Contractor as described in section
4011, subsections (a)(2){A) and (a)(3)(A) of the WIIN Act, and as identified in the Central

Valley Project Irrigation Water Rates and/or Municipal and Industrial Water Rates, respectively,



166

167

168

169

170

171

172

176

177

178

179

180

181

184
185
186

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

dated Month/Day/Year [specify ratebook year for all contractors.] [contractor specific to
address the intertie], as adjusted to reflect payments not reflected in such schedule. The
Contracting Officer has computed the Existing Capital Obligation and such amount is set forth in
Exhibit “C”, which is incorporated herein by reference:

(m)  “Full Cost Rate” shall mean an annual rate, as determined by the
Contracting Officer that shall amortize the expenditures for construction properly
allocable to the Project irrigation or M&I functions, as appropriate, of facilities in
service including all O&M deficits funded, less payments, over such periods as may be
required under Federal Reclamation law, or applicable contract provisions. Interest will
accrue on both the construction expenditures and funded O&M deficits from October 12,
1982, on costs outstanding at that date, or from the date incurred in the case of costs
arising subsequent to October 12 1982, and shall be calculated in accordance with
subsections 202(3)(B) and (3)(C) of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982. The Full Cost
Rate includes actual operation, maintenance, and replacement costs consistent with
Section 426.2 of the Rules and Regulations for the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982:

(n) “Ineligible Lands™ shall mean all lands to which Irrigation Water may
not be delivered in accordance with Section 204 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982;

(o)  “Irrigation Full Cost Water Rate™ shall mean the Full Cost Rate
applicable to the delivery of Irrigation Water;

(p)  “Irrigation Water” shall mean the use of Project Water to irrigate

lands primarily for the production of commercial agricultural crops or livestock, and
domestic and other uses that are incidental thereto;



187
188
189
190

191
192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

207

208

209

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

(q)  “Landholder” shall mean a party that directly or indirectly owns or

leases nonexempt land, as provided in 43 CFR 426.2;
(r) “Municipal and Industrial (M&I) Water” shall mean the use of Praject
Water for municipal, industrial, and miscellaneous other purposes not falling under the

definition of “Irrigation Water” or within another category of water use under an
applicable Federal authority;

(s) “M&I Full Cost Water Rate” shall mean the Full Cost Rate
applicable to the delivery of M&1 Water;

(t) “Operation and Maintenance” or “O&M” shall mean normal and
reasonable care, control, operation, repair, replacement (other than capital replacement),
and maintenance of Project facilities;

{u)  “Operating Non-Federal Entity” shall mean the entity(ies), its (their)
successors or assigns, which has (have) the obligation to operate and maintain all or a
portion of the Delta Division Facilities pursuant to written agreement(s) with the United
States. When this Contract was entered into, the Operating Non-Federal Entity was the
San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority;

(v)  “Project” shall meen the Central Valley Project owned by the United
States and managed by the Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation;

(w)  “Project Contractors” shall mean all parties who have contracts for
water service for Project Water from the Project with the United States pursuant to Federal
Reclamation law;

(x)  “Project Water” shall mean all water that is developed, diverted,

stored, or delivered by the Secretary in accordance with the statutes authorizing the

10



210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229

230

23

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-L.TR1-P

Project and in accordance with the terms and conditions of water rights acquired
pursuant to California law;

()  “Rates” shall mean the payments determined annually by the
Contracting Officer in accordance with the then-current applicable water ratesetting
policies for the Project, as described in subdivision (a) of Article 7 of this Contract;

(2z)  “Recent Historic Average” shall mean the most recent five (5)-year
average of the final forecast of Water Made Available to the Contractor pursuant to this
Contract or its preceding contract(s);

(aa) “Repayment Qbligation” for Water Delivered as Irrigation Water shall
mean the Existing Capital Obligation discounted by ' of the Treasury rate, which shall be the
amount due and payable to the United States, pursuant to section 4011(a)(2)(A) of the WIIN Act;
and for Water Delivered as M&I Water shall mean the amount due and payable to the United
States, pursuant to section 4011(a)(3)(A) of the WIIN Act;

(bb) “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Interior, a duly appointed
successor, or an authorized representative acting pursuant to any authority of the
Secretary and through any agency of the Department of the Interior;

(ce) “Tiered Pricing Component” shall be the incremental amount to be
paid for each acre-foot of Water Delivered as described in Article 7 of this Contract and
as provided for in Exhibit “B”;

(dd) “Water Delivered” or “Delivered Water™ shall mean Project Water
diverted for use by the Contractor at the point(s) of delivery approved by the Contracting

Officer;

1



Contract No. 14-06-200-785-1.'TR1-P

232 (ee) “Water Made Available” shall mean the estimated amount of

233 Project Water that can be delivered to the Contractor for the upcoming Year as declared
234 by the Contracting Officer, pursuant to subdivision (a) of Article 4 of this Contract:

235 (ffy  “Water Scheduled™ shall mean Project Water made available to the

236 Contractor for which times and quantities for delivery have been established by the

237 Contractor and Contracting Officer, pursuant to subdivision (b) of Article 4 of this Contract;
238 and

239 gg)  “Year” shall mean the period from and including March 1 of each

240  Calendar Year through the last day of February of the following Calendar Year.

241 TERM OF CONTRACT — RIGHT TO USE OF WATER

242 2 (a) This Contract shall be effective | Effective Date], hereinafter known as the
243 “Effective Date”, and shall continue so long as the Contractor pays applicable Rates and Charges
244 under this Contract, consistent with Section 9(d) or 9(c)(1) of the Act of August 4, 1939 (53 Stat.
245 1195) as applicable, and applicable law;

246 (1) Provided, That the Contracting Officer shall not seek to terminate
247  this Contract for failure to fully or timely pay applicable Rates and Charges by the Contactor.
248 unless the Contracting Officer has first provided at least sixty (60) calendar days written notice
249 to the Contractor of such failure to pay and the Contractor has failed to cure such failure to pay,
250 or to diligently commence and maintain full curative payments satisfactory to the Contracting
251 Officer within the sixty (60) calendar days’ notice period:

252 (2) Provided, further, That the Contracting Officer shall not seek to

253 suspend making water available or declaring Water Made Available pursuant to this Contract for



254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

27

272

2n

274

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

non-compliance by the Contractor with the terms of this Contract or Federal law, unless the
Contracting Officer has first provided at least thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the
Contractor and the Contractor has failed to cure such non-compliance, or to diligently commence
curative actions satisfactory to the Contracting Officer for a non-compliance that cannot be fully
cured within the thirty (30) calendar days’ notice period. If the Contracting Officer has
suspended making water available pursuant to this paragraph, upon cure of such non-compliance
satisfactory to the to the Contracting Officer, the Contracting Officer shall resume making water
available and declaring Water Made Available pursuant to this Contract;

(3)  Provided, further, That this Contract may be terminated at any
time by mutual consent of the parties hereto.

(b)  Upon complete payment of the Repayment Obligation by the Contractor,
and notwithstanding any Additional Capital Obligation that may later be established, the acreage
limitations, reporting, and Full Cost pricing provisions of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982,
and subdivisions (j) Eligible Lands, (k) Excess Lands, and (n) Ineligible Lands, of Article 1 of
this Contract shall no longer be applicable.

()  Notwithstanding any provision of this Contract, the Contractor reserves
and shall have all rights and benefits under the Act of July 2, 1956 (70 Stat. 483), to the extent
allowed by law.

(d)  Notwithstanding any provision of this Contract, the Contractor reserves
and shall have all rights and benefits under the Act of June 21, 1963 (77 Stat. 68), to the extent

allowed by law.

13



275

276

277

278

279

280

231

282

283

234

285

286

287

288

289

290

29]

292

293

294

295

296

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-1.TR1-P

WATER TO BE E AVAILABLE AND DELIVERED TO THE C RACTOR

3. (a)  During each Year, consistent with all applicable State water rights
permits, and licenses, Federal law, and subject to the provisions set forth in Articles 11 and
12 of this Contract, the Contracting Officer shall make available for delivery to the
Contractor 20,600 acre-feet of Project Water for irrigation and M&I purposes. Water
Delivered to the Contractor in accordance with this subdivision shall be scheduled and
paid for pursuant to the provisions of Articles 4 and 7 of this Contract.

(b)  Because the capacity of the Project to deliver Project Water has been
constrained in recent years and may be constrained in the future due to many factors
including hydrologic conditions and implementation of Federal and State laws, the
likelihood of the Contractor actually receiving the amount of Project Water set out in
subdivision (a) of this Article in any given Year is uncertain. The Contracting Officer's
modeling referenced in the programmatic environmental impact statement prepared
pursuant to Section 3404(c) of the CVPIA projected that the Contract Total set forth in
this Contract will not be available to the Contractor in many years. During the most recent five
years prior to execution of the Existing Contract, the Recent Historic Average Water Made
Available to the Contractor was 13,555 acre-feet. Nothing in this subdivision (b) of this Article
shall affect the rights and obligations of the parties under any provision of this Contract.

(©) The Contractor shall utilize the Project Water in accordance with all
applicable legal requirements.

{1)  Inthe event any Project Contractor (other than a Cross Valley

Contractor) that receives Project Water through the Delta Division Facilities obtains a

14



297

208

259

300

an

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

3n

312

313

314

3is

36

317

318

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

contractual agreement that the Contracting Officer shall make Project Water available at
a point or points of delivery in or north of the Delta, at the request of the Contractor and
upon completion of any required environmental documentation, this Contract shall be
amended to provide for deliveries in or north of the Delta on mutually agreeable terms.

Such amendments to this Contract shall be limited solely to those changes made necessary by
the addition of such alternate points of delivery in or north of the Delta; Provided, That
the Contracting Officer's use of the Harvey O. Banks Pumping Plant to deliver Project
Water does not trigger this right of amendment.

(d)  The Contractor shall make reasonable and beneficial use of all water
furnished pursuant to this Contract. Groundwater recharge programs (direct, indirect, or
in lieu), groundwater banking programs, surface water storage programs, and other
similar programs utilizing Project Water or other water furnished pursuvant to this
Contract conducted within the Contractor's Service Area which are consistent with
applicable State law and result in use consistent with Federal Reclamation law will be
allowed; Provided. That any direct recharge program(s) is (are) described in the
Contractor's water conservation plan submitted pursuant to Article 25 of this Contract;
Provided, further, That such water conservation plan demonstrates sufficient lawful uses
exist in the Contractor's Service Area so that using a long-term average, the quantity of
Delivered Water is demonstrated to be reasonable for such uses and in compliance with
Federal Reclamation law. Groundwater recharge programs, groundwater banking
programs, surface water storage programs, and other similar programs utilizing Project

Water or other water furnished pursuant to this Contract conducted outside the

15



319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332

333

334

335

336

337

338

339

340

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

Contractor's Service Area may be permitted upon written approval of the Contracting
Officer, which approval will be based upon environmental documentation, Project Water
rights, and Project operational concerns. The Contracting Officer will address such
concerns in regulations, policies, or guidelines.

(e) The Contractor shall comply with requirements applicable to the
Contractor in biological opinion(s) prepared as a result of a consultation regarding the execution
of any water service contract between the Contracting Officer and the Contractor in effect
immediately prior to the Effective Date undertaken pursuant to Section 7 of the Endangered
Species Act of 1973 (ESA), as amended, that are within the Contractor's legal authority to
implement. The Existing Contract, which evidences in excess of 50 years of diversions for
irrigation and/or M&1 purposes of the quantities of Project Water provided in subdivision (a) of
Article 3 of this Contract, will be considered in developing an appropriate baseline for any
required biological assessment(s) prepared pursuant to the ESA, and any other needed
environmental review. Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the Contractor from
challenging or seeking judicial relief in a court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any
biological opinion or other environmental documentation referred to in this Article.

H Following the declaration of Water Made Available under Article 4 of
this Contract, the Contracting Officer will make a determination whether Project Water, or
other water available to the Project, can be made available to the Contractor in addition to
the Contract Total under this Article during the Year without adversely impacting other
Project Contractors. At the request of the Contractor, the Contracting Officer will

consult with the Contractor prior to making such a determination. If the Contracting



341

342

343

344

345

346

347

348

349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

359

360

361

362

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

Officer determines that Project Water, or other water available to the Project, can be
made available to the Contractor, the Contracting Officer will announce the availability of
such water and shall so notify the Contractor as soon as practical. The Contracting
Officer will thereafter meet with the Contractor and other Project Contractors capable of
taking such water to determine the most equitable and efficient allocation of such water.
If the Contractor requests the delivery of any quantity of such water, the Contracting
Officer shall make such water available to the Contractor in accordance with applicable
statutes, regulations, guidelines, and policies. Subject to existing long-term contractual
commitments, water rights, and operational constraints, long-term Project Contractors shall
have a first right to acquire such water, including Project Water made available pursuant
to Section 215 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982.

(g)  The Contractor may request permission to reschedule for use during
the subsequent Year some or all of the Water Made Available to the Contractor during
the current Year, referred to as “rescheduled water.” The Contractor may request
permission to use during the current Year a quantity of Project Water which may be
made available by the United States to the Contractor during the subsequent Year referred
to as “preuse.” The Contracting Officer’s written approval may permit such uses in
accordance with applicable statutes, regulations, guidelines, and policies.

(h)  The Contractor’s right pursuant to Federal Reclamation law and
applicable State law to the reasonable and beneficial use of the Water Delivered pursuant to
this Contract shall not be disturbed, and this Contract shall continue so long as the

Contractor pays applicable Rates and Charges under this Contract consistent with Section

17



363

364

365

366

367

Jo8

369

370

7

3n2

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

384

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

9(d) or 9(c)(1) of the Act of August 4, 1939 (53 Stat. 1195} as applicable, and applicable
law. Nothing in the preceding sentence shall affect the Contracting Officer’s ability to impose
shortages under Article 11 or subdivision (b) of Article 12 of this Contract.

(i) Project Water furnished to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract
may be delivered for purposes other than those described in subdivisions (p) and (r) of
Article 1 of this Contract upon written approval by the Contracting Officer in
accordance with the terms and conditions of such approval.

)] The Contracting Officer shall make reasonable efforts to protect the
water rights necessary for the Project and to provide the water available under this Contract.
The Contracting Officer shall not object to participation by the Contractor, in the capacity
and to the extent permitted by law, in administrative proceedings related to the Project
Water rights; Provided, That the Contracting Officer retains the right to object to the
substance of the Contractor's position in such a proceeding; Provided, further. That in
such proceedings the Contracting Officer shall recognize the Contractor has a legal right
under the terms of this Contract to use Project Water.

TIME FOR DELIVERY OF WATER

4, (a)  On or about February 20 each Calendar Year, the Contracting Officer
shall announce the Contracting Officer's expected declaration of the Water Made
Available. Such declaration will be expressed in terms of Water Made Available and
the Recent Historic Average and will be updated monthly, and more frequently if
necessary, based on the then-current operational and hydrologic conditions and a new

declaration with changes, if any, to the Water Made Available will be made. The



383

386

387

388

389

390

33

392

393

394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

Contracting Officer shall provide forecasts of Project operations and the basis of the
estimate, with relevant supporting information, upon the written request of the
Contractor. Concurrently with the declaration of the Water Made Available, the
Contracting Officer shall provide the Contractor with the updated Recent Historic
Average.

(b)  On or before each March 1 and at such other times as necessary, the
Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer a written schedule, satisfactory to the
Contracting Officer, showing the monthly quantities of Project Water to be delivered by
the United States to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract for the Year commencing
on such March 1. The Contracting Officer shall use all reasonable means to deliver
Project Water according to the approved schedule for the Year commencing on such
March 1.

(¢)  The Contractor shall not schedule Project Water in excess of the
quantity of Project Water the Contractor intends to put to reasonable and beneficial use
within the Contractor's Service Area or to sell, transfer, or exchange pursuant to Article
9 of this Contract during any Year.

(d)  Subject to the conditions set forth in subdivision (a) of Article 3 of this
Contract, the United States shall deliver Project Water to the Contractor in accordance
with the initial schedule submitted by the Contractor pursuant to subdivision (b) of this
Article, or any written revision(s) thereto satisfactory to the Contracting Officer, submitted
within a reasonable time prior to the date(s) on which the requested change(s) is/are to be

implemented.

19



407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

49

420

42]

422

423

424

425

426

427

428

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

POINT OF DIVERSION AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR DISTRIBUTION OF WATER
5. (a8)  Project Water scheduled pursuant to subdivision (b) of Article 4 of this
Contract shall be delivered to the Contractor at a point or points on the Delta-Mendota
Canal and any additional point or points of delivery either on Project facilities or another
location or locations mutually agreed to in writing by the Contracting Officer and the
Contractor.

(b)  The Contracting Officer, either directly or indirectly through its
written agreements(s) with the QOperating Non-Federal Entity(ies), shall make all
reasonable efforts to maintain sufficient flows and levels of water in the Project facilities
to deliver Project Water to the Contractor at the point or points of delivery established
pursuant to subdivision (a) of this Article.

(c)  The Contractor shall deliver [rrigation Water in accordance with any
applicable land classification provisions of Federal Reclamation law and the associated
regulations. The Contractor shall not deliver Project Water to land outside the
Contractor's Service Area unless approved in advance by the Contracting Officer.

(d)  All Water Delivered to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall
be measured and recorded with equipment furnished, installed, operated, and maintained
by the Contracting Officer either directly or indirectly through its written agreements(s)
with the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), unless undertaken by the Contractor with
the consent of the Contracting Officer at the point or points of delivery established
pursuant to subdivision (a) of this Article. Upon the request of either party to this

Contract, the Contracting Officer shall investigate, or cause to be investigated by the

20



429

430

431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

appropriate Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), the accuracy of such measurements and
shall take any necessary steps to adjust any errors appearing therein. For any period of
time when accurate measurements have not been made, the Contracting Officer shall
consult with the Contractor and the appropriate Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), if any,
prior to making a final determination of the quantity delivered for that period of time.
(e)  Absent a separate contrary written agreement with the Contractor,
neither the Contracting Officer nor any Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies) shall be
responsible for the control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or distribution of Water
Delivered to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract beyond the point or points of
delivery established pursuant to subdivision (2) of this Article. The Contractor shall
indemnify the United States, its officers, employees, agents, and assigns on account of
damage or claim of damage of any nature whatsocever for which there is legal
responsibility, including property damage, personal injury, or death arising out of or
connected with the control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or distribution of such Water
Delivered beyond such point or points of delivery except for any damage or claim arising
out of: (i) acts or omissions of the Contracting Officer or any of its officers, employees,
agents, and assigns, including the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies) with the intent of
creating the situation resulting in any damage or claim; {ii) willful misconduct of the
Contracting Officer or any of its officers, employees, agents, and assigns, including the
Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies); (iii) negligence of the Contracting Officer or any of its

officers, employees, agents, and assigns, including the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies); or

21



450

451

452

453

454

455

456

457

438

459

460

461

462

463

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

(iv) a malfunction of facilities owned and/or operated by the United States or the Operating

Non-Federal Entity(ies).

MEASUREMENT OF WATER WITHIN THE CONTRACTOR’S SERVICE AREA

6. (a)  The Contractor has established a measuring program satisfactory to
the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall ensure that all surface water delivered for
irrigation purposes within the Contractor's Service Area is measured at each agricultural
turnout and such water delivered for M&I purposes is measured at each M&I service
connection. The water measuring devices or water measuring methods of comparable
effectiveness must be acceptable to the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shali be
responsible for installing, operating, maintaining, and repairing all such measuring devices
and implementing all such water measuring methods at no cost to the United States. The
Contractor shall use the information obtained from such water measuring devices or
water measuring methods to ensure its proper management of the water; to bill water users for
water delivered by the Contractor; and, if applicable, to record water delivered for M&I
purposes by customer class as defined in the Contractor's water conservation plan
provided for in Article 25 of this Contract. Nothing herein contained, however, shall
preclude the Contractor from establishing and collecting any charges, assessments, or
other revenues authorized by California law. The Contractor shall include a summary of
all its annual surface water deliveries in the annual report described in subdivision (c) of
Article 25 of this Contract.

(b)  To the extent the information has not otherwise been provided, upon

execution of this Contract, the Contractor shall provide to the Contracting Officer a written

22



472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

434

485

486

487

488

489

490

491

492

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

report deseribing the measurement devices or water measuring methods being used or to
be used to implement subdivision (a) of this Article and identifying the agricultural
turnouts and the M&I service connections or alternative measurement programs
approved by the Contracting Officer, at which such measurement devices or water
measuring methods are being used, and, if applicable, identifying the locations at which
such devices and/or methods are not yet being used including a time schedule for
implementation at such locations. The Contracting Officer shall advise the Contractor
in writing within 60 days as to the adequacy and necessary modifications, if any, of the
measuring devices or water measuring methods identified in the Contractor’s report and
if the Contracting Officer does not respond in such time, they shall be deemed adequate.
If the Contracting Officer notifies the Contractor that the measuring devices or methods
are inadequate, the parties shall within 60 days following the Contracting Officer's
response, negotiate in good faith the earliest practicable date by which the Contractor shall
modify said measuring devices and/or measuring methods as required by the Contracting
Officer to ensure compliance with subdivision () of this Article.

(¢}  All new surface water delivery systems installed within the Contractor's
Service Area after the Effective Date shall also comply with the measurement
provisions described in subdivision (a) of this Article.

(d)  The Contractor shall inform the Contracting Officer and the State of
California in writing by April 30 of each Year of the monthly volume of surface water

delivered within the Contractor's Service Area during the previous Year.

23



493

494

495

496
497

498

499

500

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

51

512

513

314

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR!-P

(e)  The Contractor shall inform the Contracting Officer and the Operating
Non-Federal Entity(ies) on or before the 20" calendar day of each month of the quantity
of Irrigation Water and M&I Water taken during the preceding month.

RATES, METHOD OF PAYMENT FOR WATER AND ACCELERATED
REPAYMENT OF FACILITIES

7. {a)  Notwithstanding the Contractor’s full prepayment of the
Repayment Obligation pursuant to section 4011, subsection (a)}(2)(A) and subsection
(a)(3)(A) of the WIIN Act, as set forth in Exhibit “C”, and any payments required
pursuant to section 4011, subsection (b} of the WIIN Act, to reflect the adjustment for
the final cost allocation as described in this Article, subsection (b), the Contractor’s
Project construction and other obligations shall be determined in accordance with: (i)
the Secretary’s ratesetting policy for Irrigation Water adopted in 1988 and the Secretary's
then-existing ratesetting policy for M&i Water, consistent with the WIIN Act; and such
ratesetting policies shall be amended, modified, or superseded only through a public
notice and comment procedure; (ii) applicable Federal Reclamation law and associated
rules and regulations, or policies, and (iii} other applicable provisions of this Contract.
Payments shall be made by cash transaction, electronic funds transfers, or any other
mechanism as may be agreed to in writing by the Contractor and the Contracting Officer.
The Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing Component applicable to the Contractor upon
execution of this Contract are set forth in Exhibit “B”, as may be revised annually.

(1)  The Contractor shall pay the United States as provided for in this

Article of this Contract for all Delivered Water at Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing

24



515

516

517

518

519

LN
(2%
n

533

534

535

536

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-L.' TR 1-P

Component in accordance with policies for Irrigation Water and M&I Water. The Contractor’s
Rates shall be established to recover its estimated reimbursable costs included in the operation
and maintenance component of the Rate and amounts established to recover deficits and other
charges, if any, including construction costs as identified in the following subdivisions.

(2) In accordance with the WIIN Act, the Contractor’s allocable share
of Project construction costs will be repaid pursuant to the provisions of this Contract.

(A)  The amount due and payable to the United States, pursuant
to the WIIN Act, shall be the Repayment Obligation. The Repayment Obligation has been
computed by the Contracting Officer in a manner consistent with the WIIN Act and is set forth
as a lump sum payment (M&I and Irrigation) and as four (4) approximately equal annual
installments (Irrigation Only) to be repaid no later than three (3) years after the Effective Date as
set forth in Exhibit “C”. There could be one or two exhibits in most cases due to more than
one service area [For Irrigation contractors and M&I contractors] The Repayment
Obligation is due in lump sum by [Month Day, Year] as provided by the WIIN Act. The
Contractor must provide appropriate notice to the Contracting Officer in writing no later than
thirty (30) days prior to |[Month Day, Year| [Division Level: consider the effective date of
the contract being converted] if electing to repay the amount due using the lump sum
alternative. If such notice is not provided by such date, the Contractor shall be deemed to have
elected the installment payment alternative, in which case, the first such payment shall be made
no later than [Month Day, Year| [Division Level: consider the effective date of the contract
being converted]. The second payment shall be made no later than the first anniversary of the

first payment date. The third payment shall be made no later than the second anniversary of the



554

355

556

557

n
n
oo

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

first payment date. The final payment shall be made no later than [Month Day, Year| [no later
than the third anniversary of the effective date of the contract]. If the installment payment
option is elected by the Contractor, the Contractor may pre-pay the remaining portion of the
Repayment Obligation by giving the Contracting Officer sixty (60) days written notice, in which
case, the Contracting Officer shall re-compute the remaining amount due to reflect the pre-
payment using the same methodology as was used to compute the initial annual installment
payment amount, which is illustrated in Exhibit “C”. Notwithstanding any Additional Capital
Obligation that may later be established, receipt of the Contractor’s payment of the Repayment
Obligation to the United States shall fully and permanently satisfy the Existing Capital
Obligation.

(B)  Additional Capital Obligations that are not reflected in, the
schedules referenced in Exhibit “C” and properly assignable to the Contractor, shall be repaid as
prescribed by the WIIN Act without interest except as required by law. Consistent with Federal
Reclamation law, interest shall continue to accrue on the M&I portion of the Additional Capital
Obligation assigned to the Contractor until such costs are paid. Increases or decreases in the
Additional Capital Obligation assigned to the Contractor caused solely by annual adjustment of
the Additional Capital Obligation assigned to each Project contractor by the Secretary shall not
be considered in determining the amounts to be paid pursuant to this subdivision (a)(2)(B),
however, will be considered under subdivision (b) of this Article. A scparate agreement shall be
established by the Contractor and the Contracting Officer to accomplish repayment of the
Additional Capital Obligation assigned to the Contractor within the timeframe prescribed by the

WIIN Act, subject to the following:

26



559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568

569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

(1)  Ifthe collective Additional Capital Obligation
properly assignable to the contractors exercising conversion under section 4011 of the WIIN Act
is less than five million dollars ($5,000,000), then the portion of such costs properly assignable
to the Contractor shall be repaid not more than five (5)-years after the Contracting Officer
notifies the Contractor of the Additional Capital Obligation; Provided, That the reference to the
amount of five million dollars ($5,000,000) shall not be a precedent in any other context.

(2)  Ifthe collective Additional Capital Obligation
properly assignable to the contractors exercising conversion under section 4011 of the WIIN Act
is equal to or greater than five million dollars ($5,000,000), then the portion of such costs
properly assignable to the Contractor shall be repaid as provided by applicable Federal
Reclamation law and Project ratesetting policy; Provided, That the reference to the amount of
five million dollars {$5,000,000) shall not be a precedent in any other context.

(b)  In the event that the final cost allocation referenced in Section 4011(b) of
the WIIN Act determines that the costs properly assignable to the Contractor are greater than
what has been paid by the Contractor, the Contractor shall be obligated to pay the remaining
allocated costs. The term of such additional repayment contract shall be not less than one (1)
year and not more than ten (10) years, however, mutually agreeable provisions regarding the rate
of repayment of such amount may be developed by the Contractor and Contracting Officer. In
the event that the final cost allocation indicates that the costs properly assignable to the
Contractor are less than what the Contractor has paid, the Contracting Officer shall credit such
overpayment as an offset against any outstanding or future obligations of the Contractor, with the

exception of Restoration Fund charges pursuant to section 3407(d) of Pub. L. 102-575.

27



381

582

583

584

585

386

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

597

598

599

600

601

602

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

(c) The Contracting Officer shall notify the Contractor of the Rates, Charges,
and Tiered Pricing Component as follows:

¢)) Prior to July 1 of each Calendar Year, the Contracting Officer shall
provide the Contractor an estimate of the Charges for Project Water that will be applied
to the period October 1, of the current Calendar Year, through September 30, of the
following Calendar Year, and the basis for such estimate. The Contractor shall be
allowed not less than two months to review and comment on such estimates. On or
before September 15 of each Calendar Year, the Contracting Officer shall notify the
Contractor in writing of the Charges to be in effect during the period October 1 of the current
Calendar Year, through September 30, of the following Calendar Year, and such
notification shall revise Exhibit “B.”

(2) Prior to October 1 of each Calendar Year, the Contracting Officer
shall make available to the Contractor an estimate of the Rates and Tiered Pricing Component
for Project Water for the following Year and the computations and cost allocations upon which
those Rates are based. The Contractor shall be allowed not less than two months to review and
comment on such computations and cost allocations. By December 31 of each Calendar Year,
the Contracting Officer shall provide the Contractor with the final Rates and Tiered Pricing
Component to be in effect for the upcoming Year, and such notification shall revise Exhibit “B.”

(d)  Atthe time the Contractor submits the initial schedule for the delivery of
Project Water for each Year pursuant to subdivision (b) of Article 4 of this Contract, the
Contractor shall make an advance payment to the United States equal to the total amount

payable pursuant to the applicable Rate(s) set under subdivision (a) of this Article, for the

28



603

604

605

606

607

608

609

610

611

612

613

614

615

416

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTRI1-P

Project Water scheduled to be delivered pursvant to this Contract during the first two
calendar months of the Year. Before the end of the first month and before the end of
each calendar month thereafter, the Contractor shall make an advance payment to the
United States, at the Rate(s) set under subdivision (a) of this Article, for the Water
Scheduled to be delivered pursuant to this Contract during the second month
immediately following. Adjustments between advance payments for Water Scheduled
and payments at Rates due for Water Delivered shalil be made before the end of the
following month; Provided, That any revised schedule submitted by the Contractor
pursuant to Article 4 of this Contract which increases the amount of Water Delivered
pursuant to this Contract during any month shall be accompanied with appropriate
advance payment, at the Rates then in effect, to assure that Project Water is not
delivered to the Contractor in advance of such payment. In any month in which the
quantity of Water Delivered to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract equals the
quantity of Water Scheduled and paid for by the Contractor, no additional Project Water
shall be delivered to the Contractor unless and until an advance payment at the Rates
then in effect for such additional Project Water is made. Final adjustment between the
advance payments for the Water Scheduled and payments for the quantities of Water
Delivered during each Year pursuant to this Contract shall be made as soon as
practicable but no later than April 30th of the following Year, or 60 days after the
delivery of Project Water rescheduled under subdivision (g) of Article 3 of this Contract
if such water is not delivered by the last day of February.

(€)  The Contractor shall also make a payment in addition to the Rate(s) in

29



625

626

627

628

629

630

631

632

633

634

6335

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR.1-P

subdivision (d) of this Article to the United States for Water Delivered, at the Charges and the
appropriate Tiered Pricing Component then in effect, before the end of the month following the

month of delivery; Provided, That the Contractor may be granted an exception from the

Tiered Pricing Component pursuant to subdivision (k)(2) of this Article. The payments
shall be consistent with the quantities of Irrigation Water and M&I Water Delivered as shown in
the water delivery report for the subject month prepared by the Operating Non-Federal Entity or,
if there is no Operating Non-Federal Entity, by the Contracting Officer. The water delivery
report shall be deemed a bill for the payment of Charges and the applicable Tiered Pricing
Component for Water Delivered. Adjustment for overpayment or underpayment of Charges
shall be made through the adjustment of payments due to the United States for Charges for the
next month. Any amount to be paid for past due payment of Charges and the Tiered Pricing
Component shall be computed pursuant to Article 19 of this Contract.

()  The Contractor shall pay for any Water Delivered under subdivision
(a), (D), or (g) of Article 3 of this Contract as determined by the Contracting Officer
pursuant to applicable statutes, associated regulations, any applicable provisions of
guidelines or ratesetting policies; Provided, That the Rate for Water Delivered under
subdivision (f) of Article 3 of this Contract shall be no more than the otherwise
applicable Rate for Irrigation Water or M&I Water under subdivision (a) of this Article.

(g)  Payments to be made by the Contractor to the United States under this
Contract may be paid from any revenues available to the Contractor.

(h) All revenues received by the United States from the Contractor

relating to the delivery of Project Water or the delivery of non-Project water through

30



647

648

649

650

651

652

653

654

655

656

657

658

659

660

661

662

663

664

665

666

667

668

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

Project facilities shall be allocated and applied in accordance with Federal Reclamation
law and the associated rules or regulations, and the then-current Project ratesetting policies
for M&I Water or Irrigation Water.

() The Contracting Officer shall keep its accounts pertaining to the
administration of the financial terms and conditions of its long-term contracts, in accordance
with applicable Federal standards, so as to reflect the application of Project costs and
revenues. The Contracting Officer shall, each Year upon request of the Contractor,
provide to the Contractor a detailed accounting of all Project and Contractor expense
allocations, the disposition of all Project and Contractor revenues, and a summary of all
water delivery information. The Contracting Officer and the Contractor shall enter into
good faith negotiations to resolve any discrepancies or disputes relating to accountings,
reports, or information.

()] The parties acknowledge and agree that the efficient administration of this
Contract is their mutual goal. Recognizing that experience has demonstrated that mechanisms,
policies, and procedures used for establishing Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing Component,
and/or for making and allocating payments, other than those set forth in this Article may be in
the mutual best interest of the parties, it is expressly agreed that the parties may enter into
agreements to modify the mechanisms, policies, and procedures for any of those purposes while
this Contract is in effect without amending this Contract.

& (D Beginning at such time as deliveries of Project Water in a Year
exceed 80 percent of the Contract Total, then before the end of the month following the month of

delivery the Contractor shall make an additional payment to the United States equal to the

31



669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

690

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

applicable Tiered Pricing Component. The Tiered Pricing Component for the amount of Water
Delivered in excess of 80 percent of the Contract Total, but less than or equal to 90 percent of the
Contract Total, shall equal one-half of the difference between the Rate established under
subdivision () of this Article and the Irrigation Full Cost Water Rate or M&I Full Cost Water
Rate, whichever is applicable. The Tiered Pricing Component for the amount of Water
Delivered which exceeds 90 percent of the Contract Total shall equal the difference between (i)
the Rate established under subdivision (a) of this Article and (ii) the Irrigation Full Cost Water
Rate or M&I Full Cost Water Rate, whichever is applicable. For all Water Delivered pursuant to
subdivision (a) of Article 3 of this Contract which is in excess of 80 percent of the Contract
Total, this increment shall be deemed to be divided between Irrigation Water and M&I Water in
the same proportion as actual deliveries of each bear to the cumulative total Water Delivered.

) Subject to the Contracting Officer's written approval, the
Contractor may request and receive an exemption from such Tiered Pricing Component for
Project Water delivered to produce a crop which the Contracting Officer determines will provide
significant and quantifiable habitat values for waterfowl in fields where the water is used and the
crops are produced; Provided, That the exemption from the Tiered Pricing Component for
[rrigation Water shall apply only if such habitat values can be assured consistent with the
purposes of the CVPIA through binding agreements executed with or approved by the
Contracting Officer prior to use of such water.

(3)  For purposes of determining the applicability of the Tiered Pricing
Component pursuant to this Article, Water Delivered shall include Project Water that the

Contractor transfers to others but shall not include Project Water transferred to the Contractor,

32



691

692

693

694

695

696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707

708

709

710

711

712

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

nor shall it include the additional water provided to the Contractor under the provisions of
subdivision (f) of Article 3 of this Contract.

0 For the term of this Contract, Rates applied under the respective
ratesetting policies will be established to recover only reimbursable O&M (including any
deficits) and capital costs of the Project, as those terms are used in the then-current Project
ratesetting policies, and interest, where appropriate, except in instances where a minimum
Rate is applicable in accordance with the relevant Project ratesetting policy. Changes of
significance in practices which implement the Contracting Officer's ratesetting policies will
not be implemented until the Contracting Officer has provided the Contractor an opportunity
to discuss the nature, need, and impact of the proposed change.

(m)  Except as provided in subsections 3405(2)(1)XB) and 3405(f) of the
CVPIA, the Rates for Project Water transferred by the Contractor shall be the
Contractor's Rates, in accordance with the applicable Project ratesetting policy, adjusted
upward or downward to reflect the changed costs, if any, incutred by the Contracting Officer
in the delivery of the transferred Project Water to the transferee's point of delivery. If the
Contractor is receiving lower Rates and Charges because of inability to pay and is
transferring Project Water to another entity whose Rates and Charges are not adjusted
due to inability to pay, the Rates and Charges for transferred Project Water shall not be
adjusted to reflect the Contractor’s inability to pay.

(n)  Pursuant to the Act of October 27, 1986 (100 Stat. 3050), the Contracting
Officer is authorized to adjust determinations of ability to pay every five years.

(0)  With respect to the Rates for M&1 Water, the Contractor asserts that it is

3



713

714

715

716

17

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

not legally obligated to pay any Project deficits claimed by the United States to have accrued as
of the date of this Contract or deficit-related interest charges thereon. By entering into this
Contract, the Contractor does not waive any legal rights or remedies that it may have with
respect to such disputed issues. Notwithstanding the execution of this Contract and payments
made hereunder, the Contractor may challenge in the appropriate administrative or judicial
forums; (1) the existence, computation, or imposition of any deficit charges accruing during the
term of the Existing Contract and any preceding interim renewal contracts, if applicable; (2)
interest accruing on any such deficits; (3) the inclusion of any such deficit charges or interest in
the Rates; (4) the application by the United States of payments made by the Contractor under its
Existing Contract and any preceding interim renewal contracts if applicable; and (5) the
application of such payments in the Rates. The Contracting Officer agrees that the Contractor
shall be entitled to the benefit of any administrative or judicial ruling in favor of any Project
M&I contractor on any of these issues, and credits for payments heretofore made, provided that
the basis for such ruling is applicable to the Contractor.
NON-INTEREST BEARING O&M DEFICITS

8. The Contractor and the Contracting Officer concur that, as of the Effective Date
the Contractor has no non-interest bearing O&M deficits and shall have no further
liability therefare.

SALES, TRANSFERS, OR EXCHANGES OF WATER

9, (a)  The right to receive Project Water provided for in this Contract may be

sold, transferred, or exchanged to others for reasonable and beneficial uses within the

State of California if such sale, transfer, ot exchange is authorized by applicable Federal

34



735

736

737

738

739

740

741

742

743

T44

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

754

735

756

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

and State laws, and applicable guidelines or regulations then in effect. No sale, transfer,
or exchange of Project Water under this Contract may take place without the prior
written approval of the Contracting Officer, except as provided for in subdivision (b) of
this Article, and no such sales, transfers, or exchanges shall be approved absent all
appropriate environmental documentation, including, but not limited to, documents
prepared pursuant to the NEPA and ESA. Such environmental documentation should
include, as appropriate, an analysis of groundwater impacts and economic and social
effects, including environmental justice, of the proposed water transfers on both the
transferor and transferee.

(b)  In order to facilitate efficient water management by means of water
transfers of the type historically carried out among Project Contractors located within the
same geographical area and to allow the Contractor to participate in an accelerated water
transfer program during the term of this Contract, the Contracting Officer shall prepare, as
appropriate, all necessary environmental documentation, including, but not limited to,
documents prepared pursuant to the NEPA and ESA, analyzing annual transfers within
such geographical areas and the Contracting Officer shall determine whether such
transfers comply with applicable law. Following the completion of the environmental
documentation, such transfers addressed in such documentation shall be conducted with
advance notice to the Contracting Officer, but shall not require prior written approval by
the Contracting Officer. Such environmental documentation and the Contracting
Officer's compliance determination shall be reviewed every five years and updated, as

necessary, prior to the expiration of the then existing five (5)-year period. All subsequent

35



757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

771

72

773

774

775

776

777

778

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

environmental documentation shall include an alternative to evaluate not less than the quantity of
Project Water historically transferred within the same geographical area.

(c) For a water transfer to qualify under subdivision (b) of this Article, such
water transfer must: (i) be for irrigation purposes for lands irrigated within the previous three
years, for M&I use, groundwater recharge, groundwater banking, or similar groundwater
activities, surface water storage, or fish and wildlife resources; not lead to land
conversion; and be delivered to established cropland, wildlife refuges, groundwater basins, or
M&lI use; (ii) occur within a single Year; (iii) occur between a willing seller and a willing
buyer; (iv) convey water through existing facilities with no new construction or
modifications to facilities and be between existing Project Contractors and/or the Contractor
and the United States, Department of the Interior; and (v) comply with all applicable
Federal, State, and local or tribal laws and requirements imposed for protection of the
environment and Indian Trust Assets, as defined under Federal iaw.

APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS AND ADJUSTMENTS

10. (a) The amount of any overpayment by the Contractor of the Contractor's
O&M, capital, and deficit (if any) obligations for the Year shall be applied first to any current
liabilities of the Contractor arising out of this Contract then due and payable.
Overpayments of more than $1,000 shall be refunded at the Contractor’s request. In lieu of a
refund, any amount of such overpayment, at the option of the Contractor, may be credited
against amounts to become due to the United States by the Contractor, With respect to
overpayment, such refund or adjustment shall constitute the sole remedy of the Contractor or

anyone having or claiming to have the right to the use of any of the Project Water supply

36



779

73Q

781

782

783

784

785

786

787

788

789

790

791

792

793

794

795

79

797

798

799

800

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

provided for by this Contract. All credits and refunds of overpayments shall be made
within 30 days of the Contracting Officer obtaining direction as to how to credit or
refund such overpayment in response to the notice to the Contractor that it has finalized the
accounts for the Year in which the overpayment was made.

(b)  All advances for miscellaneous costs incurred for work requested by the
Contractor pursuant to Article 24 of this Contract shall be adjusted to reflect the actual
costs when the work has been completed. If the advances exceed the actual costs incurred, the
difference will be refunded to the Contractor. If the actual costs exceed the Contractor's
advances, the Contractor will be billed for the additional costs pursuant to Article 24 of this
Contract.

TEMPORARY REDUC S—RET WS

11. (a)  Subjectto: (i) the authorized purposes and priorities of the Project and the
requirements of Federal law, and (ii) the obligations of the United States under existing
contracts, or renewals thereof, providing for water deliveries from the Praject, the
Contracting Officer shall make all reasonable efforts to optimize Project Water deliveries to
the Contractor as provided in this Contract.

(b)  The Contracting Officer or Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies) may
temporarily discontinue or reduce the quantity of Water Delivered to the Contractor as
herein provided for the purposes of investigation, inspection, maintenance, repair, or
replacement of any of the Project facilities or any part thereof necessary for the delivery of
Project Water to the Contractor, but so far as feasible the Contracting Officer or Operating

Non-Federal Entity(ies) will give the Contractor due notice in advance of such temporary

n



go1

802

803

804

805

806

807

808

809

810

L3R

812

313

814
315
316
817
818

819
820
821
822
823
824

825

826

2

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

discontinuance or reduction, except in case of emergency, in which case no notice need be
given; Provided, Thar the United States shall use its best efforts to avoid any
discontinuance or reduction in such service. Upon resumption of service after such
discontinuance or reduction, and if requested by the Contractor, the United States will, if
possible, deliver the quantity of Project Water which would have been delivered
hereunder in the absence of such discontinuance or reduction.

(¢)  The United States reserves the right to all seepage and return flow
water derived from Water Delivered to the Contractor hereunder which escapes or is

discharged beyond the Contractor's Service Area; Provided, That this shall not be construed

as claiming for the United States any right to scepage or return flow being put to

reasonable and beneficial use pursuant to this Contract within the Contractor's Service

Area by the Contractor or those claiming by, through, or under the Contractor.
CONSTRAINTS ON THE AVAILABILITY OF WATER

12. (@) Inits operation of the Project, the Contracting Officer will use all
reasonable means to guard against a Condition of Shortage in the quantity of Project
Water to be made available to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract. In the event the
Contracting Officer determines that a Condition of Shortage appears probable, the
Contracting Officer will notify the Contractor of said determination as soon as practicable.

{b) [f there is a Condition of Shortage because of inaccurate runoff forecasting
or other similar operational errors affecting the Project; drought and other physical or natural
causes beyond the control of the Contracting Officer; or actions taken by the Contracting
Officer to meet current and future legal obligations, then, except as provided in subdivision (a) of
Article 17 of this Contract, no liability shall accrue against the United States or any of its
officers, agents, or employees for any damage, direct or indirect, arising therefrom.

(c) In any Year in which there may occur a Condition of Shortage for any of
the reasons specified in subdivision {b) of this Article, and subject to subdivision (d} of this

Article, the Contracting Officer will first allocate the available Project Water consistent

38



828

829

830

831

832

833

834

835

836

837

838

839

840

341

842

843

844

845

846

847

848

849

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

with the Project M&1 Water Shortage Policy as finally adopted after environmental review for
determining the amount of Project Water Available for delivery to the Project
Contractors. Subject to the foregoing allocation, in any year in which there may occur a
Condition of Shortage, the Contracting Officer shall then apportion Project Water among
the Contractor and others entitled to Project Water from Delta Division Facilities under
long-term water service or repayment contracts (or renewals thereof or binding
commitments therefore) in force on February 28, 2005, as follows:

(1)  The Contracting Officer shall make an initial and subsequent
determination as necessary of the total quantity of Project Water estimated to be
scheduled or actually scheduled under subdivision (b) of Article 4 of this Contract and
under all other interim renewal, long-term water service or repayment contracts then in
force for the delivery of Project Water by the United States from Delta Division Facilities
during the relevant Year, the quantity so determined being hereinafter referred to as the
scheduled total;

(2) A determination shall be made of the total quantity of Project
Water that is available for meeting the scheduled total, the quantity so determined being
hereinafter referred to as the available supply;

(3)  The total quantity of Project Water estimated to be scheduled or
actually scheduled by the Contractor during the relevant Year, under subdivision (b) of
Article 4 of this Contract, shall be divided by the scheduled total, the quotient thus
obtained being hereinafter referred to as the Contractor's proportionate share; and

(4)  The available supply shall be mulitiplied by the Contractor's

39



850

831

852

853

854

855

856

857

858

359

860

861

862

863

864

865

866

367

368

869

870

871

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

proportionate share and the result shall be the quantity of Project Water made available
by the United States to the Contractor for the relevant Year in accordance with the
schedule developed by the Cantracting Officer under subdivision (e)(1) of this Article 12,
but in no event shall such amount exceed the Contract Total. In the event the
Contracting Officer subsequently determines that the Contracting Officer can increase or
needs to decrease the available supply for delivery from Delta Division Facilities to
long-term water service and repayment contractors during the relevant Year, such
additions or reductions to the available supply shall be apportioned consistent with
subparagraphs (1) through (4), inclusive.

(d) By entering into this Contract, the Contractor does not waive any legal
rights or remedies it may have to file or participate in any administrative or judicial
proceeding contesting: (i) the sufficiency of the Project M&1 Water Shortage Policy; (ii)
the substance of such a policy; (iii) the applicability of such a policy; or (iv) the manner in
which such policy is implemented in order to allocate Project Water between M&I and
irrigation purposes; Provided, That the Contractor has commenced any such judicial
chailenge or any administrative procedures necessary to institute any judicial challenge
within six months of the policy becoming final. By agreeing to the foregoing, the
Contracting Officer does not waive any legal defenses or remedies that it may have to
assert in such a proceeding. Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted to validate or

invalidate the Project M&1 Water Shortage Policy.

UNAVOIDABLE GROUNDWATER PERCOLATION

13. (@)  To the extent applicable, the Contractor shall not be deemed to have



872

873

874

875

876

877

878

879
830
8381
882
883

834

&85

886
887
888
889
890

891
892
393
394
895
896
397

398
899

900

Contract No, 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

delivered [rrigation Water to Excess Lands or Ineligible Lands within the meaning of this
Contract if such lands are irrigated with groundwater that reaches the underground strata
as an unavoidable result of the delivery of Irrigation Water by the Contractor to Eligible
Lands.

(b)  Upon complete payment of the Repayment Obligation by the Contractor,
this Article 13 shall no longer be applicable.

COMPLIANCE WITH FED RECLAMATION LAWS

14.  The parties agree that the delivery of Irrigation Water or use of Federal facilities
pursuant to this Contract is subject to Federal Reclamation law, including but not limited
to, the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (43 U.S.C. 390aa ef seq.), as amended and
supplemented, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Secretary of the Interior
under Federal Reclamation law.

PROTECTION ATER AND AIR QUALITY
15,  (a8) Omitted

(b)  The United States will care for, operate and maintain reserved works in a
manner that preserves the quality of the water at the highest level possible as determined by the
Contracting Officer. The United States does not warrant the quality of the water delivered to the
Contractor and is under no obligation to furnish or construct water treatment facilities to
maintain or improve the quality of water delivered to the Contractor.

(¢)  The Contractor will comply with all applicable water and air pollution
laws and regulations of the United States and the State of California; and will obtain all required
permits or licenses from the appropriate Federal, State, or local authorities necessary for the
delivery of water by the Contractor; and shall be responsible for compliance with all Federal,
State, and local water quality standards applicable to surface and subsurface drainage and/or
discharges generated through the use of Federal or Contractor facilities or Project Water
provided by the Contractor within its Service Area.

{d)  This Article shall not affect or alter any legal obligations of the Secretary
to provide drainage or other discharge services.

(e) Omitted

4]



901
902

903

905

807

908

S09

910

911

912

o213

914

915

e

317

918

919

920

921

922

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTRI1-P

WATER ACQUIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR OTHER THAN FROM THE UNITED
STATES

16. (a)  Water or water rights now owned or hereafter acquired by the Contractor

other than from the United States and Irrigation Water furnished pursuant to the terms of
this Contract may be simultaneously transported through the same distribution facilities
of the Contractor subject to the following: (i) if the facilities utilized for commingling
Irrigation Water and non-Project water were constructed without funds made available
pursuant to Federal Reclamation law, the provisions of Federal Reclamation law will be
applicable only to the Landholders of lands which receive Irrigation Water; (ii) the
eligibility of land to receive Irrigation Water must be established through the certification
requirements as specified in the Acreage Limitation Rules and Regulations (43 CFR Part
426Y; (iii) the water requirements of Eligible Lands within the Contractor's Service Arca
can be established and the quantity of Irrigation Water to be utilized is less than or equal to
the quantity necessary to irrigate such Eligible Lands; and (iv) if the facilities utilized for
commingling Irrigation Water and non-Project water are (were) constructed with funds
made available pursuant to Federal Reclamation law, the non-Project water will be
subject to the acreage limitation provisions of Federal Reclamation law, unless the
Contractor pays to the United States the incremental fee described in 43 CFR 426.15. In
determining the incremental fee, the Contracting Officer will calculate annually the cost
to the Federal Government, including interest, of storing or delivering non-Project water,
which for purposes of this Contract shall be determined as follows: The quetient shall

be the unpaid distribution system costs divided by the total irrigable acreage within the

42



923

924

925

926

927

928

929

930

931

932

933

934

935

936

937

938

939

941

942

043

944

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

Contractor's Service Area. The incremental fee per acre is the mathematical result of
such quotient times the interest rate determined using Section 202 (3) of the Act of
October 12, 1982 (96 Stat. 1263). Such incremental fee will be charged to each acre of
excess or full-cost land within the Contractor's Service Area that receives non-Project
water through Federally financed or constructed facilities. The incremental fee calculation
methodology will continue during the term of this Contract absent the promulgation of a
contrary Bureau of Reclamation-wide rule, regulation, or policy adopted after the
Contractor has been afforded the opportunity to review and comment on the proposed
rule, regulation, or policy. If such rule, regulation, or policy is adopted, it shall supersede
this provision.

(b)  Water or water rights now owned or hereafter acquired by the
Contractor, other than from the United States may be stored, conveyed, and/or diverted
through Project facilities, subject to the completion of appropriate environmental
documentation, with the approval of the Contracting Officer and the execution of any
contract determined by the Contracting Officer to be necessary, consistent with the
following provisions:

(1)  The Contractor may introduce non-Project water into Project
facilities and deliver said water to lands within the Contractor’s Service Area, including
Ineligible Lands, subject to payment to the United States and/or to any applicable
Operating Non-Federal Entity of an appropriate rate as determined by the applicable
Project ratesetting policy, the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982, and the Project use

power policy, if such Project use power policy is applicable, each as amended, modified, or

43



945

946

947

948

949

950

951

952

953

954

955

956

957

958

959

960

951

962

963

964

965

966

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

superseded from time to time.

(2)  Delivery of such non-Project water in and through Project
facilities shall only be allowed to the extent such deliveries do not: (i) interfere with
other Project purposes as determined by the Contracting Officer; (ii) reduce the quantity or
quality of water available to other Project Contractors; (iii) interfere with the delivery of
contractual water entitlements to any other Project Contractors; or (iv) interfere with the
physical maintenance of the Project facilities.

(3)  Neither the United States nor the Operating Non-Federal
Entity(ies) shall be responsibie for control, care, or distribution of the non-Project water
before it is introduced into or after it is delivered from the Project facilities. The
Contractor hereby releases and agrees to defend and indemnify the United States and the
Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), and their respective officers, agents, and employees,
from any claim for damage to persons or property, direct or indirect, resulting from the
act(s) of the Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, or assigns, in (i} extracting or
diverting non-Project water from any source, or (ii) diverting such non-Project water into
Project facilities.

(4)  Diversion of such non-Project water into Project facilities shall
be consistent with all applicable laws, and if involving groundwater, consistent with any
applicable groundwater management plan for the area from which it was extracted.

(5)  After Project purposes are met, as determined by the
Contracting Officer, the United States and Project Contractors entitled to Project Water

from Delta Division Facilities shall share priority to utilize the remaining capacity of the



967

963

969

970

971

972

973

974

975

976

9717

978

79

980

981

982

933

084

985

986

987

988

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

facilities declared to be available by the Contracting Officer for conveyance and
transportation of non-Project water prior to any such remaining capacity being made
available to non-Project contractors. Other Project Contractors shall have a second priority
to any remaining capacity of facilities declared to be available by the Contracting Officer
for conveyance and transportation of non-Project water prior to any such remaining
capacity being made available to non-Project contractors.

(c) Upon complete payment of the Repayment Obligation by the Contractor,

subdivision (a) of this Article 16 shall no longer be applicable.

OPINIONS AND DETERMINATIONS

17. (@)  Where the terms of this Contract provide for actions to be based upon
the opinion or determination of either party to this Contract, said terms shall not be
construed as permitting such action to be predicated upon arbitrary, capricious, or
unreasonable opinions or determinations. Both parties, notwithstanding any other
provisions of this Contract, expressly reserve the right to seek relief from and appropriate
adjustment for any such arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable opinion or determination.
Each opinion or determination by either party shall be provided in a timely manner.
Nothing in this subdivision (a) of this Article is intended to or shall affect or alter the
standard of judicial review applicable under Federal law to any opinion or determination
implementing a specific provision of Federal law embodied in statute or regulation.

(b)  The Contracting Officer shall have the right to make determinations
necessary to administer this Contract that are consistent with the provisions of this

Contract, the laws of the United States and of the State of California, and the rules and

45



989

990

991

292

993

994

995

996

997

998

999

1600

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006

1007

1008

1009

1010

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

regulations promulgated by the Secretary. Such determinations shall be made in
consultation with the Contractor to the extent reasonably practicable.

COORDINATION AND COOPERATION

18. (a) In order to further their mutual goals and objectives, the Contracting
Officer and the Contractor shall communicate, coordinate, and cooperate with each other,
and with other affected Project Contractors, in order to improve the O&M of the
Project. The communication, coordination, and cooperation regarding O&M shall
include, but not be limited to, any action which will or may materially affect the quantity
or quality of Project Water supply, the allocation of Project Water supply, and Project
financial matters including, but not limited to, budget issues. The communication,
coordination, and cooperation provided for hereunder shall extend to all provisions of
this Contract. Each party shall retain exclusive decision making authority for all actions,
opinions, and determinations to be made by the respective party.

(b)  Within 120 days following the Effective Date, the Contractor, other
affected Project Contractors, and the Contracting Officer shall arrange to meet with
interested Project Contractors to develop a mutually agreeable, written Project-wide
process, which may be amended as necessary separate and apart from this Contract. The
goal of this process shall be to provide, to the extent practicable, the means of mutual
communication and interaction regarding significant decisions concerning Project O&M
on a real-time basis.

(c¢) In light of the factors referred to in subdivision (b) of Article 3 of this

Contract, it is the intent of the Secretary to improve water supply reliability. To carry out

46



1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

102¢

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

this intent:

(1)  The Contracting Officer will, at the request of the Contractor,
assist in the development of integrated resource management plans for the Contractor.
Further, the Contracting Officer will, as appropriate, seek authorizations for implementation
of partnerships to improve water supply, water quality, and reliability.

(2)  The Secretary will, as appropriate, pursue program and project
implementation and authorization in coordination with Project Contractors to improve the
water supply, water quality, and reliability of the Project for all Project purposes.

(3)  The Secretary will coordinate with Project Contractors and the
State of California to seek improved water resource management.

(4)  The Secretary will coordinate actions of agencies within the
Department of the Interior that may impact the availability of water for Project purposes.

(5)  The Contracting Officer shall periodically, but not less than
annually, hold division-level meetings to discuss Project operations, division-level water
management activities, and other issues as appropriate.

(d)  Without limiting the contractual obligations of the Contracting Officer
under the other Articles of this Contract, nothing in this Article shall be construed to limit
or constrain the Contracting Officer's ability to communicate, coordinate, and cooperate
with the Contractor or other interested stakeholders or to make decisions in a timely fashion

as needed to protect health, safety, or the physical integrity of structures or facilities.

47



1031

1032
1033
1034
1035
1036
1037
1038
1039
1040
1041
1042

1043
1044
1045
1046
1047

1048
1049
1050

1051

1052

1053
1034
1055
1056
1057
1058
1059
1060
1061
1062
1063

1064
1065
1066
1067

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

CHARGES FOR DELINQUENT PAYMENTS

9. (a) The Contractor shall be subject to interest, administrative, and penalty
charges on delinquent payments. If a payment is not received by the due date, the
Contractor shall pay an interest charge on the delinquent payment for each day the payment
is delinquent beyond the due date. If a payment becomes 60 days delinquent, the
Contractor shall pay, in addition to the interest charge, an administrative charge to
cover additional costs of billing and processing the delinquent payment. If a payment is
delinquent 90 days or more, the Contractor shall pay, in addition to the interest and
administrative charges, a penalty charge for each day the payment is delinquent beyond the
due date, based on the remaining balance of the payment due at the rate of 6 percent per
year. The Contractor shall also pay any fees incurred for debt collection services associated
with a delinquent payment.

(b)  The interest rate charged shall be the greater of either the rate prescribed
quarterly in the Federal Register by the Department of the Treasury for application to
overdue payments, or the interest rate of 0.5 percent per month. The interest rate charged
will be determined as of the due date and remain fixed for the duration of the delinquent
period.

(c) When a partial payment on a delinquent account is received, the amount
received shall be applied first to the penalty charges, second to the administrative charges,
third to the accrued interest, and finally to the overdue payment.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT QOPPORTUNITY
20.  During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(@)  The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or
national origin., The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race,
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall
include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notices to be provided by the Contracting Officer setting forth the provisions of this
nondiscrimination clause.

(b)  The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees
placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive
consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, or national origin.

48



1068
1069
1070
1071
1072
1073
1074
1075
1076
1077

1078
1079
1080
1081
1082
1083

1084
1085
1086

1087
1088
1089
1090
1091

1092
1093
1094
1095
1096
1097
1098
1099

1100
1101
1102
1103
1104
1105
1106

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

(c) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has
inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or
another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an
employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as
part of such employee’s essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other
employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information,
unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an
investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the
employer, or is consistent with the Contractor’s legal duty to furnish information.

(d)  The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of
workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding,
a notice, to be provided by the Contracting Officer, advising the labor union or workers’
representative of the Contractor’s commitments under section 202 of Executive Order No.
11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places
available to employees and applicants for employment.

(¢)  The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No.
11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary
of Labor.

® The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by
Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of
the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books, records, and
accounts by the Contracting Agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation
to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(g) Inthe event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this
Contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may
be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures
authorized in Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may
be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24,
1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by
law.

(h)  The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (g)
in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders
of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept.
24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The
Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be
directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions, including
sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event the Contractor

49



1107
1108
1109

1110

111
1112
1113
1114

1115
1116
1117
1118
1119
1120
1121

1122

1123

1124

1125
1126
1127
1128
1129
1130
1131

1132
1133
1134
1135
1136
1137
1138

1139
1140
1141

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a
result of such direction, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

GENERAL OBLIGATION — BENEFITS CONDITIONED UPON PAYMENT

21. (@  The obligation of the Contractor to pay the United States as provided in
this Contract is a general obligation of the Contractor notwithstanding the manner in which the
obligation may be distributed among the Contractor's water users and notwithstanding the default
of individual water users in their obligation to the Contractor.

(b)  The payment of charges becoming due pursuant to this Contract is a
condition precedent to receiving benefits under this Contract. The United States shall not make
water available to the Contractor through Project facilities during any period in which the
Contractor is in arrears in the advance payment of water rates due the United States. The
Contractor shall not deliver water under the terms and conditions of this Contract for lands or
parties that are in arrears in the advance payment of water rates as levied or established by the
Contractor.

(c)  With respect to subdivision (b) of this Article, the Contractor shall have no
obligation to require advance payment for water rates which it levies.

COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

22. (8  The Contractor shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(Pub. L. 88-352; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d), the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112, Title V, as
amended; 29 U.S.C. § 791, et seq.), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135, Title
I11; 42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq.), Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101-
336; 42 U.S.C. § 12131, et seq.), and any other applicable civil rights laws, and with the
applicable implementing regulations and any guidelines imposed by the U.S.
Department of the Interior and/or Bureau of Reclamation.

(b)  These statutes prohibit any person in the United States from being
excluded from participation in, being denied the benefits of, or being otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving financial assistance from the Bureau
of Reclamation on the grounds of race, color, national origin, disability, or age. By
executing this Contract, the Contractor agrees to immediately take any measures necessary
to implement this obligation, including permitting officials of the United States to inspect
premises, programs, and documents.

(c) The Contractor makes this Contract in consideration of and for the
purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts, property discounts, or other
Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the Contractor by the Bureau

30



1142
1143
1144
1145
1146

1147
1148

1149

1150
1151
1152
1153
1154
1155

1156
1157
1158
1159
1160

1161
1162
1163
1164
1165
1166

1167
1168
1169
1170
117

1172
1173
1174
1175
1176
1177

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

of Reclamation, including installment payments after such date on account of
arrangements for Federal financial assistance which were approved before such date.
The Contractor recognizes and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in
reliance on the representations and agreements made in this Article and that the United
States reserves the right to seek judicial enforcement thereof.

(dy  Complaints of discrimination against the Contractor shall be investigated
by the Contracting Officer’s Office of Civil Rights.

PRIVACY ACT COMPLIANCE

23. (a)  The Contractor shall comply with the Privacy Act of 1974 (Privacy Act)
(5 U.S.C. § 552a) and the Department of the Interior rules and regulations under the Privacy
Act (43 C.F.R. § 2.45, et seq.) in maintaining Landholder certification and reporting
records required to be submitted to the Contractor for compliance with Sections 208,
224(c), and 228 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (43 U.S.C. §§ 390ff, 390ww, and
390zz), and pursuant to 43 C.F.R. § 426.18.

(b)  With respect to the application and administration of the criminal penaity
provisions of the Privacy Act (5 U.8.C. § 552a(i)), the Contractor and the Contractor's
employees who are responsible for maintaining the certification and reporting records
referenced in paragraph (a) above are considered to be employees of the Department of the
[nterior. See 5 U.S.C. § 552a(m).

(¢)  The Contracting Officer or a designated representative shall provide the
Contractor with current copies of the Department of the Interior Privacy Act regulations
and the Bureau of Reclamation Federal Register Privacy Act System of Records Notice
(Interior/WBR-31, Acreage Limitation) which govern the maintenance, safeguarding,
and disclosure of information contained in the Landholders’ certification and reporting
records.

(d)  The Contracting Officer shall designate a full-time employee of the
Bureau of Reclamation to be the System Manager responsible for making decisions on
denials pursuant to 43 C.F.R. §§ 2.61 and 2.64 and amendment requests pursuant to 43
C.F.R. § 2.72. The Contractor is authorized to grant requests by individuals for access to
their own records.

(¢)  The Contractor shall forward promptly to the System Manager each
proposed denial of access under 43 C.F.R. § 2.64 and each request for amendment of
records filed under 43 C.F.R. § 2.71; notify the requester accordingly of such referral;
and provide the System Manager with information and records necessary to prepare an
appropriate response to the requester. These requirements do not apply to individuals
seeking access to their own certification and reporting forms filed with the Contractor

51



1178
1179

1180

1182

1183

1184

1185

1186

1187

1188

1189

1190

1131

1192
1193
1194
119s
1196

1197

1198

1199

1200

1201

1202

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTRI1-P

pursuant to 43 C.F.R. § 426.18 unless the requester elects to cite the Privacy Actas an
authority for the request.

63} Upeon complete payment of the Repayment Obligation by the
Contractor, this Article 23 will no longer be applicable.

CONTRACTOR TO PAY CERTAIN MISCELLANEQUS COSTS

24,  In addition to all other payments to be made by the Contractor pursuant to this
Contract, the Contractor shall pay to the United States, within 60 days after receipt of a bill
and detailed statement submitted by the Contracting Officer to the Contractor for such
specific items of direct cost incurred by the United States for work requested by the
Contractor associated with this Contract plus indirect costs in accordance with applicable
Bureau of Reclamation policies and procedures. All such amounts referred to in this
Article shall not exceed the amount agreed to in writing in advance by the Contractor.
This Article shall not apply to costs for routine contract administration.

WATER CONSERVATION

25. (a) Prior to the delivery of water provided from or conveyed through
Federally constructed or Federally financed facilities pursuant to this Contract, the
Contractor shall develop a water conservation plan, as required by subsection 210(b) of the

Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 and 43 C.F.R. 427.1 (Water Conservation Rules and
Regulations).

Additionally, an effective water conservation and efficiency program shall be based on the
Contractor's water conservation plan that has been determined by the Contracting Officer to
meet the conservation and efficiency criteria for evaluating water conservation plans
established under Federal law. The water conservation and efficiency program shall
contain definite water conservation objectives, appropriate economically feasible water

conservation measures, and time schedules for meeting those objectives. Continued

52



1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

1209

1210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

Project Water delivery pursuant to this Contract shall be contingent upon the
Contractor's continued implementation of such water conservation program. In the
event the Contractor's water conservation plan or any revised water conservation plan
completed pursuant to subdivision (d) of this Article 25 have not yet been determined by
the Contracting Officer to meet such criteria, due to circumstances which the
Contracting Officer determines are beyond the control of the Contractor, water deliveries
shall be made under this Contract so long as the Contractor diligently works with the
Contracting Officer to obtain such determination at the earliest practicable date, and
thereafter the Contractor immediately begins implementing its water conservation and
efficiency program in accordance with the time schedules therein.

(b}  Should the amount of M&I Water delivered pursuant to subdivision
(a) of Article 3 of this Contract equal or exceed two thousand (2,000) acre-feet per Year,
the Contractor shall implement the Best Management Practices identified by the time
frames issued by the Mid-Pacific Region’s then-existing conservation and efficiency
criteria for such M&I Water unless any such practice is determined by the Contracting
Officer to be inappropriate for the Contractor.

(c)  The Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer a report on the
status of its implementation of the water conservation plan on the reporting dates specified in the
then-existing conservation and efficiency criteria established under Federal law.

(d) At five (5)-year intervals, the Contractor shall revise its water
conservation plan to reflect the then-existing conservation and efficiency criteria for evaluating

water conservation plans established under Federal law and submit such revised water

53



1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

management plan to the Contracting Officer for review and evaluation. The Contracting Officer
will then determine if the water conservation plan meets the Bureau of Reclamation’s then-
existing conservation and efficiency criteria for evaluating water conservation plans established
under Federal law.

(e}  Ifthe Contractor is engaged in direct groundwater recharge, such activity
shall be described in the Contractor's water conservation plan.

EXISTING OR ACOUIRED WATER OR WATER RIGHTS

26.  Except as specifically provided in Article 16 of this Contract, the provisions
of this Contract shall not be applicable to or affect non-Praject water or water rights now owned
or hereafter acquired by the Contractor or any user of such water within the Contractor's Service
Area. Any such water shall not be considered Project Water under this Contract. In addition,
this Contract shall not be construed as limiting or curtailing any rights which the Contractor or
any water user within the Contractor's Service Area acquires or has available under any other
contract pursuant to Federal Reclamation law.

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BY THE OPERATING NON-FEDERAL ENTITY

27. (a)  The O&M of a portion of the Project facilities which serve the Contractor,
and responsibility for funding a portion of the costs of such 0&M, have been transferred to the
San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority, an Operating Non-Federal Entity by separate
agreement (8-07-20-X0354-X) between the United States and Operating Non-Federal Entity San
Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority. That separate agreement shall not interfere with or

affect the rights or obligations of the Contractor or the United States hereunder.

54



1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

1254

1255

1256

1257

1258

1259

1260

1261

(262

1263

1264

1265

1266

1267

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

(b)  The Contracting Officer has previously notified the Contractor in
writing that the Operation and Maintenance of a portion of the Project facilities which
serve the Contractor has been transferred to the Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis &
Delta-Mendota Water Authority, and therefore, the Contractor shall pay directly to the
Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority, or to any
successor approved by the Contracting Officer under the terms and conditions of the
separate agreement between the United States and the Operating Non-Federal Entity San
Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority described in subdivision (a) of this Article, all rates,
charges, or assessments of any kind, including any assessment for reserve funds, which the
Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority or such successor
determines, sets, or establishes for the Operation and Maintenance of the pottion of the Project
facilities operated and maintained by the Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-
Mendota Water Authority or such successor. Such direct payments to Operating Non-Federal
Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority or such successor shall not relieve the
Contractor of its obligation to pay directly to the United States the Contractor's share of
the Project Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing Component except to the extent the
Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority collects payments
on behalf of the United States in accordance with the separate agreement identified in
subdivision (a) of this Article.

(¢)  For so long as the O&M of any portion of the Project facilities
serving the Contractor is performed by Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis &

Delta-Mendota Water Authority, or any successor thereto, the Contracting Officer

55



1263
1269
1270
1271
1272
1273
1274
1275
1276
1277
1278
1279
1280
1281
1282
1283
1284
1285
1286
1287
1288
1289
12%0
1291
1292
1293

1294
1295

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

shall adjust those components of the Rates for Water Delivered under this Contract
representing the cost associated with the activity being performed by Operating Non-
Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority or its successor.

(d)  Inthe event the Operation and Maintenance of the Project facilities
operated and maintained by the Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota
Water Authority is re-assumed by the United States during the term of this Contract, the
Contracting Officer shall so notify the Contractor, in writing, and present to the
Contractor a revised Exhibit “B” which shall include the portion of the Rates to be paid
by the Contractor for Project Water under this Contract representing the Operation and
Maintenance costs of the portion of such Project facilities which have been re-assumed. The
Contractor shall, thereafter, in the absence of written notification from the Contracting Officer to
the contrary, pay the Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing Component specified in the revised
Exhibit “B” directly to the United States in compliance with Article 7 of this Contract.

CONTINGENT ON APPROPRIATION OR ALLOTMENT OF FUNDS

28.  The expenditure or advance of any money or the performance of any obligation of
the United States under this Contract shall be contingent upon appropriation or allotment
of funds. Absence of appropriation or allotment of funds shall not relieve the Contractor
from any obligations under this Contract. No liability shall accrue to the United States in case
funds are not appropriated or allotted.

BOQKS. RECORDS AND REPORTS

29. (@)  The Contractor shall establish and maintain accounts and other books and
records pertaining to administration of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including
the Contractor's financial transactions; water supply data; project operations, maintenance, and
replacement logs; project land and rights-of-way use agreements; the water users' land-use {crop
census), land-ownership, land-leasing, and water-use data; and other matters that the
Contracting Officer may require. Reports shall be furnished to the Contracting Officer
in such form and on such date or dates as the Contracting Officer may require. Subject to
applicable Federal laws and regulations, each party to this Contract shall have the right during

56



Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

1296  office hours to examine and make copies of the other party's books and records relating to
1297  matters covered by this Contract.

1298 (b)  Notwithstanding the provisions of subdivision (a) of this Article, no
1299  books, records, or other information shall be requested from the Contractor by the

1300  Contracting Officer unless such books, records, or information are reasonably related to the
1301  administration or performance of this Contract. Any such request shall allow the Contractor a
1302  reasonable period of time within which to provide the requested books, records, or

1303  information.

1304 {c)  Atsuch time as the Contractor provides information to the Contracting
1305  Officer pursuant to subdivision (a) of this Article, a copy of such information shall be provided
1306  to the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies).

1307 ASSIGNMENT LIMITED — SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OBLIGATED

1308 30. (@)  The provisions of this Contract shall apply to and bind the successors and
1309  assigns of the parties hereto, but no assignment or transfer of this Contract or any right or interest
1310  therein by either party shall be valid until approved in writing by the other party.

1311 (b}  The assignment of any right or interest in this Contract by either party
1312 shall not interfere with the rights or obligations of the other party to this Contract absent the
1313 written concurrence of said other party.

1314 {¢)  The Contracting Officer shall not unreasonably condition or withhold
1315  approval of any proposed assignment.

1316 SEVERABILITY

1317 31.  Inthe event that a person or entity who is neither (i) a party to a Project contract,
1318  nor (ii) a person or entity that receives Project Water from a party to a Project contract, nor (iii)

1319 an association or other form of organization whose primary function is to represent parties to

57



1320

1321

1322

1323

1324

1325

1326

1327

1328

1329

1330

1331

1332

1333

1334

1335

1336

1337

1338

1339

1340

134t

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

Project contracts, brings an action in a court of competent jurisdiction challenging the
legality or enforceability of a provision included in this Contract and said person, entity,
association, or organization obtains a final court decision holding that such provision is
legally invalid or unenforceable and the Contractor has not intervened in that lawsuit in
support of the plaintiff(s), the parties to this Contract shall use their best efforts to (i)
within 30 days of the date of such final court decision identify by mutual agreement the
provisions in this Contract which must be revised and (ii) within three months thereafter
promptly agree on the appropriate revision(s). The time periods specified above may be
extended by mutual agreement of the parties. Pending the completion of the actions
designated above, to the extent it can do so without violating any applicable provisions of
law, the United States shall continue to make the quantities of Project Water specified in this
Contract available to the Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this Contract which were not

found to be legally invalid or unenforceable in the final court decision.

RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

32. Should any dispute arise concerning any provisions of this Contract, ot the
parties’ rights and obligations thereunder, the parties shall meet and confer in an attempt
to resolve the dispute. Prior to the Contractor commencing any legal action, or the
Contracting Officer referring any matter to the Department of Justice, the party shall
provide to the other party 30 days' written notice of the intent to take such action;

Provided, That such notice shall not be required where a delay in commencing an action

would prejudice the interests of the party that intends to file suit. During the 30-day

notice period, the Contractor and the Contracting Officer shall meet and confer in an

58



1342
1343
1344
1345
1346
1347
1348
1349
1350
1351

1352
1353

1354

1355

1356

1357

1358

1359

1360

1361

1362

1363

1364

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

attempt to resolve the dispute. Except as specifically provided, nothing herein is intended
to waive or abridge any right or remedy that the Contractor or the United States may have.
OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT
33.  No Member of or Delegate to the Congress, Resident Commissioner, or official of

the Contractor shall benefit from this Contract other than as a water user or landowner in the
same manner as other water users or landowners.

CHANGES IN CONTRACTOR’S ORGANIZATION AND/OR SERVICE AREA

4. (a) While this Contract is in effect, no change may be made in the
Contractor's Service Area or organization, by inclusion or exclusion of lands or by any other
changes which may affect the respective rights, obligations, privileges, and duties of either the
United States or the Contractor under this Contract, including, but not limited to, dissolution,
consolidation, or merger, except upon the Contracting Officer's written consent.

{b) Within 30 days of receipt of a request for such a change, the Contracting
Officer will notify the Contractor of any additional information required by the Contracting
Officer for processing said request, and both parties will meet to establish a mutually agreeable
schedule for timely completion of the process. Such process will analyze whether the proposed
change, is likely to: (i) result in the use of Project Water contrary to the terms of this Contract;
(ii) impair the ability of the Contractor to pay for Project Water furnished under this Contract or
to pay for any Federally-constructed facilities for which the Contractor is responsible; and (iii)
have an impact on any Project Water rights applications, permits, or licenses. In addition,
the Contracting Officer shall comply with the NEPA and the ESA. The Contractor will
be responsible for all costs incurred by the Contracting Officer in this process, and such

costs will be paid in accordance with Article 24 of this Contract.

59



1365
1366
1367
1368
1369
1370
1371
1372
1373
1374
1375
1376
1377
1378
1379
1380
1381
1382
1383
1384
1385
1386
1387
1388
1389
1390

1391
1392

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

FEDERAL LAWS
35. By entering into this Contract, the Contractor does not waive its rights to contest
the validity or application in connection with the performance of the terms and
conditions of this Contract of any Federal law or regulation; Provided, That the
Contractor agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of this Contract unless and
until relief from application of such Federal law or regulation to the implementing
provision of the Contract is granted by a court of competent jurisdiction.

RECLAMATION REFORM ACT OF 1982

36. {(a) Upon a Contractor’s compliance with and discharge of the Repayment
Obligation pursuant to this Contract, subsections {(a) and (b) of Section 213 of the Reclamation
Reform Act of 1982 (96 Stat. 1269) shall apply to affected lands.

{(b)  The obligation of a Contractor to pay the Additional Capital Obligation
shall not affect the Contractor’s status as having repaid all of the construction costs assignable to
the Contractor or the applicability of subsections (a) and (b) of section 213 of the Reclamation
Reform Act of 1982 (96 Stat. 1269) once the Repayment Obligation is paid.

CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

37.  The Contractor hereby certifies that it does not maintain or provide for its
employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments and that it does not permit its
employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities
are maintained. It certifies further that it will not maintain or provide for its employees any
segregated facilities at any of its establishments and that it will not permit its employees to
perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are
maintained. The Contractor agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal
Employment Opportunity clause in this Contract. As used in this certification, the term
“segregated facilities” means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms,
restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas,
parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing
facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact

60



1393
1394
1395
1396
1397
1398
1399
1400

1401
1402

1403
1404
1405
1406
1407

1408

1409
1410
1411
1412
1413
1414
1415
1416

1417

1418
1419
1420
1421

1422
1423
1424
1425

1426

1427
1428

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, or national origin, because of habit, local custom,
disability, or otherwise. The Contractor further agrees that (except where it has obtained
identical certifications from proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) it will obtain
identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts
exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Employment
Opportunity clause; that it will retain such certifications in its files; and that it will forward the
following notice to such proposed subcontractors (except where the proposed subcontractors
have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods):

NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE SUBCONTRACTORS OF REQUIREMENT FOR
CERTIFICATIONS OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

A Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities must be submitted prior to the award of a subcontract
exceeding $10,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Employment
Opportunity clause. The certification may be submitted either for each subcontract or for all
subcontracts during a period (i.e., quarterly, semiannually, or annually). Note: The penalty for
making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

NOTICES

38.  Any notice, demand, or request authorized or required by this Contract shall be
deemed to have been given, on behalf of the Contractor, when mailed, postage prepaid, or
delivered to the Area Manager, South-Central California Area Office, 1243 N Street, Fresno,
California 93721, Bureau of Reclamation, and on behalf of the United States, when mailed,
postage prepaid, or delivered to the Board of Directors of the Byron-Bethany Irrigation
District, 7995 Bruns Road, Byron, California 94514. The designation of the addressee or the
address may be changed by notice given in the same manner as provided in this Article for other
notices.

MEDIUM FOR TRANSMITTING PAYMENT

39. (a)  All payments from the Contractor to the United States under this Contract
shall be by the medium requested by the United States on or before the date payment is due. The
required method of payment may include checks, wire transfers, or other types of payment
specified by the United States.

{b) Upon execution of this Contract, the Contractor shall furnish the
Contracting Officer with the Contractor’s taxpayer’s identification number (TIN). The purpose
for requiring the Contractor’s TIN is for collecting and reporting any delinquent amounts arising
out of the Contractor’s relationship with the United States.

CONTRACT DRAFTING CONSIDERATIONS

40.  This amended Contract has been negotiated and reviewed by the parties hereto,
each of whom is sophisticated in the matters to which this amended Contract pertains. The

61



1429
1430
1431

1432

1433
1434
1435
1436
1437

1438

Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

double-spaced Articles of this amended Contract have been drafied, negotiated, and reviewed by
the parties, and no one party shall be considered to have drafted the stated Articles. Single-
spaced Articles are standard Articles pursuant to Bureau of Reclamation policy.

CONFIRMATION OF CONTRACT

41.  Promptly after the execution of this amended Contract, the Contractor will
provide to the Contracting Officer a certified copy of a final decree of a court of competent
jurisdiction in the State of California, confirming the proceedings on the part of the Contractor
for the authorization of the execution of this amended Contract. This amended Contract shall not
be binding on the United States until the Contractor secures a final decree.

62



Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

1439 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the

1440  day and year first above written,

1441 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

1442 By:

1443 Regional Director

1444 Interior Region 10: California-Great Basin
1445 Bureau of Reclamation

1446 BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
1447 (SEAL)

1448 By:

1449 President of the Board of Directors

1450  Attest:

1451 By:

1452 Secretary of the Board of Directors

63



[rrigation and M&I
Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Central Valley Project, California

CONTRACT BETWE E UNITED STA
AND
BYRON-BETHANY TION D
PROVIDING FOR PROJECT WATER SERVICE
AND FACILITIES REPAYMENT

Exhibits
Exhibit A — Map of Contractor’s Service Area
This Exhibit is unchanged from current Contract..

Exhibit B —~ Rates and Charges
ﬂus Exhibix !emplate is unchanged ﬁom current Con!rac! and is updated annually. Rate Schedules may be found

Exhibit C — Repayment Obligation

This Exhibit template was developed during the WIN Act Negotiations. Relevant data will be incorporated upon
contract execution.



Irrigation and M&1
Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Central Valley Project, California

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES
AND
ON- IRRI N DISTRICT
PROVIDING FOR PROJECT WATER SERVICE
AND FACILITIES YMENT

Exhibits
Exhibit A — Map of Contractor’s Service Area

This Exhibit is unchanged from current Contract..

Exhibit B — Rates and Charges
This Exhibit template is unchanged fmm current Comraca‘ and is updated annually. Rate Schedules may be found

Exhibit C - Repayment Obligation

This Exhibit template was developed during the WIIN Act Negotiations. Relevant daia will be incorporated upon
contract execution.



[ oistrict Boundary — BUREAU OF —

Contractor's Service Area
L] sk sare Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P RECLAMATION
EXHIBIT A ki
EEEs———————————— Vliles A
214-202-879

Date: 472/2020 .
NADistricts\Contractsihyran_bethany'byron_bethany_ T85_20200401.mxd 0 25 ]




Irrigation and M&!
Contract No. 14-06-200-785-LTR1

EXHIBIT B
BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
2020 Rates and Charges
(Per Acre-Foot)
Irrigation M&I Water ]

COST-OF-SERVICE (COS) RATE

Water

Water

Construction Costs $71.17 $0.72
DMC Aqueduct Intertie $0.99

0&M Components
Water Marketing $8.97 $6.12 '
Storage $18.01 $14.99

Deficit Cost $0.00

IHALLBS RALE

IRRIGATION FULL-COST RATE

Section 202(3) Rate is applicable to a Qualified Recipient or to a Limited
Recipient receiving irrigation water on or before October 1, 1981,

$139.79

Section 205(a)(3) Rate is applicable to a Limited Recipient that did not receive
irrigation water on or before October 1, 1981,

"TIERED PRICING COMPONENTS (In Addition to Total COS Rate Above)

$175.30

IRRIGATION

Tier 2 Rate . >80% <=90% of Contract Total [Section 202(3) Irrigation Full Cost
Rate - Irrigation COS Rate]/2 (Amount to be added to Tier | Rate)

$20.33

Tier 3 Rate: >90% of Contract Total [Section 202(3) Irrigation Full Cost Rate -
Irrigation COS Rate] (dmount to be added to Tier 1 Rate)

$40.65

M&I

Tier 2 Rate: >80% <=90% of Contract Total
[M&I Full Cost Rate - M&I COS Rate]/2
(Amomnt to be Added to Tier I Rate)

$0.12

Tier 3 Rate: >90% of Contract Total
[M&I Full Cost Rate - M&I COS Rate]
(Ameonnt to Be Added to Tier | Rate)

CHARGES AND ASSESSMENTS (Paymenis in addition to Rates)

$0.23

P.L. 102-575 Surcharge (Restoration Fund Payment)
[Section 3407(d)(2)(A)]

$10.91

$21.82

P.L. 106-377 Assessment (Trinity Public Utilities District)
[Appendix B, Section 203]

$0.12

$0.12

EXPLANATORY NOTES

The CVP M&I Water Shortage Policy per EIS/EIR dated August 2015 and Record of Decision dated November 2015 defines the M&l
Historic Use as the average quantity of CVP water put to beneficial use during the last three years of water deliveries, unconstrained
(100% allocation) by the availability of CVP water for South of the Delta. Contractor's lust three years in acre feet (AF) are revised as
follows: 2006 = 853 AF. 2011 =907 AF; 2017 = 1,002 AF; which equals a M&I Historic use average quantity of 921 AF.

Additional delai! of rate mmponents is available on the Internet at:

ex.html

JL 3/20/20



Exhibit C%

Repayment Obligation - Current Calculation under the WIIN Act, Section 4011 (a) (2)

" Unpald Construction Cost from the 2020 Water Rate Books*

Contractor: Byron-Bethany ID
Facility: Delta Mendota Canal
Contract: 14-06-200-785-LTR1-P
Irrigation Construction Cost (2020 Irrigation Ratebook, Schedule A-2Ba
Unpaid Cost Discount
Construction Cost e B 2,409,570
2019 Repayment (Estimate) ** 5 255,198
Adjusted Construction Cost ] 2,154372 S 2,091,040
Intertie Construction Cost (N/A): s 133,419 S 119,494
Total H 2,287,791 S 2,210,535
|If Paid in Installments (Used 20 yr CMT)
Due' LR
Payment 1 9/1/2020 S 559,559
Payment 2 9/1/2021 S 559,559
Payment 3 9/1/2022 S 559,559
Payment 4 ~~ 9/1/2023 S 559,559
Total Installment Payments s 2,238,235
20 yr CMT Rates - 04/28/2020 (to be adjusted to effective date of :ontra:t]g 1.000%
Discount Rate (1/2 of the Treasury Rate per the WIIN Act, Section 4011(a)(2)(A)) 0.500%
M&I Construction Cost (2020 M&I Ratebook, Sch A-2Ba)
Unpaid Cost
Construction Cost: w5 6,212
2019 Repayment (Estimate) **
Adjusted Construction Cost™**: s 6,212
Calculation Support: Irrigation Lump Sum or First Payment**** 9/1/2020
Days Until the End of the Fiscal Year 29
| Unpaid Allocated Construction Cost | [ Unpaid Intertie Construction Cost ]| Total |
Beginning Straight Line Present Beginning Straight Line Present Present
Fiscal Yr Balance Repayment Value Balance Repayment Value Values
2020 S 2,154,372 5 195,852 § 194,801 s 133419 § 3032 § 3,016 S 197,817
2021 § 1,958,520 S 195,852 § 193,908 s 130,387 § 3,082 § 3,002 5 195,910
2022 5 1,762,668 S 195,852 § 192,943 s 127,355 § 3082 § 2,987 S 195,931
2023 S 1,566,816 S 195,852 § 191,983 s 124322 § 3,032 § 2,972 S 194,956
2024 & 1,370,964 S 195,852 S 191,028 -] 121,290 § 3,032 § 2,958 5 193,986
2025 5 1,175,112 § 195,852 § 190,078 s 118,258 S 3,032 § 2,943 5 193,021
2026 S 979,260 S 195,852 S 189,132 S 115,226 $ 3,032 5 2,928 S 192,060
2027 & 783408 5 195,852 S 188,191 S 112,193 S 3,032 § 2,914 5 191,105
2028 5 587,556 5 195,852 5 187,255 1 109,161 $ 3032 $ 2,899 S 190,154
2029 § 391,704 S 195,852 § 186,323 S 106,129 $ 3082 5 2,885 S 185,208
2030 S 195,852 § 195,852 § 185,396 s 103,097 $ 3,032 $ 2,870 5 188,267
2031-63 5 100,064 $ 100,064 $ 87,120 S 87,120
Total, Lump Sum Payment 5 2,091,040 § 119,494 5 2,210,535
Amount of Reduction, Lump Sum S 63,332 S 13,925 5 77,257

* Costs are assumed to be paid and all charges are assumed to be accurate. If at a later date charges are determined to need
update, they are still required. Also, unpaid charges are still a requirement under contract.

#* 2019 Repayment is based on a conservative estimate. If not sufficient, the remainder will be billed.

=** Excludes Interest to payment date as Interest will be computed as an annual expense as usual.

#***Contractor has 60 days from the effective date of the contract or installment dates to make payment.

~ M&I Credit from Schedule A-2Ba has been applied to Irrigation Unpaid Amount.

7o be updated. The WIIN Act requires us to have a Constant Maturity Treasury rate based on the effective date of the contract.

~~Final Payment made in installments must be repaid by this date.



AGENDA ITEM 10

BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: 24 SEPTEMBER, 2020
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: RICK GILMORE, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF REPAYMENT CONTRACT 7-07-20-
W0045-LTR1-P BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND THE WEST
SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT FOR CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT
WATER SERVICE, DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE NOTICE OF
EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO CALIFONRIA ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY ACT, DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE A VALIDATION
ACTION AND AUTHORIZING ACTIONS IN FURTHERANCE
THEREOF

BACKGROUNDY

The WSID Board authorized staff to proceed with converting its” existing water service
contract to a permanent repayment contract under the Water Infrastructure
Improvements for the Nation Act (WIIN Act). The WIIN Act authority for contract
conversions sunsets December 16, 2021, which means Reclamation and the Contractors
must have the conversion contracts negotiated and executed prior to December 16, 2021.

Contractors that fully prepay their construction obligation of the CVP will no longer be
subject to requirements of the RRA, once full payout is verified and approved by the
Commissioner. Contractors will receive a letter once this occurs. The District's repayment
obligation is approximately $348,000 and will be funded through the California Municipal
Public Finance Authority or undesignated reserves.

The Repayment Contract is not a project under CEQA because it is a financial activity,
having no impact on the physical environment. BBID may invoke the ongoing project and
existing facilities exemptions in the event the Repayment Contract is deemed a “project.”
Finally, BBID may rely on the common-sense exception because the Repayment Contract
does not result in changes from the environmental baseline.

RECOMMENDATION:
The General Manager respectfully requests the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 2020-
10 as attached to this report.




RESOLUTION 2020-10
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF REPAYMENT CONTRACT 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P
BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT FOR
CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT WATER SERVICE, DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE NOTICE OF
EXEMPTION PURSUANT TO CALIFONRIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT,
DIRECTING STAFF TO FILE A VALIDATION ACTION
AND AUTHORIZING ACTIONS IN FURTHERANCE THEREOF

WHEREAS, The West Side Irrigation District (WSID} entered into a contract for water service
with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (United States) on June 29, 1977, Contract No. 7-07-20-
W0045 (Original Contract), which provided for the delivery of water from the Central Valley Project
diverted through Delta Division facilities through February 28, 1995;

WHEREAS, the United States and WSID, pursuant to subsection 3404{(c)(1) of the Central
Valley Project Improvement Act, subsequently entered into interim renewal contract(s) identified as
Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-[R1 and subsequent Interim Renewal Contracts 7-07-20-W(045-IR2
through 7-07-20-W0045-IR8, which provided for water service to WSID from March 1, 1995 through
February 28, 2006;

WHEREAS, the United States and WSID entered into a long-term contract identified as
Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1 (Existing Contract), which provided for the continued water
service to WSID, following expiration of Contract No. 7-07-20-W(045-IR8;

WHEREAS, WSID fully utilized through reasonable beneficial use all water provided under
the Original Contract, Interim Renewal Contracts, and Long-Term Renewal Contract, either by
receiving and delivering such water to lands within WSID, or by conserving and/or transferring such
water in accordance with law;

WHEREAS, on September 2, 2020, WSID was consolidated with the Byron-Bethany Irrigation
District (BBID) by action of the San Joaquin County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo)
recording the Certificate of Completion, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A";

WHEREAS, BBID is the successor to all of the powers, rights, duties, obligations, functions,
and properties of WSID;

WHEREAS, water obtained from the Central Valley Project (CVP) has been relied upon by
urban and agricultural areas within California for more than 50 years and is considered by BBID as
an essential portion of its water supply;

WHEREAS, the economies of regions within the CVP, including BBID's, depend upon the
continued availability of water, including water service from the CVP;



WHEREAS, on December 16, 2016, the 114th Congress of the United States of America
enacted the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (Pub. L. 114-322, 130 Stat. 1628)
(“WIIN Act”);

WHEREAS, Section 4011(a)(1) of the WIIN Act provides, “upon request of the contractor, the
Secretary of the Department of the Interior shall convert any water service contract in effect on the
date of enactment of this subtitle and between the United States and a [Contractor] to allow for
prepayment of the repayment contract pursuant to paragraph (2) under mutually agreeable terms
and conditions][;]”

WHEREAS, Section 4011 (a){(4)(C) of the WIIN Act further provides that all contracts entered
into pursuant to Section 4011(a)(1) shall “not modify other water service, repayment, exchange and
transfer contractual rights between the [Contractor], and [the United States], or any rights,

obligations, or relationships of the [Contractor] and their landowners as provided under State
law[;]”

WHEREAS, in 2018, pursuant to Section 4011(a)(1), WSID requested that the United States
initiate the process to convert the Existing Contract for water service to a permanent repayment
contract;

WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with the WIIN Act, the United States and WSID
negotiated terms and conditions that convert the Existing Contract to a repayment contract, and
those terms and conditions are reflected in the converted contract, titled “Contract Between the
United States and The West Side Irrigation District Providing for Project Water Service from Delta
Facilities and Facilities Repayment,” (Repayment Contract), attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and
incorporated by reference;

WHEREAS, the Repayment Contract continues water service to the former WSID Contractor
Service Area in accordance with the established parameters, and in the same scope and nature, of
the ongoing CVP and its existing facilities;

WHEREAS, prior to the consolidation, the United States had determined that WSID had
fulfilled all of its obligations under the Existing Contract;

WHEREAS, prior to the consolidation, WSID demonstrated to the satisfaction of the United
States that WSID utilized the CVP Water supplies available to it for reasonable and beneficial use
and expected to utilize fully for reasonable and beneficial use the quantity of CVP water to be made
available pursuant to the Repayment Contract;

WHEREAS, it is imperative to BBID and its landowners and customers that BBID continue
to provide water service to lands within the WSID Contract Service Area for beneficial use, and
BBID, therefore, proposes to execute the Repayment Contract as the successor to WSID;

WHEREAS, the Repayment Contract requires BBID (aka WSID) to pay the remaining amount
of construction costs and/or other capitalized costs associated with the CVP that are allocable to
WSID (WSID Repayment Obligation) by a date certain;



WHEREAS, the United States estimates that BBID’s WSID Repayment Obligation is
$347,906.00;

WHEREAS, upon execution, the Repayment Contract will be perpetual;

WHEREAS, under the Repayment Contract, ongoing receipt and delivery of water will
continue with no expansion of service and no new facilities constructed because BBID will deliver
the water received under the Repayment Contract: (1) to lands within the Contract Service Area for
existing beneficial use and to lands that have been in production, and (2) through existing facilities;

WHEREAS, BBID has reviewed the terms and conditions of the Repayment Contract and
finds the form and content thereof to be acceptable to BBID and appropriate for execution; and

WHEREAS, BBID has copies of contracts, water delivery reports, crop information, and other
data supporting these factual findings.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The facts set forth in the recitals above and in the referenced documents are true and correct,
and the Board so finds and determines.

2. The Board further finds that:

A. Approval of the Repayment Project is not a “project” under CEQA, as defined in
California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15378, because it is merely a legal
and financial transaction that will not cause any physical impact on the environment.

B. If approval of the Repayment Contract is deemed a “project” under CEQA, it is
categorically exempt from further environmental review under CEQA as “existing
facilities,” as defined in California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15301,
because it merely provides for the continued operation of existing facilities, involving
no or negligible expansion of use.

C. If approval of the Repayment Coniract is deemed a “project” under CEQA, it is
exempt from further environmental review under CEQA’s “common sense”
exemption, pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15061,
subdivision (b)(3), because there is no possibility that executing the Repayment
Contract may have a significant effect on the environment.

D. Approval of the Repayment Contract will not create any of the effects provided in
California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15300.2, regarding exceptions to
CEQA exemptions.



The General Manager of BBID is authorized and directed to prepare and file within five (5)
days of the Board adopting this Resolution a Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk of
San Joaquin County for BBID’s Repayment Contract, in accordance with the California Code
of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15062, Subdivision (c)(2).

The Repayment Contract is in substantially the same form presented to the Board and on file
with the Secretary.

The Board approves the Repayment Contract.

The President, General Manager and Secretary of BBID are authorized and directed to
execute the Repayment Contract in substantially the same form presented to the Board,
subject to such additions, deletions, and revisions as the executing officers may approve prior
to execution. Execution provides conclusive proof of such approval.

The Board approves the estimated payment of the Repayment Obligation of $347,906.00.

BBID s officers, staff, and consultants are authorized and directed to take all additional
actions deemed necessary or appropriate to carry out the intent of this Resolution and to
ensure continued water service to BBID and its water users, including to file, as appropriate,
a validation action pursuant to Water Code section 23225.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Rescheduled Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Byron Bethany
Irrigation District on 29 September, 2020 by the following vote:

Ayes: ALVAREZ, BROWN, ENOS, KAGEHIRO, M. MAGGIORE, T. MAGGIORE MUSCO,

Noes:

PEREIRA, TUSO

Abstained:
Absent:

Russell Kagehiro, President

; /s Certificati

L Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Byron Bethany Irrigation District, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Resolution is a true and correct capy entered into the Minutes of the Meeting of 29 September, 2020 at which time a quomim was present,
and no motion to amend or rescind the above resolution was made.

Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary



Article No.

BOONDU AW R

=4

Irrigation and M&I
Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Central Valley Project, California

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES
AND
THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PROVIDING FOR PROJECT WATER SERVICE
FROM DELTA DIVISION AND FACILITIES REPAYMENT

TAB F CONT

Title Page No.
Preamble .......ooeiviiininvcnnnirnnns ceeteerer et easeseer st sttt sssssrosssnassosssnosss |
Explanatory Remtals sissssans Ctesersas e asaerestraes 2
Definitions OO TOOROURUUYSPTUUPOURIOUPURIRPIUPRY |
Term of Contract — Right to Use of Waler ......cc..cccccirnninininnnmnnncinns 12
Water to be Made Available and Delivered to the CONtractor.........ceveeuesessesnsserss 14
Time for Delivery of Water ......iiiiiiiiiircriiiniinirnnsisns s srscsssasssssssssssssesss 19
Point of Diversion and Responsxblllty for DlStl’lbthlOl'l of Water....ccoovevevereereennne 20
Measurement of Water Within the Contractor’s Service Area......ccuenmrriresrescnnn 22
Rates, Method of Payment for Water and Accelerated Repayment of Facilities . 24
Non-Interest Bearing O&M Deficits ..., 35
Sales, Transfers, or Exchanges of Water ........ccociicnnrenisissimmsssssssisnssssainns 35
Application of Payments and Adjustments.........ccniiimirsmmen. 37
Temporary Reductions — Return Flows................. ieeereerreriesasareaaaasiasantistssbans 37
Constraints on the Availability of Water............... eevevereuaes et es s ettt ebes 39
Unavoidable Groundwater Percolation................. 4]
Compliance with Federal Reclamation Laws .....c.conncnniscscsissssnisccressescannns 41
Protection of Water and Air Quality.................. e b1
Water Acquired by the Contractor Other Than me the Unlted Statcs ............... 42
Opinions and Determinations ........cvueeeccereennee JUTUTIUURRO 45
Coordination and Cooperation ceeresasnsnrnes . rreeeeneettiasaes 46
Charges for Delinquent Payments ...... . N 48
Equal Employment Opportunity .....cccoeeeereicereeivcresierisrssssisssssasaans 48
General Obligation — Benefits Conditioned Upon Payment ................................. 50

Compliance with Civil Rights Laws and Regulations ...........ccvuvrniecrrninievesaneens 50



Article No.

23,
24,
25,
26,
27,
28.
29,
30,
31
32,
33.
34,
35.
36.
37,
38.
39.
40,
41.

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

Table of Contents — continued

Title Page No.
Privacy Act Compliance ....... 5t
Contractor to Pay Certain Miscellaneous Costs 52
Water Conservation .. e 32
Existing or Acquired Water or Water RigHtS.csvnsiiiiisisrisisessninsssississssssssanes 54
Operation and Maintenance by the Operating Non-Federal Entity ... 33
Contingent on Appropriation or Allotment of Funds .........ceccciccneneresesnnnn 37
Books, Records, and Reports eRererEes eI eI a LIS e RS s R Re R R AR e Re R w57
Assignment Limited — Successors and Assigns Obllgated RO ¥
Severability ... hetitesfhe A h L bbb aaa e 58
Resolution of DiSputcs .. 59
Officials Not to Benef’t N e 59
Changes in Contractor’s Orgamzatlon anda‘or Servnce Area we 59
Federal Laws......cccoovvnnmmvrsncnnnncns .. 60
Reclamation Rcform Act of’ 1982 it 60
Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities ..........ccevrreernrcesnnninisnsnsnssesnnscsensssssss 61
Notices fhtreaeasa NNt 4 44 4O AL L 044444444 OSOSERE S LS LSOO ESHSERE PRSI ERSEOSS 61
Medium for Transmitting PAYMeNL..........covomivimmsiiniiniiinmmenniiesssssessseseses 62
Contract Drafting Considerations ... w62
Confirmation of CONtract.........ccccmnmininicssnnernisisens 62
Signature Page ... 63

Exhibit A — Map of Contractor’s Service Area
Exhibit B — Rates and Charges
Exhibit C — Repayment Obligation



2

(7]

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTRI-P

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Central Valley Project, California

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES
AND
THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PROVIDING FOR PROJECT WATER SERVICE
FROM DELTA DIVISION AND FACILITIES REPAYMENT

THIS CONTRACT, made this  day of , 20XX, in

pursuance generally of the Act of June 17, 1902, (32 Stat. 388), and acts amendatory thereof or
supplementary thereto, including but not limited to, the Acts of August 26, 1937 (50 Stat. 844),
as amended and supplemented. August 4, 1939 (53 Stat. 1187), as amended and supplemented,
July 2, 1956 (70 Stat. 483), June 21, 1963 (77 Stat. 68), October 12, 1982 (96 Stat. 1263).
October 27, 1986 (100 Stat. 3050), as amended, Title XXXIV of the Act of October 30, 1992
(106 Stat. 4706), as amended, and the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act
(Public Law (Pub. L..) 114-322, 130 Stat. 1628), Section 4011 (a-d) and (f) (“WIIN Act™), all
collectively hereinafter referred to as Federal Reclamation law, between the UNITED STATES
OF AMERICA, hereinafter referred to as the United States, represented by the officer executing
this Contract, hereinafter referred to as the Contracting Officer, and THE WEST SIDE
IRRIGATION DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, a public agency of the State
of California, duly organized, existing, and acting pursuant to the laws thereof;

WITNESSETH, That:



15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

EXPLANATORY RECITALS

[1®1 WHEREAS, the United States has constructed and is operating the
California Central Valley Project (Project), for diversion, storage, carriage, distribution, and
beneficial use, for flood control, irrigation, municipal, domestic, industrial, fish and
wildlife mitigation, protection and restoration, generation and distribution of electric energy,
salinity control, navigation, and other beneficial uses, of waters of the Sacramento River,
the American River, the Trinity River, and the San Joaquin River and their tributaries;
and

[2"] WHEREAS, the United States constructed the Delta-Mendota Canal and
related facilities, which will be used in part for the furnishing of water to the Contractor
pursuant to the terms of this Contract; and

[3¥] WHEREAS, the rights to Project Water were acquired by the United
States pursuant to California law for operation of the Project; and

[4"] WHEREAS, the United States and the Contractor entered into
Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045, as amended, which established terms for the delivery to the
Contractor of Project Water from the Delta Division facilities from June 29, 1977, though
February 28, 1995; and

[5"] WHEREAS, the United States and the Contractor have pursuant to
Subsection 3404(c)(1) of the Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA),
subsequently entered into interim renewal contract(s) identified as Contract No. 7-07-20-

W0045-IR1 and subsequent Interim Renewal Contracts 7-07-20-W0045-1R2 through 7-07-20-



36

37

38

39

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

43

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

W0045-1R8, which provided for water service to the Contractor from March 1, 1995
through February 28, 2006; and

[6"] WHEREAS, the United States and the Contractor entered into a long-term
contract identified as Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR]1, her¢inafier referred to as the Existing
Contract, which provided for the continued water service to the Contractor following expiration
of Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-1R8, and which was in effect the date the WIIN Act was
enacted; and

[7"] WHEREAS, pursuant to a June 5, 2001, “Agreement for Assignment of
Entitlement to CVP Water Between the City of Tracy and The West Side Irrigation District,” the
Contractor assigned to the City of Tracy 2,500 acre feet of the Contractor’s entitlement to Project
Water under Contract no. 7-07-20-W0045-IR 7, which assignment is reflected in the decreased
quantity of Water Made Available under subdivision (a) of Article 3 of this Contract; and

[8%]) WHEREAS, on February 27, 2004, the Contractor, the United States and
the City of Tracy entered into an Agreement for Assignment of Portion of Water Service
Contract (“Assignment Agreement™), wherein the United States approved the initial assignment
of 2,500 acre-feet of water and the future assignment of an additional 2,500 acre-feet of Project
Water available to the Contractor under Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045, as then being
implemented through Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-B, to the City of Tracy; and

[9"] WHEREAS, the Existing Contract reflects completion of the initial
assignment referenced in 7% recital above, by reducing the quantity of Project Water available to

the Contractor from 7,500 to 5,000 acre feet; and



57

38

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

[10"] WHEREAS, the Assignment Agreement also allows the City of Tracy to
exercises its right to obtain a future assignment of an additional 2,500 acre-feet of Project Water
available to the Contractor under the Existing Contract.

[11"] WHEREAS, on December 16, 2016, the 114" Congress of the United

States of America enacted the WIIN Act; and

[12%] WHEREAS, Section 4011(a)(1) provides that “upon request of the
contractor, the Secretary of the Interior shall convert any water service contract in effect on the
date of enactment of this subtitle and between the United States and a water users’ association
[Contractor] to allow for prepayment of the repayment contract pursuant to paragraph (2) under
mutually agreeable terms and conditions.”; and

[13%] WHEREAS, Section 4011(a)(1) further provides that “the manner of
conversion under this paragraph shall be as follows: (A) Water service contracts that were
entered into under section (e) of the Act of August 4, 1939 (53 Stat. 1196), to be converted under
this section shall be converted to repayment contracts under section 9(d) of that Act (53 Stat.
1195)”; and “(B) Water service contracts that were entered under subsection (¢)(2) of section 9
of the Act of August 4, 1939 (53 Stat. 1194), to be converted under this section shall be
converted to a contract under subsection (c)(1) of section 9 of that Act (53 Stat. 1195).”; and

[14%] WHEREAS, Section 4011(a)(4)XC) further provides all contracts entered
into pursuant to Section 4011(a)(1), (2), and (3) shall “not modify other water service,
repayment, exchange and transfer contractual rights between the water users’ association
[Contractor], and the Bureau of Reclamation, or any rights, obligations, or relationships of the

water users’ association [Contractor] and their landowners as provided under State law.”; and



79

30

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

[15"] WHEREAS, Section 4011(d)(3) and (4) of the WIIN Act provides that
“implementation of the provisions of this subtitle shall not alter...(3) the priority of a water
service or repayment contractor to receive water; or (4) except as expressly provided in this
section, any obligations under the Federal Reclamation law, including the continuation of
Restoration Fund charges pursuant to section 3407(d) (Pub. L. 102-575), of the water service and
repayment contractors making prepayments pursuant to this section.”; and

[16"] WHEREAS, upon the request of the Contractor, the WIIN Act directs the
Secretary to convert irrigation water service contracts and municipal and industrial (M&I) water
service contracts into repayment contracts, amend existing repayment contracts, and allow
contractors to prepay their construction cost obligations pursuant to applicable Federal
Reclamation law; and

[17"] WHEREAS, the United States has determined that the Contractor
has fulfilled all of its obligations under the Existing Contract; and

[18%] WHEREAS, the Contractor has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the
Contracting Officer that the Contractor has utilized the Project Water supplies available
to it for reasonable and beneficial use and/or has demonstrated future demand for water
use such that the Contractor has the capability and expects to utilize fully for reasonable
and beneficial use the quantity of Project Water to be made available to it pursuant to
this Contract; and

[19"™] WHEREAS, water obtained from the Project has been relied upon by
urban and agricultural areas within California for more than 50 years, and is considered

by the Contractor as an essential portion of its water supply; and



101

102

103

io4

05

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

[20%] WHEREAS, the economies of regions within the Project, including the
Contractor’s, depend upon the continued availability of water, including water service
from the Project; and

[21%) WHEREAS, the Secretary intends through coordination, cooperation, and
partnerships to pursue measures to improve water supply, water quality, and reliability of the
Project for all Project purposes; and

[22"4] WHEREAS, the mutual goals of the United States and the Contractor
include: to provide for reliable Project Water supplies; to control costs of those supplies;
to achieve repayment of the Project as required by law; to guard reasonably against Project
Water shortages; to achieve a reasonable balance among competing demands for use of
Project Water; and to comply with all applicable environmental statutes, all consistent with
the legal obligations of the United States relative to the Project; and

[23¢ WHEREAS, the parties intend by this Contract to maintain a cooperative
relationship in order to achieve their mutual goals; and

[24"] WHEREAS, the Contractor has utilized or may utilize transfers, contract
assignments, rescheduling, and conveyance of Project Water and non-Project water under this
Contract as tools to minimize the impacts of a Condition of Shortage and to maximize the
beneficial use of water; and

[25"%] WHEREAS, the parties desire and intend that this Contract not provide a
disincentive to the Contractor in continuing to carry out the beneficial activities set out in

the Explanatory Recital immediately above; and



Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

122 [26%] WHEREAS, the Contracting Officer and the Contractor agree that this
123 Contract complies with Section 4011 of the WIIN Act; and

124 [27%] WHEREAS, the Contracting Officer and the Contractor agree to amend
125  and convert the Existing Contract pursuant to section 4011 of the WIIN Act and other Federal
126  Reclamation law on the terms and conditions set forth below;

127 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual and dependent covenants
128  herein contained, it is hereby mutually agreed by the parties hereto as follows:

129 DEFINITIONS

130 1. When used herein unless otherwise distinctly expressed, or manifestly

131 incompatible with the intent of the parties as expressed in this Contract, the term:

132 (a)  “Additional Capital Obligation” shall mean construction costs or other
133 capitalized costs incurred after the Effective Date or not reflected in the Existing Capital

134  Obligation as defined herein and in accordance with Section 4011, subsection (a)(2)(B) and
135  (a)(3)XB) of the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (Pub. L. 114-322, 130
136 Stat. 1628) (“WIIN Act™);

137 (b)  “Calendar Year” shall mean the period January ] through December 31,
138 both dates inclusive;

139 (¢)  *“Charges” shall mean the payments required by Federal Reclamation law
140  in addition to the Rates and Tiered Pricing Component specified in this Contract as

141  determined annually by the Contracting Officer pursuant to this Contract;



142

143

144

145

146

147

143

149

150

51

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

Contract No., 7-07-20-W0045-L.TR1-P

(d) “Condition of Shortage” shall mean a condition respecting the Project
during any Year such that the Contracting Officer is unable to deliver sufficient water to meet the
Contract Total;

(¢)  “Contracting Officer” shall mean the Secretary of the Interior's duly
authorized representative acting pursuant to this Contract or applicable Federal Reclamation law
or regulation;

H “Contract Total” shall mean the maximum amount of water to which the
Contractor is entitled under subdivision (a) of Article 3 of this Contract;

(g2  “Contractor’s Service Area” shall mean the area to which the Contractor is
permitted to provide Project Water under this Contract as described in Exhibit “A”
attached hereto, which may be modified from time to time in accordance with Article 34
of this Contract without amendment of this Contract;

(h)  “CVPIA” shall mean the Central Valley Project Improvement Act, Title
XXX1V of the Act of October 30, 1992 (106 Stat. 4706);

(i) “Delta Division Facilities” shall mean those existing and future Project
facilities in and south of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Rivers Delta, including, but not
limited to, the C.W. “Bill” Jones Pumping Plant, the O'Neill Forebay, the O'Neill
Pumping/Generating Plant, and the San Luis Reservoir, used to divert, store, and convey
water to those Project Contractors entitled to receive water conveyed through the Delta-

Mendota Canal;



166

167

168

169

170

171

176

177

178

179

180

181

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

() “Eligible Lands” shall mean all lands to which Irrigation Water may be
delivered in accordance with Section 204 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (96 Stat.
1263), as amended;

(k) “Lxcess Lands™ shall mean all lands in excess of the limitations
contained in Section 204 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982, other than those lands
exempt from acreage limitation under Federal Reclamation law;

h “Existing Capital Obligation™ shall mean the remaining amount of
construction costs or other capitalized costs allocable to the Contractor as described in section
4011, subsections (a)(2)(A) and (a)(3)(A) of the WIIN Act, and as identified in the Central
Valley Project Irrigation Water Rates and/or Municipal and Industrial Water Rates, respectively,
dated Month/Day/Year [specify ratebook year for all contractors.] [contractor specific to
address the intertie], as adjusted to reflect payments not reflected in such schedule. The
Contracting Officer has computed the Existing Capital Obligation and such amount is set forth in
Exhibit “C™, which is incorporated herein by reference;

(m)  “Full Cost Rate” shall mean an annual rate, as determined by the
Contracting Officer that shall amortize the expenditures for construction properly
allocable to the Project irrigation or M&I functions, as appropriate, of facilities in
service including all O&M deficits funded, less payments, over such periods as may be
required under Federal Reclamation law, or applicable contract provisions. Interest will
accrue on both the construction expenditures and funded O&M deficits from October 12,
1982, on costs outstanding at that date, or from the date incurred in the case of costs

arising subsequent to October 12 1982, and shall be calculated in accordance with



184

185

186

187

188

89

190

191

192
193

194
195
196
197

198
199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

207

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

subsections 202(3)(B) and (3){C) of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982. The Full Cost
Rate includes actual operation, maintenance, and replacement costs consistent with
Section 426.2 of the Rules and Regulations for the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982;

(n)  “Ineligible Lands” shall mean all lands to which Irrigation Water may
not be delivered in accordance with Section 204 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982;

(0)  “Irrigation Full Cost Water Rate” shall mean the Full Cost Rate
applicable to the delivery of Irrigation Water;

(p)  “Irrigation Water” shall mean the use of Project Water to irrigate

lands primarily for the production of commercial agricultural crops or livestock, and
domestic and other uses that are incidental thereto;

(@)  “Landholder” shall mean a party that directly or indirectly owns or
leases nonexempt land, as provided in 43 CFR 426.2;

(n “Municipal and Industrial (M&I) Water” shall mean the use of Project
Water for municipal, industrial, and miscellaneous other purposes not falling under the

definition of “Irrigation Water” or within another category of water use under an
applicable Federal authority;

(s} “ME&I Full Cost Water Rate” shall mean the Full Cost Rate
applicable to the delivery of M&I Water;

(t) “Operation and Maintenance” or “O&M?” shall mean normal and
reasonable care, control, operation, repair, replacement (other than capital replacement),
and maintenance of Project facilities;

(u)  “Operating Non-Federal Entity” shall mean the entity(ies), its (their)
successors ot assigns, which has (have) the obligation to operate and maintain all or 2

portion of the Delta Division Facilities pursuant to written agreement(s) with the United

10



208

249

210

21

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTRI1-P

States. When this Contract was entered into, the Operating Non-Federal Entity was the
San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority;

(v)  “Project” shall mean the Central Valley Project owned by the United
States and managed by the Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation;

(w)}  “Project Contractors” shall mean all parties who have contracts for
water service for Project Water from the Project with the United States pursuant to Federal
Reclamation law;

(x)  “Project Water” shall mean all water that is developed, diverted,
stored, or delivered by the Secretary in accordance with the statutes authorizing the
Project and in accordance with the terms and conditions of water rights acquired
pursuant to California law;

(¥)  “Rates” shall mean the payments determined annually by the
Contracting Officer in accordance with the then-current applicable water ratesetting
policies for the Project, as described in subdivision (a) of Article 7 of this Contract;

(z) “Recent Historic Average” shall mean the most recent five (5)-year
average of the final forecast of Water Made Available to the Contractor pursuant to this
Contract or its preceding contract(s);

(aa) “Repayment Obligation” for Water Delivered as Irrigation Water shall
mean the Existing Capital Obligation discounted by % of the Treasury rate, which shall be the
amount due and payable to the United States, pursuant to section 4011(a)(2)(A) of the WIIN Act;
and for Water Delivered as M&I Water shall mean the amount due and payable to the United

States, pursuant to section 4011(a)(3)(A) of the WIIN Act;

1



230

231

b
Ll
-

T
[F%]
wn

B ]
L
(=

243

247

248

249

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-1.'TR1-P

(bb) “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Interior, a duly appointed
successor, or an authorized representative acting pursuant to any authority of the
Secretary and through any agency of the Department of the Interior;

(cc) “Tiered Pricing Component™ shall be the incremental amount to be
paid for each acre-foot of Water Delivered as described in Article 7 of this Contract and
as provided for in Exhibit “B”;

(dd) “Water Delivered™ or “Delivered Water” shall mean Project Water
diverted for use by the Contractor at the point(s) of delivery approved by the Contracting
Officer;

(ee) “Water Made Available” shall mean the estimated amount of
Project Water that can be delivered to the Contractor for the upcoming Year as declared
by the Contracting Officer, pursuant to subdivision (a) of Article 4 of this Contract;

(ff)  “Water Scheduled” shall mean Project Water made available to the
Contractor for which times and quantities for delivery have been established by the
Contractor and Contracting Officer, pursuant to subdivision (b) of Article 4 of this Contract;
and

(gg) “Year” shall mean the period from and including March | of each
Calendar Year through the last day of February of the following Calendar Year.

TERM OF CONTRACT — RIGHT TO USE OF WATER

2. (a) This Contract shall be effective [Effective Date]. hereinafter known as the

“Effective Date”, and shall continue so long as the Contractor pays applicable Rates and Charges



251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

under this Contract, consistent with Section 9(d) or 9(c)(1) of the Act of August 4, 1939 (53 Stat.
1195) as applicable, and applicable law;

(1)  Provided That the Contracting Officer shall not seek to terminate

this Contract for failure to fully or timely pay applicable Rates and Charges by the Contactor,
unless the Contracting Officer has first provided at least sixty (60) calendar days written notice
to the Contractor of such failure to pay and the Contractor has failed to cure such failure to pay,
or to diligently commence and maintain full curative payments satisfactory to the Contracting
Officer within the sixty (60) calendar days’ notice period,

(2)  Provided, further, That the Contracting Officer shall not seek to

suspend making water available or declaring Water Made Available pursuant to this Contract for
non-compliance by the Contractor with the terms of this Contract or Federal law, unless the
Contracting Officer has first provided at least thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the
Contractor and the Contractor has failed to cure such non-compliance, or to diligently commence
curative actions satisfactory to the Contracting Officer for a non-compliance that cannot be fully
cured within the thirty (30) calendar days’ notice period. If the Contracting Officer has
suspended making water available pursuant to this paragraph, upon cure of such non-compliance
satisfactory to the to the Contracting Officer, the Contracting Officer shall resume making water
available and declaring Water Made Available pursuant to this Contract;
(3)  Provided, further, That this Contract may be terminated at any

time by mutual consent of the parties hereto.

(b)  Upon complete payment of the Repayment Obligation by the Contractor,

and notwithstanding any Additional Capital Obligation that may later be established, the acreage

13



Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

273 limitations, reporting, and full cost pricing provisions of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982,
274  and subdivisions (j) Eligible Lands, (k) Excess Lands, and (n) Ineligible Lands, of Article 1 of
275 this Contract shall no Jonger be applicable,

276 {c)  Notwithstanding any provision of this Contract, the Contractor reserves

277  and shall have all rights and benefits under the Act of July 2, 1956 (70 Stat. 483), to the extent
278  allowed by law.

279 (d) Notwithstanding any provision of this Contract, the Contractor reserves

280  and shall have all rights and benefits under the Act of June 21, 1963 (77 Stat. 68), to the extent
281  allowed by law.

282 WATER TO BE MADE AVAILABLE AND DELIVERED TQ THE CONTRACTOR

283 3. (a)  During each Year, consistent with all applicable State water rights
284  permits, and licenses, Federal law, and subject to the provisions set forth in Articles 11 and
285 12 of this Contract, the Contracting Officer shall make available for delivery to the

286  Contractor 5,000 acre-feet of Project Water for irrigation and M&I purposes. Water

287  Delivered to the Contractor in accordance with this subdivision shall be scheduled and
288  paid for pursuant to the provisions of Articles 4 and 7 of this Contract.

289 (b}  Because the capacity of the Project to deliver Project Water has been
290  constrained in recent years and may be constrained in the future due to many factors
291 including hydrologic conditions and implementation of Federal and State laws, the

292 likelihood of the Contractor actually receiving the amount of Project Water set out in
293 subdivision (a) of this Article in any given Year is uncertain. The Contracting Officer's

294  modeling referenced in the programmatic environmental impact statement prepared

14



295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

in

312

313

314

315

316

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTRI1-P

pursuant to Section 3404(c) of the CVPIA projected that the Contract Total set forth in
this Contract will not be available to the Contractor in many years. During the most recent five
years prior to execution of the Existing Contract, the Recent Historic Average Water Made
Available to the Contractor was 3,290 acre-feet. Nothing in this subdivision (b) of this Article
shall affect the rights and obligations of the parties under any provision of this Contract.

(¢)  The Contractor shall utilize the Project Water in accordance with all
applicable legal requirements.

(1) Inthe event any Project Contractor (other than a Cross Valley
Contractor) that receives Project Water through the Delta Division Facilities obtains a
contractual agreement that the Contracting Officer shall make Project Water available at
a point or points of delivery in or north of the Delta, at the request of the Contractor and
upon completion of any required environmental documentation, this Contract shall be
amended to provide for deliveries in or north of the Delta on mutually agreeable terms.
Such amendments to this Contract shall be limited solely to those changes made necessary by
the addition of such alternate points of delivery in or north of the Delta; Provided, That
the Contracting Officer's use of the Harvey O. Banks Pumping Plant to deliver Project
Water does not trigger this right of amendment.

(d)  The Contractor shall make reasonable and beneficial use of all water
furnished pursuant to this Contract. Groundwater recharge programs (direct, indirect, or
in lieu), groundwater banking programs, surface water storage programs, and other
similar programs utilizing Project Water or other water furnished pursuant to this

Contract conducted within the Contractor's Service Area which are consistent with



37

318

9

320

2

322

323

324

325

326

327

28

29

330

kX))

332

333

334

335

336

KLY

338

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

applicable State law and result in use consistent with Federal Reclamation law will be

allowed; Provided That any direct recharge program(s) is (are) described in the

Contractor's water conservation plan submitted pursuant to Article 25 of this Contract;

Provided, further, That such water conservation plan demonstrates sufficient lawful uses

exist in the Contractor's Service Area so that using a long-term average, the quantity of
Delivered Water is demonstrated to be reasonable for such uses and in compliance with
Federal Reclamation law. Groundwater recharge programs, groundwater banking
programs, surface water storage programs, and other similar programs utilizing Project
Water or other water furnished pursuant to this Contract conducted outside the
Contractor's Service Area may be permitted upon written approval of the Contracting
Officer, which approval will be based upon environmental documentation, Project Water
rights, and Project operational concerns. The Contracting Officer will address such
concerns in regulations, policies, or guidelines.

(¢)  The Contractor shall comply with requirements applicable to the
Contractor in biological opinion(s) prepared as a result of a consultation regarding the execution
of any water service contract between the Contracting Officer and the Contractor in effect
immediately prior to the Effective Date undertaken pursuant to Section 7 of the Endangered
Species Act of 1973 (ESA), as amended, that are within the Contractor's legal authority to
implement. The Existing Contract, which evidences in excess of 26 years of diversions for
irrigation and/or M&1I purposes of the quantities of Project Water provided in subdivision (a) of
Article 3 of this Contract, will be considered in developing an appropriate baseline for any

required biological assessment(s) prepared pursuant to the ESA, and any other needed



339

340

341

342

343

34

345

346

347

348

349

350

351

as2

353

354

355

356

357

358

359

360

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

environmental review. Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the Contractor from
challenging or seeking judicial relief in a court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any
biological opinion or other environmental documentation referred to in this Article.

) Following the declaration of Water Made Available under Article 4 of
this Contract, the Contracting Officer will make a determination whether Project Water, or
other water available to the Project, can be made available to the Contractor in addition to
the Contract Total under this Article during the Year without adversely impacting other
Project Contractors. At the request of the Contractor, the Contracting Officer will
consult with the Contractor prior to making such a determination. If the Contracting
Officer determines that Project Water, or other water available to the Project, can be
made available to the Contractor, the Contracting Officer will announce the availability of
such water and shall so notify the Contractor as soon as practical. The Contracting
Officer will thereafter meet with the Contractor and other Project Contractors capable of
taking such water to determine the most equitable and efficient allocation of such water.
If the Contractor requests the delivery of any quantity of such water, the Contracting
Officer shall make such water available to the Contractor in accordance with applicable
statutes, regulations, guidelines, and policies. Subject to existing long-term contractual
commitments, water rights, and operational constraints, long-term Project Contractors shall
have a first right to acquire such water, including Project Water made available pursuant
to Section 215 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982,

(g)  The Contractor may request permission to reschedule for use during

the subsequent Year some or all of the Water Made Available to the Contractor during

17



361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

in

KYE]

374

375

376

3

378

379

380

K}

182

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

the current Year, referred to as “rescheduled water.” The Contractor may request
permission to use during the current Year a quantity of Project Water which may be
made available by the United States to the Contractor during the subsequent Year referred
to as “preuse.” The Contracting Officer's written approval may permit such uses in
accordance with applicable statutes, regulations, guidelines, and policies.

(h)  The Contractor’s right pursuant to Federal Reclamation law and
applicable State law to the reasonable and beneficial use of the Water Delivered pursuant to
this Contract shall not be disturbed, and this Contract shall continue so long as the
Contractor pays applicable Rates and Charges under this Contract consistent with Section
9(d) or 9(c)(1) of the Act of August 4, 1939 (53 Stat. 1195) as applicable, and applicable
law. Nothing in the preceding sentence shall affect the Contracting Officer’s ability to impose
shortages under Article 11 or subdivision (b) of Article 12 of this Contract.

(i) Project Water furnished to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract
may be delivered for purposes other than those described in subdivisions (p) and (r) of
Article 1 of this Contract upon written approval by the Contracting Officer in
accordance with the terms and conditions of such approval.

() The Contracting Officer shall make reasonable efforts to protect the
water rights necessary for the Project and to provide the water available under this Contract.
The Contracting Officer shall not object to participation by the Contractor, in the capacity
and to the extent permitted by law, in administrative proceedings related to the Project
Water rights; Provided. That the Contracting Officer retains the right to object to the

substance of the Contractor's position in such a proceeding; Provided, further, That in

18



383

384

385

386

387

388

389

390

i

392

393

394

395

3%

397

393

399

400

401

402

403

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

such proceedings the Contracting Officer shall recognize the Contractor has a legal right
under the terms of this Contract to use Project Water.

TIME FOR DELIVERY OF WATER

4, (a)  On or about February 20 each Calendar Year, the Contracting Officer
shall announce the Contracting Officer's expected declaration of the Water Made
Available. Such declaration will be expressed in terms of Water Made Available and
the Recent Historic Average and will be updated monthly, and more frequently if
necessaty, based on the then-current operational and hydrologic conditions and a new
declaration with changes, if any, to the Water Made Available will be made. The
Contracting Officer shall provide forecasts of Project operations and the basis of the
estimate, with relevant supporting information, upon the written request of the
Contractor. Concurrently with the declaration of the Water Made Available, the
Contracting Officer shall provide the Contractor with the updated Recent Historic
Average.

(b)  On or before each March 1 and at such other times as necessary, the
Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer a written schedule, satisfactory to the
Contracting Officer, showing the monthly quantities of Project Water to be delivered by
the United States to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract for the Year commencing
on such March 1. The Contracting Officer shall use all reasonable means to deliver
Project Water according to the approved schedule for the Year commencing on such

March 1.

19



404

405

406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

413

419

420

421

422

423

424

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

(c)  The Contractor shall not schedule Project Water in excess of the
quantity of Project Water the Contractor intends to put to reasonable and beneficial use
within the Contractor's Service Area or to sell, transfer, or exchange pursuant to Article
9 of this Contract during any Year.

(d)  Subject to the conditions set forth in subdivision (a) of Article 3 of this
Contract, the United States shall deliver Project Water to the Contractor in accordance
with the initial schedule submitted by the Contractor pursuant to subdivision (b) of this
Article, or any written revision(s) thereto satisfactory to the Contracting Officer, submitted
within a reasonable time prior to the date(s) on which the requested change(s) is/are to be

implemented.

POINT OF DIVERSION AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR DISTRIBUTION OF WATER

5. (a)  Project Water scheduled pursuant to subdivision (b) of Article 4 of this
Contract shall be delivered to the Contractor at a point or points on the Delta-Mendota
Canal and any additional point or points of delivery either on Project facilities or another
location or locations mutually agreed to in writing by the Contracting Officer and the
Contractor,

(b)  The Contracting Officer, either directly or indirectly through its
written agreements(s) with the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), shall make all
reasonable efforts to maintain sufficient flows and levels of water in the Project facilities
to deliver Project Water to the Contractor at the point or points of delivery established

pursuant to subdivision (a) of this Article.

20



425 .

426

427

428

429

430

431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

4432

443

444

445

446

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

(¢)  The Contractor shall deliver Irrigation Water in accordance with any
applicable land classification provisions of Federal Reclamation law and the associated
regulations. The Contractor shall not deliver Project Water to land outside the
Contractor's Service Area unless approved in advance by the Contracting Officer.

(d)  All Water Delivered to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall
be measured and recorded with equipment furnished, installed, operated, and maintained
by the Contracting Officer either directly or indirectly through its written agreements(s)
with the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), unless undertaken by the Contractor with
the consent of the Contracting Officer at the point or points of delivery established
pursuant to subdivision (a) of this Article. Upon the request of either party to this
Contract, the Contracting Officer shall investigate, or cause to be investigated by the
appropriate Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), the accuracy of such measurements and
shall take any necessary steps to adjust any errors appearing therein. For any period of
time when accurate measurements have not been made, the Contracting Officer shall
consult with the Contractor and the appropriate Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), if any,
prior to making a final determination of the quantity delivered for that period of time.

(e)  Absent a separate contrary written agreement with the Contractor,
neither the Contracting Officer nor any Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies) shall be
responsible for the control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or distribution of Water
Delivered to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract beyond the point or points of
delivery established pursuant to subdivision (a) of this Article. The Contractor shall

indemnify the United States, its officers, employees, agents, and assigns on account of

21



447

448

449

450

451

452

453

454

455

456

457

453

459

460

461

462

463

464

463

466

467

468

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTRI1-P

damage or claim of damage of any nature whatsoever for which there is legal
responsibility, including property damage, personal injury, or death arising out of or
connected with the control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or distribution of such Water
Delivered beyond such point or points of delivery except for any damage or claim arising
out of: (i) acts or omissions of the Contracting Officer or any of its officers, employees,
agents, and assigns, including the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies) with the intent of
creating the situation resulting in any damage or claim; (ii) willful misconduct of the
Contracting Officer or any of its officers, employees, agents, and assigns, including the
Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies); (iii) negligence of the Contracting Officer or any of its
officers, employees, agents, and assigns, including the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies); or
(iv) a malfunction of facilities owned and/or operated by the United States or the Operating
Non-Federal Entity(ies).

MEASUREM F WATER WITHIN THE CONTRACTOR’S SERVICE AREA

6. (a)  The Contractor has established a measuring program satisfactory to

the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall ensure that all surface water delivered for
irrigation purposes within the Contractor's Service Area is measured at each agricultural
turnout and such water delivered for M&1 purposes is measured at each M&] service
connection. The water measuring devices or water measuring methods of comparable
effectiveness must be acceptable to the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall be
responsible for installing, operating, maintaining, and repairing all such measuring devices
and implementing all such water measuring methods at no cost to the United States. The

Contractor shall use the information obtained from such water measuring devices or



469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485

486

487

488

489

490

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTRI1-P

water measuring methods to ensure its proper management of the water; to bill water users for
water delivered by the Contractor; and, if applicable, to record water delivered for M&I
purposes by customer class as defined in the Contractor's water conservation plan
provided for in Article 25 of this Contract. Nothing herein contained, however, shall
preclude the Contractor from establishing and collecting any charges, assessments, or
other revenues autharized by California law. The Contractor shall include a summary of
all its annual surface water deliveries in the annual report described in subdivision (c) of
Article 25 of this Contract.

(b)  To the extent the information has not otherwise been provided, upon
execution of this Contract, the Contractor shall provide to the Contracting Officer a written
report describing the measurement devices or water measuring methods being used or to
be used to implement subdivision (a) of this Article and identifying the agricultural
turnouts and the M&I service connections or alternative measurement programs
approved by the Contracting Officer, at which such measurement devices or water
measuring methods are being used, and, if applicable, identifying the locations at which
such devices and/or methods are not yet being used including a time schedule for
implementation at such locations. The Contracting Officer shall advise the Contractor
in writing within 60 days as to the adequacy and necessary modifications, if any, of the
measuring devices or water measuring methods identified in the Contractor’s report and
if the Contracting Officer does not respond in such time, they shall be deemed adequate.
If the Contracting Officer notifies the Contractor that the measuring devices or methods

are inadequate, the parties shall within 60 days following the Contracting Officer's

23



491

492

493

494

495

496

497

498

499

500

501

502

503
504

505

506

507

508

309

510

S

512

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

response, negotiate in good faith the earliest practicable date by which the Contractor shall
modify said measuring devices and/or measuring methods as required by the Contracting
Officer to ensure compliance with subdivision (a) of this Article.

(¢}  All new surface water delivery systems installed within the Contractor's
Service Area after the Effective Date shall also comply with the measurement
provisions described in subdivision (a) of this Article,

(d)  The Contractor shall inform the Contracting Officer and the State of
California in writing by April 30 of each Year of the monthly volume of surface water
delivered within the Contractor's Service Area during the previous Year.

(¢)  The Contractor shall inform the Contracting Officer and the Operating
Non-Federal Entity(ies) on or before the 20" calendar day of each month of the quantity

of Irrigation Water and M&1 Water taken during the preceding month.

RATES, METHOD OF PAYMENT FOR WATER AND ACCELERATED
REPAYMENT OF FACILITIES

7. (@) Notwithstanding the Contractor’s full prepayment of the
Repayment Obligation pursuant to section 4011, subsection (a)(2)(A) and subsection
(a)(3)(A) of the WIIN Act, as set forth in Exhibit “C”, and any payments required
pursuant to section 4011, subsection (b) of the WIIN Act, to reflect the adjustment for
the final cost allocation as described in this Article, subsection (b), the Contractor’s
Project construction and other obligations shall be determined in accordance with: (i)
the Secretary’s ratesetting policy for Irrigation Water adopted in 1988 and the Secretary’s

then-existing ratesetting policy for M&I Water, consistent with the WIIN Act; and such

24



518

519

520

n
-2
I3

531

533

534

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR 1-P

ratesetting policies shall be amended, modified, or superseded only through a public
notice and comment procedure: (ii) applicable Federal Reclamation law and associated
rules and regulations, or policies, and (iii) other applicable provisions of this Contract.
Payments shall be made by cash transaction, electronic funds transfers, or any other
mechanism as may be agreed to in writing by the Contractor and the Contracting Officer.
The Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing Component applicable to the Contractor upon
execution of this Contract are set forth in Exhibit “B™, as may be revised annually.

() The Contractor shall pay the United States as provided for in this
Article of this Contract for all Delivered Water at Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing
Component in accordance with policies for Irrigation Water and M&1 Water. The Contractor’s
Rates shall be established to recover its estimated reimbursable costs included in the operation
and maintenance component of the Rate and amounts established to recover deficits and other
charges, if any, including construction costs as identified in the following subdivisions.

(2) In accordance with the WIIN Act, the Contractor’s allocable share
of Project construction costs will be repaid pursuant to the provisions of this Contract.

(A)  The amount due and payable to the United States, pursuant
to the WIIN Act, shall be the Repayment Obligation. The Repayment Obligation has been
computed by the Contracting Officer in a manner consistent with the WIIN Act and is set forth
as a lump sum payment (M&I and Irrigation) and as four (4) approximately equal annual
installments (Irrigation Only) to be repaid no later than three (3) years after the Effective Date as
set forth in Exhibit “C”. There could be one or two exhibits in most cases due to more than

one service areca [For Irrigation contractors and M&I contractors] The Repayment

25



540

541

542

544

545

546

547

548

549

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

Obligation is due in lump sum by [Month Day, Year]| as provided by the WIIN Act. The
Contractor must provide appropriate notice to the Contracting Officer in writing no later than
thirty (30) days prior to [Month Day, Year] [Division Level: consider the effective date of
the contract being converted] if electing to repay the amount due using the lump sum
alternative. If such notice is not provided by such date. the Contractor shall be deemed to have
elected the installment payment alternative, in which case, the first such payment shall be made
no later than [Month Day, Year] [Division Level: consider the effective date of the contract
being converted]. The second payment shall be made no later than the first anniversary of the
first payment date. The third payment shall be made no later than the second anniversary of the
first payment date. The final payment shall be made no later than [Month Day, Year]| [no later
than the third anniversary of the effective date of the contract]. [f the installment payment
option is elected by the Contractor, the Contractor may pre-pay the remaining portion of the
Repayment Obligation by giving the Contracting Officer sixty (60) days written notice, in which
case, the Contracting Officer shall re-compute the remaining amount due to reflect the pre-
payment using the same methodology as was used to compute the initial annual installment
payment amount, which is illustrated in Exhibit “C”. Notwithstanding any Additional Capital
Obligation that may later be established, receipt of the Contractor’s payment of the Repayment
Obligation to the United States shall fully and permanently satisfy the Existing Capital
Obligation.

(B)  Additional Capital Obligations that are not reflected in, the
schedules referenced in Exhibit “C” and properly assignable to the Contractor, shall be repaid as

prescribed by the WIIN Act without interest except as required by law. Consistent with Federal



557

558

359

560

561

562

563

564

365

566

567

568

569

570

571

572

373

574

575

576

577

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

Reclamation law, interest shall continue to accrue on the M&I portion of the Additional Capital
Obligation assigned to the Contractor until such costs are paid. Increases or decreases in the
Additional Capital Obligation assigned to the Contractor caused solely by annual adjustment of
the Additional Capital Obligation assigned to each Project contractor by the Secretary shall not
be considered in determining the amounts to be paid pursuant to this subdivision (a)(2¥B),
however, will be considered under subdivision (b) of this Article. A separate agreement shall be
established by the Contractor and the Contracting Officer to accomplish repayment of the
Additional Capital Obligation assigned to the Contractor within the timeframe prescribed by the
WIIN Act, subject to the following:

(1)  Ifthe collective Additional Capital Obligation
properly assignable to the contractors exercising conversion under section 4011 of the WIIN Act
is less than five million doliars ($5,000,000), then the portion of such costs properly assignable
to the Contractor shall be repaid not more than five (5)-years after the Contracting Officer

notifies the Contractor of the Additional Capital Obligation; Provided, That the reference to the

amount of five million dollars ($5,000,000) shall not be a precedent in any other context.

(2)  Ifthe collective Additional Capital Obligation
properly assignable to the contractors exercising conversion under section 4011 of the WIIN Act
is equal to or greater than five million dollars ($5,000,000), then the portion of such costs
properly assignable to the Contractor shall be repaid as provided by applicable Federal

Reclamation law and Project ratesetting policy; Provided, That the reference to the amount of

five million dollars ($5,000,000) shali not be a precedent in any other context.

27



578

379

580

581

582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

597

598

599

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

(b [n the event that the final cost allocation referenced in Section 4011(b) of
the WIIN Act determines that the costs properly assignable to the Contractor are greater than
what has been paid by the Contractor, the Contractor shall be obligated to pay the remaining
allocated costs. The term of such additional repayment contract shall be not less than one (1)
year and not more than ten (10) years, however, mutually agreeable provisions regarding the rate
of repayment of such amount may be developed by the Contractor and Contracting Officer. In
the event that the final cost allocation indicates that the costs properly assignable to the
Contractor are less than what the Contractor has paid, the Contracting Officer shall credit such
overpayment as an offset against any outstanding or future obligations of the Contractor, with the
exception of Restoration Fund charges pursuant to section 3407(d) of Pub. L. 102-575.

(c) The Contracting Officer shall notify the Contractor of the Rates, Charges,
and Tiered Pricing Component as follows:

(1)  Prior to July 1 of each Calendar Year, the Contracting Officer shall
provide the Contractor an estimate of the Charges for Project Water that will be applied
to the period October 1, of the current Calendar Year, through September 30, of the
following Calendar Year, and the basis for such estimate. The Contractor shall be
allowed not less than two months to review and comment on such estimates. On or
before September 15 of each Calendar Year, the Contracting Officer shall notify the
Contractor in writing of the Charges to be in effect during the period October 1 of the current
Calendar Year, through September 30, of the following Calendar Year, and such
notification shall revise Exhibit “B.”

(2) Prior to October 1 of each Calendar Year, the Contracting Officer

28



600

601

602

603

604

6035

606

607

603

609

610

611

612

613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

shall make available to the Contractor an estimate of the Rates and Tiered Pricing Component
for Project Water for the following Year and the computations and cost allocations upon which
those Rates are based. The Contractor shatl be allowed not less than two months to review and
comment on such computations and cost allocations. By December 31 of each Calendar Year,
the Contracting Officer shall provide the Contractor with the final Rates and Tiered Pricing
Component to be in effect for the upcoming Year, and such notification shall revise Exhibit “B.”
(d)  Atthe time the Contractor submits the initial schedule for the delivery of
Project Water for each Year pursuant to subdivision (b) of Article 4 of this Contract, the
Centractor shall make an advance payment to the United States equal to the total amount
payable pursuant to the applicable Rate(s) set under subdivision (a) of this Article, for the
Project Water scheduled to be delivered pursuant to this Contract during the first two
calendar months of the Year. Before the end of the first month and before the end of
each calendar month thereafter, the Contractor shall make an advance payment to the
United States, at the Rate(s) set under subdivision {(a} of this Article, for the Water
Scheduled to be delivered pursuant to this Contract during the second month
immediately following. Adjustments between advance payments for Water Scheduled
and payments at Rates due for Water Delivered shall be made before the end of the
following month; Provided, That any revised schedule submitted by the Contractor
pursuant to Article 4 of this Contract which increases the amount of Water Delivered
pursuant to this Contract during any month shall be accompanied with appropriate
advance payment, at the Rates then in effect, to assure that Project Water is not

delivered to the Contractor in advance of such payment. In any month in which the

29



622

623

624

625

626

627

628

629

630

631

632

633

634

635

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTRI-P

quantity of Water Delivered to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract equals the
quantity of Water Scheduled and paid for by the Contractor, no additional Project Water
shall be delivered to the Contractor unless and until an advance payment at the Rates
then in effect for such additional Project Water is made. Final adjustment between the
advance payments for the Water Scheduled and payments for the quantities of Water
Delivered during each Year pursuant to this Contract shall be made as soon as
practicable but no later than April 30th of the following Year, or 60 days after the
delivery of Project Water rescheduled under subdivision (g) of Article 3 of this Contract
if such water is not delivered by the last day of February.

(e) The Contractor shall also make a payment in addition to the Rate(s) in
subdivision (d) of this Article to the United States for Water Delivered, at the Charges and the
appropriate Tiered Pricing Component then in effect, before the end of the month following the

month of delivery; Provided, That the Contractor may be granted an exception from the

Tiered Pricing Component pursuant to subdivision (k)(2) of this Article. The payments
shall be consistent with the quantities of Irrigation Water and M&I Water Delivered as shown in
the water delivery report for the subject month prepared by the Operating Non-Federal Entity or,
if there is no Operating Non-Federal Entity, by the Contracting Officer. The water delivery
report shall be deemed a bill for the payment of Charges and the applicable Tiered Pricing
Component for Water Delivered. Adjustment for overpayment or underpayment of Charges
shall be made through the adjustment of payments due to the United States for Charges for the
next month. Any amount to be paid for past due payment of Charges and the Tiered Pricing

Component shall be computed pursuant to Article 19 of this Contract.

30



644

645

646

647

648

649

650

651

6352

653

654

633

656

657

658

659

660

661

662

663

664

665

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

49)] The Contractor shall pay for any Water Delivered under subdivision
(a), (), or (g) of Article 3 of this Contract as determined by the Contracting Officer
pursuant to applicable statutes, associated regulations, any applicable provisions of
guidelines or ratesetting policies; Provided, That the Rate for Water Delivered under
subdivision (f) of Article 3 of this Contract shall be no more than the otherwise
applicable Rate for Irrigation Water or M&1 Water under subdivision (a) of this Article.

() Payments to be made by the Contractor to the United States under this
Contract may be paid from any revenues available to the Contractor.

(h)  All revenues received by the United States from the Contractor
relating to the delivery of Project Water or the delivery of non-Project water through
Project facilities shall be allocated and applied in accordance with Federal Reclamation
law and the associated rules or regulations, and the then-current Project ratesetting policies
for M&I Water or Irrigation Water.

(i)  The Contracting Officer shall keep its accounts pertaining to the
administration of the financial terms and conditions of its long-term contracts, in accordance
with applicable Federal standards, so as to reflect the application of Project costs and
revenues. The Contracting Officer shall, each Year upon request of the Contractor,
provide to the Contractor a detailed accounting of all Project and Contractor expense
allocations, the disposition of all Project and Contractor revenues, and a summary of all
water delivery information. The Contracting Officer and the Contractor shall enter into
good faith negotiations to resolve any discrepancies or disputes relating to accountings,

reports, or information.

3



666

667

668

669

670

671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

@) The parties acknowledge and agree that the efficient administration of this
Contract is their mutual goal. Recognizing that experience has demonstrated that mechanisms,
policies, and procedures used for establishing Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing Component,
and/or for making and allocating payments, other than those set forth in this Article may be in
the mutual best interest of the parties, it is expressly agreed that the parties may enter into
agreements to modify the mechanisms, policies, and procedures for any of those purposes while
this Contract is in effect without amending this Contract,

&k (1) Beginning at such time as deliveries of Project Water in a Year
exceed 80 percent of the Contract Total, then before the end of the month following the month of
delivery the Contractor shall make an additional payment to the United States equal to the
applicable Tiered Pricing Component. The Tiered Pricing Component for the amount of Water
Delivered in excess of 80 percent of the Contract Total, but less than or equal to 90 percent of the
Contract Total, shall equal one-half of the difference between the Rate established under
subdivision (a) of this Article and the Irrigation Full Cost Water Rate or M&I Full Cost Water
Rate, whichever is applicable. The Tiered Pricing Component for the amount of Water
Delivered which exceeds 90 percent of the Contract Total shall equal the difference between (i)
the Rate established under subdivision (a) of this Article and (ii) the Irrigation Full Cost Water
Rate or M&I Full Cost Water Rate, whichever is applicable. For all Water Delivered pursuant to
subdivision (a) of Article 3 of this Contract which is in excess of 80 percent of the Contract
Total, this increment shall be deemed to be divided between Irrigation Water and M&I Water in
the same proportion as actual deliveries of each bear to the cumulative total Water Delivered.

(2)  Subject to the Contracting Officer's written approval, the

32



688

689

650

691

692

693

694

695

696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707

708

709

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

Contractor may request and receive an exemption from such Tiered Pricing Component for
Project Water delivered to produce a crop which the Contracting Officer determines will provide
significant and quantifiable habitat values for waterfowl in fields where the water is used and the
crops are produced; Provided, That the exemption from the Tiered Pricing Component for
[rrigation Water shall apply only if such habitat values can be assured consistent with the
purposes of the CVPIA through binding agreements executed with or approved by the
Contracting Officer prior to use of such water.

(3)  For purposes of determining the applicability of the Tiered Pricing
Component pursuant to this Article, Water Delivered shall include Project Water that the
Contractor transfers to others but shall not include Project Water transferred to the Contractor,
nor shall it include the additional water provided to the Contractor under the provisions of
subdivision (f) of Article 3 of this Contract.

() For the term of this Contract, Rates applied under the respective
ratesetting policies will be established to recover only reimbursable O&M (including any
deficits) and capital costs of the Project, as those terms are used in the then-current Project
ratesetting policies, and interest, where appropriate, except in instances where a minimum
Rate is applicable in accordance with the relevant Project ratesetting policy. Changes of
significance in practices which implement the Contracting Officer’s ratesetting policies will
not be implemented until the Contracting Officer has provided the Contractor an opportunity
to discuss the nature, need, and impact of the proposed change.

(m)  Except as provided in subsections 3405(a)(1)(B) and 3405(f) of the

CVPIA, the Rates for Project Water transferred by the Contractor shall be the

33



710

711

712

713

714

715

716

717

718

719

720

721

722

723

724

725

726

727

728

729

730

731

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

Contractor's Rates, in accordance with the applicable Project ratesetting policy, adjusted
upward or downward to reflect the changed costs, if any, incurred by the Contracting Officer
in the delivery of the transferred Project Water to the transferee's point of delivery. If the
Contractor is receiving lower Rates and Charges because of inability to pay and is
transferring Project Water to another entity whose Rates and Charges are not adjusted
due to inability to pay, the Rates and Charges for transferred Project Water shall not be
adjusted to reflect the Contractor’s inability to pay.

(n) Pursuant to the Act of October 27, 1986 (100 Stat. 3050), the Contracting
Officer is authorized to adjust determinations of ability to pay every five years.

(0)  With respect to the Rates for M&I Water, the Contractor asserts that it is
not legally obligated to pay any Project deficits claimed by the United States to have accrued as
of the date of this Contract or deficit-related interest charges thereon. By entering into this
Contract, the Contractor does not waive any legal rights or remedies that it may have with
respect to such disputed issues. Notwithstanding the execution of this Contract and payments
made hereunder, the Contractor may challenge in the appropriate administrative or judicial
forums; (1) the existence, computation, or imposition of any deficit charges accruing during the
term of the Existing Contract and any preceding interim renewal contracts, if applicable; (2)
interest accruing on any such deficits; (3) the inclusion of any such deficit charges or interest in
the Rates; (4) the application by the United States of payments made by the Contractor under its
Existing Contract and any preceding interim renewal contracts if applicable; and (5) the
application of such payments in the Rates. The Contracting Officer agrees that the Contractor

shall be entitied to the benefit of any administrative or judicial ruling in favor of any Project

34



732

733

734

735

736

737

738

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

748

749

750

751

752

753

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

M&I contractor on any of these issues, and credits for payments heretofore made, provided that
the basis for such ruling is applicable to the Contractor.,

NON-INTEREST B G O&M DEFICI

8. The Contractor and the Contracting Officer concur that, as of the Effective Date
the Contractor has no non-interest bearing O&M deficits and shall have no further
liability therefore.

SALES. T FERS. OR EXCHANGES OF WAT

9. (a)  The right to receive Project Water provided for in this Contract may be
sold, transferred, or exchanged to others for reasonable and beneficial uses within the
State of California if such sale, transfer, or exchange is authorized by applicable Federal
and State laws, and applicable guidelines or regulations then in effect. No sale, transfer,
or exchange of Project Water under this Contract may take place without the prior
written approval of the Contracting Officer, except as provided for in subdivision (b) of
this Article, and no such sales, transfers, or exchanges shall be approved absent all
appropriate environmental documentation, including, but not limited to, documents
prepared pursuant to the NEPA and ESA. Such environmental documentation should
include, as appropriate, an analysis of groundwater impacts and economic and social
effects, including environmental justice, of the proposed water transfers on both the
transferor and transferee.

{b) In order to facilitate efficient water management by means of water
transfers of the type historically carried out among Praject Contractors located within the

same geographical area and to allow the Contractor to participate in an accelerated water

35



754

755

756

757

758

759

760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

771

772

773

774

775

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

transfer program during the term of this Contract, the Contracting Officer shall prepare, as
appropriate, all necessary environmental documentation, including, but not limited to,
documents prepared pursuant to the NEPA and ESA, analyzing annual transfers within
such geographical areas and the Contracting Officer shall determine whether such
transfers comply with applicable law. Following the completion of the environmental
documentation, such transfers addressed in such documentation shall be conducted with
advance notice to the Contracting Officer, but shall not require prior written approval by
the Contracting Officer. Such environmental documentation and the Contracting
Officer's compliance determination shall be reviewed every five years and updated, as
necessary, prior to the expiration of the then existing five (5)-year period. All subsequent
environmental documentation shall include an alternative to evaluate not less than the quantity of
Project Water historically transferred within the same geographical area.

(¢)  For a water transfer to qualify under subdivision (b) of this Article, such
water transfer must: (i) be for irrigation purposes for lands irrigated within the previous three
years, for M&] use, groundwater recharge, groundwater banking, or similar groundwater
activities, surface water storage, or fish and wildlife resources; not lead to land
conversion; and be delivered to established cropland, wildlife refuges, groundwater basins, or
M&I use; (ii) occur within a single Year; (iii) occur between a willing seller and a willing
buyer; (iv) convey water through existing facilities with no new construction or
modifications to facilities and be between existing Project Contractors and/or the Contractor
and the United States, Department of the Interior; and (v) comply with all applicable

Federal, State, and local or tribal laws and requirements imposed for protection of the

36



776

7

778

779

780

781

782

783

784

785

786

787

758

789

790

91

792

793

794

795

796

797

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR 1-P

environment and Indian Trust Assets, as defined under Federal law,
APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS AND ADJUSTMENTS

10.  (a)  The amount of any overpayment by the Contractor of the Contractor’s
O&M, capital, and deficit (if any) obligations for the Year shall be applied first to any current
liabilities of the Contractor arising out of this Contract then due and payable.
Overpayments of more than $1,000 shall be refunded at the Contractor’s request. In lieu of a
refund, any amount of such overpayment, at the option of the Contractor, may be credited
against amounts to become due to the United States by the Contractor. With respect to
overpayment, such refund or adjustment shall constitute the sole remedy of the Contractor or
anyone having or claiming to have the right to the use of any of the Project Water supply
provided for by this Contract. All credits and refunds of overpayments shall be made
within 30 days of the Contracting Officer obtaining direction as to how to credit or
refund such overpayment in response to the notice to the Contractor that it has finalized the
accounts for the Year in which the overpayment was made.

(b)  All advances for miscellaneous costs incurred for work requested by the

Contractor pursuant to Article 24 of this Contract shall be adjusted to reflect the actual
costs when the work has been completed. If the advances exceed the actual costs incurred, the
difference will be refunded to the Contractor. If the actual costs exceed the Contractor’s
advances, the Contractor will be billed for the additional costs pursuant to Article 24 of this
Contract.

TEMPORARY REDUCTIONS — RETURN FLOWS

11. (a)  Subjectto: (i) the authorized purposes and priorities of the Project and the

37



798

799

300

801

302

303

304

803

806

807

808

809

210

8

812

813

314

B13

816

817

818

819

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

requirements of Federal law, and (ii) the obligations of the United States under existing
contracts, or renewals thereof, providing for water deliveries from the Project, the
Contracting Officer shall make all reasonable efforts to optimize Project Water deliveries to
the Contractor as provided in this Contract.

(b)  The Contracting Officer or Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies) may
temporarily discontinue or reduce the quantity of Water Delivered to the Contractor as
herein provided for the purposes of investigation, inspection, maintenance, repair, or
replacement of any of the Project facilities or any part thereof necessary for the delivery of
Project Water to the Contractor, but so far as feasible the Contracting Officer or QOperating
Non-Federal Entity(ies) will give the Contractor due notice in advance of such temporary
discontinuance or reduction, except in case of emergency, in which case no notice need be
given; Provided, That the United States shall use its best efforts to avoid any
discontinuance or reduction in such service. Upon resumption of service after such
discontinuance or reduction, and if requested by the Contractor, the United States will, if
possible, deliver the quantity of Project Water which would have been delivered
hereunder in the absence of such discontinuance or reduction.

{(¢)  The United States reserves the right to all seepage and return flow
water derived from Water Delivered to the Contractor hereunder which escapes or is

discharged beyond the Contractor's Service Area; Provided. That this shall not be construed

as ¢laiming for the United States any right to seepage or return flow being put to
reasonable and beneficial use pursuant to this Contract within the Contractor's Service

Area by the Contractor or those claiming by, through, or under the Contractor.

38



820
821
822
823

824
825

826
827
828
829
830
831

832

813

834

835

836

837

838

839

840

841

842

843

844

845

846

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

CONSTRAINTS ON THE AVAILABILITY OF WATER

12.  (a) In its operation of the Project, the Contracting Officer will use all
reasonable means to guard against a Condition of Shortage in the quantity of Project
Water to be made available to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract. In the event the
Contracting Officer determines that 2 Condition of Shortage appears probable, the
Contracting Officer will notify the Contractor of said determination as soon as practicable.

(b)  Ifthere is a Condition of Shortage because of inaccurate runoff forecasting
or other similar operational errors affecting the Project; drought and other physical or natural
causes beyond the control of the Contracting Officer; or actions taken by the Contracting
Officer to meet current and future legal obligations, then, except as provided in subdivision (a) of
Article 17 of this Contract, no liability shall accrue against the United States or any of its
officers, agents, or employees for any damage, direct or indirect, arising therefrom.

() In any Year in which there may occur a Condition of Shortage for any of
the reasons specified in subdivision (b) of this Article, and subject to subdivision (d) of this
Article, the Contracting Officer will first allocate the available Project Water consistent
with the Project M&I Water Shortage Policy as finally adopted after environmental review for
determining the amount of Project Water Available for delivery to the Project
Contractors. Subject to the foregoing allocation, in any year in which there may occur a
Condition of Shortage, the Contracting Officer shall then apportion Project Water among
the Contractor and others entitled to Project Water from Delta Division Facilities under
long-term water service or repayment contracts (or renewals thereof or binding
commitments therefore) in force on February 28, 2005, as follows:

(1)  The Contracting Officer shall make an initial and subsequent
determination as necessary of the total quantity of Project Water estimated to be
scheduled or actually scheduled under subdivision (b) of Article 4 of this Contract and
under all other interim renewal, long-term water service or repayment contracts then in

force for the delivery of Project Water by the United States from Delta Division Facilities

39



847

848

849

350

851

832

833

854

855

856

857

858

859

360

861

362

363

364

865

364

867

363

Contract No. 7-07-20-W{)045-LTR1-P

during the relevant Year, the quantity so determined being hereinafter referred to as the
scheduled total;

(2) A determination shall be made of the total quantity of Project
Water that is available for meeting the scheduled total, the quantity so determined being
hereinafter referred to as the available supply;

{3)  The total quantity of Project Water estimated to be scheduled or
actually scheduled by the Contractor during the relevant Year, under subdivision (b) of
Article 4 of this Contract, shall be divided by the scheduled total, the quotient thus
obtained being hereinafter referred to as the Contractor's proportionate share; and

{4)  The available supply shall be multiplied by the Contractor’s
proportionate share and the result shall be the quantity of Project Water made available
by the United States to the Contractor for the relevant Year in accordance with the
schedule developed by the Contracting Officer under subdivision (c){1) of this Article 12,
but in no event shall such amount exceed the Contract Total. In the event the
Contracting Officer subsequently determines that the Contracting Officer can increase or
needs to decrease the available supply for delivery from Delta Division Facilities to
long-term water service and repayment contractors during the relevant Year, such
additions or reductions to the available supply shall be apportioned consistent with
subparagraphs (1) through (4), inclusive.

(d) By entering into this Contract, the Contractor does not waive any legal
rights or remedies it may have to file or participate in any administrative or judicial

proceeding contesting: (i) the sufficiency of the Project M&I Water Shortage Policy; (ii)

40



869

370

371

872

73

374

375

£76

877

378

879

880

g31

882

883

884

885

886
887
888
889
890

891

892

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

the substance of such a policy; (iii) the applicability of such a policy; or (iv) the manner in
which such policy is implemented in order to allocate Project Water between M&I and
irrigation purposes; Provided, That the Contractor has commenced any such judicial
challenge or any administrative procedures necessary to institute any judicial challenge
within six months of the policy becoming final. By agreeing to the foregoing, the
Contracting Officer does not waive any legal defenses or remedies that it may have to
assert in such a proceeding. Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted to validate or

invalidate the Project M&I Water Shortage Policy.

UNAVOIDABLE GROUNDWATER PERCOLATION

13. (@)  To the extent applicable, the Contractor shall not be deemed to have
delivered Irrigation Water to Excess Lands or Ineligible Lands within the meaning of this
Contract if such lands are irrigated with groundwater that reaches the underground strata
as an unavoidable result of the delivery of Irrigation Water by the Contractor to Eligible
Lands.

(b)  Upon complete payment of the Repayment Obligation by the Contractor,
this Article 13 shall no longer be applicable.
COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL RECLAMATION LAWS

14, The parties agree that the delivery of Irrigation Water or use of Federal facilities
pursuant to this Contract is subject to Federal Reclamation law, including but not limited
to, the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (43 U.S.C. 390aa ef seq.), as amended and
supplemented, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Secretary of the Interior
under Federal Reclamation law.

PROTECTIO WATER AND AIR QUALITY
15. (@  Omitted

41



893
894
8§95
896
897
898
899
900
901
902
903
904

905
906

907

908
909

910

911

913

914

915

916

917

918

919

920

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

(b) The United States will care for, operate and maintain reserved works in a
manner that preserves the quality of the water at the highest level possible as determined by the
Contracting Officer. The United States does not warrant the quality of the water delivered to the
Contractor and is under no obligation to furnish or construct water treatment facilities to
maintain or improve the quality of water delivered to the Contractor.

(c) The Contractor will comply with all applicable water and air pollution
laws and regulations of the United States and the State of California; and will obtain all required
permits or licenses from the appropriate Federal, State, or local authorities necessary for the
delivery of water by the Contractor; and shall be responsible for compliance with all Federal,
State, and local water quality standards applicable to surface and subsurface drainage and/or
discharges generated through the use of Federal or Contractor facilities or Project Water
provided by the Contractor within its Service Area.

(d)  This Article shall not affect or alter any legal obligations of the Secretary
to provide drainage or other discharge services.

(e) Omitted

WATER ACQUIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR O0THER FTHAN £FROM THE UNITED
STATES

16. (a) Water or water rights now owned or hereafter acquired by the Contractor
other than from the United States and Irrigation Water furnished pursuant to the terms of
this Contract may be simultaneously transported through the same distribution facilities
of the Contractor subject to the following: (i) if the facilities utilized for commingling
Irrigation Water and non-Project water were constructed without funds made available
pursuant to Federal Reclamation law, the provisions of Federal Reclamation law will be
applicable only to the Landholders of lands which receive Irrigation Water; (ii) the
eligibility of land to receive Irrigation Water must be established through the certification
requirements as specified in the Acreage Limitation Rules and Regulations (43 CFR Part
426); (iii) the water requirements of Eligible Lands within the Contractor's Service Area

can be established and the quantity of Irrigation Water to be utilized is less than or equal to



921

922

923

924

925

926

927

9238

929

930

931

932

933

934

935

936

937

938

939

940

o941

942

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

the quantity necessary to irrigate such Eligible Lands; and (iv) if the facilities utilized for
commingling Irrigation Water and non-Project water are {were) constructed with funds
made available pursuant to Federal Reclamation law, the non-Project water will be
subject to the acreage limitation provisions of Federal Reclamation law, unless the
Contractor pays to the United States the incremental fee described in 43 CFR 426.15. In
determining the incremental fee, the Contracting Officer will calculate annually the cost
to the Federal Government, including interest, of storing or delivering non-Project water,
which for purposes of this Contract shall be determined as follows: The quotient shall
be the unpaid distribution system costs divided by the total irrigable acreage within the
Contractor's Service Area. The incremental fee per acre is the mathematical resuit of
such quotient times the interest rate determined using Section 202 (3) of the Act of
QOctober 12, 1982 (96 Stat. 1263). Such incremental fee will be charged to each acre of
excess or full-cost land within the Contractor's Service Area that receives non-Project
water through Federally financed or constructed facilities. The incremental fee calculation
methodology will continue during the term of this Contract absent the promulgation of a
contrary Bureau of Reclamation-wide rule, regulation, or policy adopted after the
Contractor has been afforded the opportunity to review and comment on the proposed
rule, regulation, or policy. If such rule, regulation, or policy is adopted, it shall supersede
this provision,

(b)  Water or water rights now owned or hereafter acquired by the
Contractor, other than from the United States may be stored, conveyed, and/or diverted

through Project facilities, subject to the completion of appropriate environmental

43



943

944

945

946

047

948

949

950

951

952

953

954

955

956

957

958

959

960

961

962

963

964

Contract No, 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

documentation, with the approval of the Contracting Officer and the execution of any
contract determined by the Contracting Officer to be necessary, consistent with the
following provisions:

(1)  The Contractor may introduce non-Project water into Project
facilities and deliver said water to lands within the Contractor's Service Area, including
Ineligible Lands, subject to payment to the United States and/or to any applicable
Operating Non-Federal Entity of an appropriate rate as determined by the appiicable
Project ratesetting policy, the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982, and the Project use
power policy, if such Project use power policy is applicable, each as amended, modified, or
superseded from time to time.

{(2)  Delivery of such non-Project water in and through Project
facilities shall only be allowed to the extent such deliveries do not: (i) interfere with
other Project purposes as determined by the Contracting Officer; (ii) reduce the quantity or
quality of water available to other Project Contractors; (iii} interfere with the delivery of
contractual water entitlements to any other Project Contractors; or (iv) interfere with the
physical maintenance of the Project facilities.

(3)  Neither the United States nor the Operating Non-Federal
Entity(ies) shall be responsible for control, care, or distribution of the non-Project water
before it is introduced into or after it is delivered from the Project facilities. The
Contractor hereby releases and agrees to defend and indemnify the United States and the
Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies), and their respective officers, agents, and employees,

from any claim for damage to persons or property, direct or indirect, resulting from the



965

966

967

268

969

970

971

972

973

974

975

976

977

978

979

980

981

982

983

984

985

986

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

act(s) of the Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, or assigns, in (i) extracting or
diverting non-Project water from any source, or (ii) diverting such non-Project water into
Project facilities.

(4)  Diversion of such non-Project water into Project facilities shall
be consistent with all applicable laws, and if involving groundwater, consistent with any
applicable groundwater management plan for the area from which it was extracted.

(5)  After Project purposes are met, as determined by the
Contracting Officer, the United States and Project Contractors entitled to Project Water
from Delta Division Facilities shall share priority to utilize the remaining capacity of the
facilities declared to be available by the Contracting Officer for conveyance and
transportation of non-Project water prior to any such remaining capacity being made
available to non-Project contractors. Other Project Contractors shall have a second priority
to any remaining capacity of facilities declared to be available by the Contracting Officer
for conveyance and transportation of non-Project water prior to any such remaining
capacity being made available to non-Project contractors.

(¢}  Upon complete payment of the Repayment Obligation by the Contractor,
subdivision (a) of this Article 16 shall no longer be applicable.
OPINIONS AND DETE ATIONS
17. (@)  Where the terms of this Contract provide for actions to be based upon
the opinion or determination of either party to this Contract, said terms shall not be
construed as permitting such action to be predicated upon arbitrary, capricious, or

unreasonable opinions or determinations. Both parties, notwithstanding any other

45



937

938

989

990

991

992

993

994

995

996

997

993

999

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006

1007

1008

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

provisions of this Contract, expressly reserve the right to seek relief from and appropriate
adjustment for any such arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable opinion or determination.
Each opinion or determination by either party shall be provided in a timely manner.
Nothing in this subdivision (a) of this Article is intended to or shall affect or alter the
standard of judicial review applicable under Federal law to any opinion or determination
implementing a specific provision of Federal law embodied in statute or regulation.

(b)  The Contracting Officer shall have the right to make determinations
necessary to administer this Contract that are consistent with the provisions of this
Contract, the laws of the United States and of the State of California, and the rules and
regulations promulgated by the Secretary. Such determinations shall be made in

consultation with the Contractor to the extent reasonably practicable.

COORDINATION AND COOPERATION

18. (a) In order to further their mutual goals and objectives, the Contracting
Officer and the Contractor shall communicate, coordinate, and cooperate with each other,
and with other affected Project Contractors, in order to improve the O&M of the
Project. The communication, coordination, and cooperation regarding O&M shall
include, but not be limited to, any action which will or may materially affect the quantity
or quality of Project Water supply, the allocation of Project Water supply, and Project
financial matters including, but not limited to, budget issues. The communication,
coordination, and cooperation provided for hereunder shall extend to all provisions of
this Contract. Each party shall retain exclusive decision making authority for all actions,

opinions, and determinations to be made by the respective party.



1009

1010

1011

1012

1613

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1430

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

(b)  Within 120 days following the Effective Date, the Contractor, other
affected Project Contractors, and the Contracting Officer shall arrange to meet with
interested Project Contractors to develop a mutually agreeable, written Project-wide
process, which may be amended as necessary separate and apart from this Contract, The
goal of this process shall be to provide, to the extent practicable, the means of mutual
communication and interaction regarding significant decisions concerning Project O&M
on a real-time basis.

{c) Inlight of the factors referred to in subdivision (b) of Article 3 of this
Contract, it is the intent of the Secretary to improve water supply reliability. To carry out
this intent:

(1)  The Contracting Officer will, at the request of the Contractor,
assist in the development of integrated resource management plans for the Contractor.
Further, the Contracting Officer will, as appropriate, seek authorizations for implementation
of partnerships to improve water supply, water quality, and reliability.

(2)  The Secretary will, as appropriate, pursue program and project
implementation and authorization in coordination with Project Contractors to improve the
water supply, water quality, and reliability of the Project for all Project purposes.

(3)  The Secretary will coordinate with Project Contractors and the
State of California to seek improved water resource management.

(4)  The Secretary will coordinate actions of agencies within the
Department of the Interior that may impact the availability of water for Project purposes.

(5)  The Contracting Officer shall periodically, but not less than

47



1031

1032

1033

1034

1033

1036

1037

1038

1039
1040
1041
1042
1043
1044
1045
1046
1047
1048
1049

1350
1051
1052
1053
1054

1055
1056
1057

1058

1059

1060
1061

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

annually, hold division-level meetings to discuss Project operations, division-level water
management activities, and other issues as appropriate.

(d)  Without limiting the coniractual obligations of the Contracting Officer
under the other Articles of this Contract, nothing in this Article shall be construed to limit
or constrain the Contracting Officer's ability to communicate, coordinate, and cooperate
with the Contractor or other interested stakeholders or to make decisions in a timely fashion
as needed to protect health, safety, or the physical integrity of structures or facilities.

CHARGES FOR DELINQUENT PAYMENTS

19. (a) The Contractor shall be subject to interest, administrative, and penalty
charges on delinquent payments. If a payment is not received by the due date, the
Contractor shall pay an interest charge on the delinquent payment for each day the payment
is delinquent beyond the due date. If a payment becomes 60 days delinquent, the
Contractor shall pay, in addition to the interest charge, an administrative charge to
cover additional costs of billing and processing the delinquent payment. If a payment is
delinquent 90 days or more, the Contractor shall pay, in addition to the interest and
administrative charges, a penalty charge for each day the payment is delinquent beyond the
due date, based on the remaining balance of the payment due at the rate of 6 percent per
year. The Contractor shall also pay any fees incurred for debt collection services associated
with a delinquent payment.

(b)  The interest rate charged shall be the greater of either the rate prescribed
quarterly in the Federal Register by the Department of the Treasury for application to
overdue payments, or the interest rate of 0.5 percent per month. The interest rate charged
will be determined as of the due date and remain fixed for the duration of the delinquent
period.

{c) When a partial payment on a delinquent account is received, the amount
received shall be applied first to the penalty charges, second to the administrative charges,
third to the accrued interest, and finally to the overdue payment.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

20.  During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(@  The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or

48



1062
1063
1064
1065
1066
1067
1068
1069
1070

1071
1072
1073
1074

1075
1076
1077
1073
1079
1080
1081
1082
1083
1084

1085
1086
1087
1088
1089
1090

1091
1092
1093

1094
1095
1096
1097
1098

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race,
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall
include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notices to be provided by the Contracting Officer setting forth the provisions of this
nondiscrimination clause.

(b)  The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees
placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive
consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, or national origin.

(c) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has
inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or
another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an
employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as
part of such employee’s essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other
employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information,
unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an
investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the
employer, or is consistent with the Contractor’s legal duty to furnish information.

(d)  The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of
workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding,
a notice, to be provided by the Contracting Officer, advising the labor union or workers’
representative of the Contractor’s commitments under section 202 of Executive Order No.
11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places
available to employees and applicants for employment.

(¢)  The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No.
11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary
of Labor.

® The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by
Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of
the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to its books, records, and
accounts by the Contracting Agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation
to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

49



1099
1100
1101
1102
1103
1104
1105
1106

1107
1108
1109
1110
1111
1112
1113
1114
1115
1116

1117

1118
111e
1120
1121

1122
1123
1124
1125
1126
1127
1128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133
1134

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

(g) In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this
Contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may
be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures
authorized in Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may
be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24,
1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by
law.

(h)  The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (g)
in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders
of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept.
24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The
Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be
directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions, including
sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event the Contractor
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a
result of such direction, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

GENERAL OBLIGATION — BENEFITS CONDITIONED UPON PAYMENT

21.  (a)  The obligation of the Contractor to pay the United States as provided in
this Contract is a general obligation of the Contractor notwithstanding the manner in which the
obligation may be distributed among the Contractor's water users and notwithstanding the default
of individual water users in their obligation to the Contractor.

(b)  The payment of charges becoming due pursuant to this Contract is a
condition precedent to receiving benefits under this Contract. The United States shall not make
water available to the Contractor through Project facilities during any period in which the
Contractor is in arrears in the advance payment of water rates due the United States. The
Contractor shall not deliver water under the terms and conditions of this Contract for lands or
parties that are in arrears in the advance payment of water rates as levied or established by the
Contractor.

(c) With respect to subdivision (b) of this Article, the Contractor shall have no
obligation to require advance payment for water rates which it levies.

COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

22, (a) The Contractor shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(Pub. L. 88-352; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d), the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112, Title V, as
amended; 29 U.S.C. § 791, et seq.), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135, Title

50



1135
1136
1137
1138

1139
1140
1141
1142
1143
1144
1145

1146
1147
1148
1149
1150
51
1152
1153

1154
1155

1156

1157
1158
1159
1160
1161
1162

1163
1164
1165
1166
1167

1168
1169
1170
1171

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

I1I; 42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq.), Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101-
336; 42 U.S.C. § 12131, et seq.), and any other applicable civil rights laws, and with the
applicable implementing regulations and any guidelines imposed by the U.S.
Department of the Interior and/or Bureau of Reclamation.

(b)  These statutes prohibit any person in the United States from being
excluded from participation in, being denied the benefits of, or being otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving financial assistance from the Bureau
of Reclamation on the grounds of race, color, national origin, disability, or age. By
executing this Contract, the Contractor agrees to immediately take any measures necessary
to implement this obligation, including permitting officials of the United States to inspect
premises, programs, and documents.

(c) The Contractor makes this Contract in consideration of and for the
purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts, property discounts, or other
Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the Contractor by the Bureau
of Reclamation, including installment payments after such date on account of
arrangements for Federal financial assistance which were approved before such date.
The Contractor recognizes and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in
reliance on the representations and agreements made in this Article and that the United
States reserves the right to seek judicial enforcement thereof.

(d  Complaints of discrimination against the Contractor shall be investigated
by the Contracting Officer’s Office of Civil Rights.

PRIVACY ACT COMPLIANCE

23.  (a)  The Contractor shall comply with the Privacy Act of 1974 (Privacy Act)
(5 U.S.C. § 552a) and the Department of the Interior rules and regulations under the Privacy
Act (43 C.F.R. § 2.45, et seq.) in maintaining Landholder certification and reporting
records required to be submitted to the Contractor for compliance with Sections 206,
224(c), and 228 of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (43 U.S.C. §§ 390ff, 390ww, and
390zz), and pursuant to 43 C.F.R. § 426.18.

(b)  With respect to the application and administration of the criminal penalty
provisions of the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a(i)), the Contractor and the Contractor's
employees who are responsible for maintaining the certification and reporting records
referenced in paragraph (a) above are considered to be employees of the Department of the
Interior. See 5 U.S.C. § 552a(m).

(¢)  The Contracting Officer or a designated representative shall provide the
Contractor with current copies of the Department of the Interior Privacy Act regulations
and the Bureau of Reclamation Federal Register Privacy Act System of Records Notice
(Interior/WBR-31, Acreage Limitation) which govern the maintenance, safeguarding,

51



1172
1173

1174
1175
1176
1177
1178

1179
1180
1131
1182
1133
1184

1185
1186

1187

11388

1189

1190

1191

1192

1193

1194

1195

1196

1197

1198

1199
1200

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

and disclosure of information contained in the Landholders’ certification and reporting
records.

(d)  The Contracting Officer shall designate a full-time employce of the
Bureau of Reclamation to be the Systemn Manager responsible for making decisions on
denials pursuant to 43 C.F.R. §§ 2.61 and 2.64 and amendment requests pursuant to 43
C.F.R. § 2.72. The Contractor is authorized to grant requests by individuals for access to
their own records.

(e) The Contractor shall forward promptly to the System Manager each
proposed denial of access under 43 C.F.R. § 2.64 and ¢ach request for amendment of
records filed under 43 C.F.R. § 2.71; notify the requester accordingly of such referral;
and provide the System Manager with information and records necessary to prepare an
appropriate response to the requester. These requirements do not apply to individuals
seeking access to their own certification and reporting forms filed with the Contractor
pursuant to 43 C.F.R. § 426.18 unless the requester elects to cite the Privacy Act as an
authority for the request.

)] Upon complete payment of the Repayment Obligation by the
Contractor, this Article 23 will no longer be applicable.

CONTRACTOR TO PAY CERTAIN MISCELLANEQUS COSTS

24.  In addition to all other payments to be made by the Contractor pursuant to this
Contract, the Contractor shall pay to the United States, within 60 days after receipt of a bill
and detailed statement submitted by the Contracting Officer to the Contractor for such
specific items of direct cost incurred by the United States for work requested by the
Contractor associated with this Contract plus indirect costs in accordance with applicable
Bureau of Reclamation policies and procedures. All such amounts referred to in this
Article shall not exceed the amount agreed to in writing in advance by the Contractor.

This Article shall not apply to costs for routine contract administration.

WATER CONSERVATION

25.  {(a)  Prior to the delivery of water provided from ot conveyed through
Federally constructed or Federally financed facilities pursuant to this Contract, the

52



1201
1202
1203

1204

1205

1206

1207

1208

1209

1210

1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

Contractor shall develop a water conservation plan, as required by subsection 210(b) of the
Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 and 43 C.F.R. 427.1 (Water Conservation Rules and
Regulations).

Additionally, an effective water conservation and efficiency program shall be based on the
Contractor’s water conservation plan that has been determined by the Contracting Officer to
meet the conservation and efficiency criteria for evaluating water conservation plans
established under Federal law. The water conservation and efficiency program shall
contain definite water conservation objectives, appropriate economically feasible water
conservation measures, and time schedules for meeting those objectives. Continued
Project Water delivery pursuant to this Contract shall be contingent upon the
Contractor's continued implementation of such water conservation program. In the
event the Contractor's water conservation plan or any revised water conservation plan
completed pursuant to subdivision {d) of this Article 25 have not yet been determined by
the Contracting Officer to meet such criteria, due to circumstances which the
Contracting Officer determines are beyond the control of the Contractor, water deliveries
shall be made under this Contract so long as the Contractor diligently works with the
Contracting Officer to obtain such determination at the earliest practicable date, and
thereafter the Contractor immediately begins implementing its water conservation and
efficiency program in accordance with the time schedules therein.

(b)  Should the amount of M&I Water delivered pursuant to subdivision
(a) of Article 3 of this Contract equal or exceed two thousand (2,000) acre-feet per Year,
the Contractor shall implement the Best Management Practices identified by the time

frames issued by the Mid-Pacific Region’s then-existing conservation and efficiency

53



1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

criteria for such M&l Water unless any such practice is determined by the Contracting
Officer to be inappropriate for the Contractor.

(¢)  The Contractor shall submit to the Contracting Officer a report on the
status of its implementation of the water conservation plan on the reporting dates specified in the
then-existing conservation and efficiency criteria established under Federal law.

(d) At five (5)-year intervals, the Contractor shall revise its water
conservation plan to reflect the then-existing conservation and efficiency criteria for evaluating
water conservation plans established under Federal law and submit such revised water
management plan to the Contracting Officer for review and evaluation. The Contracting Officer
will then determine if the water conservation plan meets the Bureau of Reclamation’s then-
existing conservation and efficiency criteria for evaluating water conservation plans established
under Federal law.

(e) If the Contractor is engaged in direct groundwater recharge, such activity

shall be described in the Contractor's water conservation plan.

EXISTING OR ACQUIRED WATER OR WATER RIGHTS

26.  Except as specifically provided in Article 16 of this Contract, the provisions
of this Contract shall not be applicabie to or affect non-Project water or water rights now owned
or hereafter acquired by the Contractor or any user of such water within the Contractor's Service
Area. Any such water shall not be considered Project Water under this Contract. In addition,
this Contract shall not be construed as limiting or curtailing any rights which the Contractor or
any water user within the Contractor's Service Area acquires or has available under any other

contract pursuant to Federal Reclamation law.

54



1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

1254

1255

1256

1257

1258

1259

1260

1261

1262

1263

1264

1265

1266

1267

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

QPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BY THE OPERATING NON-FEDERAL ENTITY

27. (@) The O&M of a portion of the Project facilities which serve the Contractor,
and responsibility for funding a portion of the costs of such O&M, have been transferred to the
San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority, an Operating Non-Federal Entity by separate
agreement (8-07-20-X0354-X) between the United States and Operating Non-Federal Entity San
Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority. That separate agreement shall not interfere with or
affect the rights or obligations of the Contractor or the United States hereunder.

(b)  The Contracting Officer has previously notified the Contractor in
writing that the Operation and Maintenance of a portion of the Project facilities which
serve the Contractor has been transferred to the Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis &
Delta-Mendota Water Authority, and therefore, the Contractor shall pay directly to the
Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority, or to any
successor approved by the Contracting Officer under the terms and conditions of the
separate agreement between the United States and the Operating Non-Federal Entity San
Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority described in subdivision (a) of this Article, all rates,
charges, or assessments of any kind, including any assessment for reserve funds, which the
Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority or such successor
determines, sets, or establishes for the Operation and Maintenance of the portion of the Project
facilities operated and maintained by the Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-
Mendota Water Authority or such successor. Such direct payments to Operating Non-Federal
Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority or such successor shall not relieve the

Contractor of its obligation to pay directly to the United States the Contractor's share of

33



1268

1269

1270

127

1272

1273

1274

1275

1276

1277

1278

1279

1230

1281

1282

1283

1284

1285

1286

1287

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

the Project Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing Component except to the extent the
Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority collects payments
on behalf of the United States in accordance with the separate agreement identified in
subdivision (a) of this Article.

(¢}  For so long as the O&M of any portion of the Project facilities
serving the Contractor is performed by Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis &
Delta-Mendota Water Authority, or any successor thereto, the Contracting Officer
shall adjust those components of the Rates for Water Delivered under this Contract
representing the cost associated with the activity being performed by Operating Non-
Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority or its successor.

(d)  In the event the Operation and Maintenance of the Project facilities
operated and maintained by the Operating Non-Federal Entity San Luis & Delta-Mendota
Water Authority is re-assumed by the United States during the term of this Contract, the
Contracting Officer shall so notify the Contractor, in writing, and present to the
Contractor a revised Exhibit “B* which shali include the portion of the Rates to be paid
by the Contractor for Project Water under this Contract representing the Operation and
Maintenance costs of the portion of such Project facilities which have been re-assumed. The
Contractor shall, thereafter, in the absence of written notification from the Contracting Officer to
the conirary, pay the Rates, Charges, and Tiered Pricing Component specified in the revised

Exhibit “B” directly to the United States in compliance with Article 7 of this Contract.

56



1288

1289
1290
1291
1292
1293

1294

1295
1296
1297
1298
1299
1300
1301
1302
1303
1304

1305

1306

1307

1308

1309

1310

1311

1312

1313

1314

1315
1316
1317

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

CONTINGENT ON APPROPRIATION OR ALLOTMENT OF FUNDS

28.  The expenditure or advance of any money or the performance of any obligation of
the United States under this Contract shall be contingent upon appropriation or allotment
of funds. Absence of appropriation or allotment of funds shall not relieve the Contractor
from any obligations under this Contract. No liability shall accrue to the United States in case
funds are not appropriated or allotted.

BOOKS, RECORDS, AND REPORTS

29. (a) The Contractor shall establish and maintain accounts and other books and
records pertaining to administration of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including
the Contractor's financial transactions; water supply data; project operations, maintenance, and
replacement logs; project land and rights-of-way use agreements; the water users' land-use (crop
census), land-ownership, land-leasing, and water-use data; and other matters that the
Contracting Officer may require. Reports shall be furnished to the Contracting Officer
in such form and on such date or dates as the Contracting Officer may require. Subject to
applicable Federal laws and regulations, each party to this Contract shall have the right during
office hours to examine and make copies of the other party's books and records relating to
matters covered by this Contract.

(b)  Notwithstanding the provisions of subdivision (a) of this Article, no
books, records, or other information shall be requested from the Contractor by the
Contracting Officer unless such books, records, or information are reasonably related to the
administration or performance of this Contract. Any such request shall allow the Contractor a
reasonable period of time within which to provide the requested books, records, or
information.

(¢) At such time as the Contractor provides information to the Contracting
Officer pursuant to subdivision (a) of this Article, a copy of such information shall be provided
to the Operating Non-Federal Entity(ies).

ASSIGNMENT LIMITED — SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OBLIGATED
30. (a)  The provisions of this Contract shall apply to and bind the successors and

assigns of the parties hereto, but no assignment or transfer of this Contract or any right or interest
therein by either party shall be valid until approved in writing by the other party.

57



1318

1319

1320

1321

1322

1323

1324

1325

1326

1327

1328

1329

1330

1331

1332

1333

1334

1335

1336

1337

1338

1339

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

(b)  The assignment of any right or interest in this Contract by either party
shall not interfere with the rights or obligations of the other party to this Contract absent the
written concurrence of said other party.

(¢)  The Contracting Officer shall not unreasonably condition or withhold
approval of any proposed assignment.

SEVERABILITY

31.  Inthe event that a person or entity who is neither (i) a party to a Project contract,
nor (ii) a person or entity that receives Project Water from a party to a Project contract, nor (iii)
an association or other form of organization whose primary function is to represent parties to
Project contracts, brings an action in a court of competent jurisdiction challenging the
legality or enforceability of a provision included in this Contract and said person, entity,
association, or organization obtains a final court decision holding that such provision is
legally invalid or unenforceable and the Contractor has not intervened in that lawsuit in
support of the plaintiff(s), the parties to this Contract shall use their best efforts to (i)
within 30 days of the date of such final court decision identify by mutual agreement the
provisions in this Contract which must be revised and (i) within three months thereafter
promptly agree on the appropriate revision(s). The time periods specified above may be
extended by mutual agreement of the parties. Pending the completion of the actions
designated above, to the extent it can do so without violating any applicable provisions of
law, the United States shall continue to make the quantities of Project Water specified in this
Contract available to the Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this Contract which were not

found to be legally invalid or unenforceable in the final court decision.

58



1340

1341

1342

1343

1344

1345

1346

1347

1348

1349

1350

1351

1352
1353
1354

1355

1356
1357
1358
1359
1360
1361
1362
1363

1364

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

32.  Should any dispute arise concerning any provisions of this Contract, or the
parties’ rights and obligations thereunder, the parties shall meet and confer in an attempt
to resolve the dispute. Prior to the Contractor commencing any legal action, or the
Contracting Officer referring any matter to the Department of Justice, the party shall
provide to the other party 30 days' written notice of the intent to take such action;
Provided, That such notice shall not be required where a delay in commencing an action
would prejudice the interests of the party that intends to file suit. During the 30-day
notice period, the Contractor and the Contracting Officer shall meet and confer in an
attempt to resolve the dispute. Except as specifically provided, nothing herein is intended
to waive or abridge any right or remedy that the Contractor or the United States may have.

QFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT

33.  No Member of or Delegate to the Congress, Resident Commissioner, or official of
the Contractor shall benefit from this Contract other than as a water user or landowner in the
same manner as other water users or landowners.

CHANGES IN CONTRACTOR’S ORGANIZATION AND/OR SERVICE AREA

4, (@) While this Contract is in effect, no change may be made in the
Contractor's Service Area or organization, by inclusion or exclusion of lands or by any other
changes which may affect the respective rights, obligations, privileges, and duties of either the
United States or the Contractor under this Contract, including, but not limited to, dissolution,
consolidation, or merger, except upon the Contracting Officer's written consent.

(b)  Within 30 days of receipt of a request for such a change, the Contracting
Officer will notify the Contractor of any additional information required by the Contracting
Officer for processing said request, and both parties will meet to establish a mutually agreeable

schedule for timely completion of the process. Such process will analyze whether the proposed

59



1365

1366

1367

1368

1369

1370

1371

1372

1373

1374

1375

1376

1377

1378

1379

1380

1381

1382

1383

1384

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0043-LTR1-P

change, is likely to: (i) result in the use of Project Water contrary to the terms of this Contract;
(ii) impair the ability of the Contractor to pay for Project Water furnished under this Contract or
to pay for any Federally-constructed facilities for which the Contractor is responsible; and (iii)
have an impact on any Project Water rights applications, permits, or licenses. In addition,
the Contracting Officer shall comply with the NEPA and the ESA. The Contractor will
be responsible for all costs incurred by the Contracting Officer in this process, and such
costs will be paid in accordance with Article 24 of this Contract.

FEDERAL LAWS

35. By entering into this Contract, the Contractor does not waive its rights to contest
the validity or application in connection with the performance of the terms and

conditions of this Contract of any Federal law or regulation; Provided, That the

Contractor agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of this Contract unless and
until relief from application of such Federal law or regulation to the implementing

provision of the Contract is granted by a court of competent jurisdiction.

RECLAMATION REFORM ACT OF 1982

36, (a) Upon a Contractor’s compliance with and discharge of the Repayment
Obligation pursuant to this Contract, subsections (a) and (b) of Section 213 of the Reclamation
Reform Act of 1982 (96 Stat. 1269) shall apply to affected lands.

(b)  The obligation of a Contractor to pay the Additional Capital Obligation

shall not affect the Contractor’s status as having repaid all of the construction costs assignable to

60



1385

1386

1387

1388
1389
1390
1391
1392
1393
1394
1395
1396
1397
1398
1399
1400
1401
1402
1403
1404
1405
1406
1407

1408
1409

1410
1411
1412
1413
1414

1415

1416
1417
1418
1419
1420

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

the Contractor or the applicability of subsections (a) and (b) of section 213 of the Reclamation
Reform Act of 1982 (96 Stat. 1269) once the Repayment Obligation is paid.

CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

37.  The Contractor hereby certifies that it does not maintain or provide for its
employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments and that it does not permit its
employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities
are maintained. It certifies further that it will not maintain or provide for its employees any
segregated facilities at any of its establishments and that it will not permit its employees to
perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are
maintained. The Contractor agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal
Employment Opportunity clause in this Contract. As used in this certification, the term
“segregated facilities” means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms,
restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas,
parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing
facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact
segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, or national origin, because of habit, local custom,
disability, or otherwise. The Contractor further agrees that (except where it has obtained
identical certifications from proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) it will obtain
identical certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts
exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Employment
Opportunity clause; that it will retain such certifications in its files; and that it will forward the
following notice to such proposed subcontractors (except where the proposed subcontractors
have submitted identical certifications for specific time periods):

NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE SUBCONTRACTORS OF REQUIREMENT FOR
CERTIFICATIONS OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

A Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities must be submitted prior to the award of a subcontract
exceeding $10,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Employment
Opportunity clause. The certification may be submitted either for each subcontract or for all
subcontracts during a period (i.e., quarterly, semiannualily, or annually). Note: The penalty for
making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

NOTICES

38.  Any notice, demand, or request authorized or required by this Contract shall be
deemed to have been given, on behalf of the Contractor, when mailed, postage prepaid, or
delivered to the Area Manager, South-Central California Area Office, 1243 N Street, Fresno,
California 93721, Bureau of Reclamation, and on behalf of the United States, when mailed,
postage prepaid, or delivered to the Board of Directors of The West Side Irrigation District,

61



1421
1422

1423

1424
1425
1426
1427

1428
1429
1430
1431

1432

1433
1434
1435
1436
1437

1438

1439
1440
1441
1442
1443

1444

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

P. O. Box 177, Tracy California 95378. The designation of the addressee or the address may be
changed by notice given in the same manner as provided in this Article for other notices.

MEDIUM FOR TRANSMITTING PAYMENT

39. (a)  All payments from the Contractor to the United States under this Contract
shall be by the medium requested by the United States on or before the date payment is due. The
required method of payment may include checks, wire transfers, or other types of payment
specified by the United States.

(b)  Upon execution of this Contract, the Contractor shall furnish the
Contracting Officer with the Contractor’s taxpayer’s identification number (TIN). The purpose
for requiring the Contractor’s TIN is for collecting and reporting any delinquent amounts arising
out of the Contractor’s relationship with the United States.

CONTRACT DRAFTING CONSIDERATIONS

40.  This amended Contract has been negotiated and reviewed by the parties hereto,
each of whom is sophisticated in the matters to which this amended Contract pertains. The
double-spaced Articles of this amended Contract have been drafted, negotiated, and reviewed by
the parties, and no one party shall be considered to have drafted the stated Articles. Single-
spaced Articles are standard Articles pursuant to Bureau of Reclamation policy.

CONFIRMATION OF CONTRACT

41.  Promptly after the execution of this amended Contract, the Contractor will
provide to the Contracting Officer a certified copy of a final decree of a court of competent
Jurisdiction in the State of California, confirming the proceedings on the part of the Contractor
for the authorization of the execution of this amended Contract. This amended Contract shall not
be binding on the United States until the Contractor secures a final decree.

62



1445

1446

1447

1448
1449
1450
1451

1452
1453

1434
1455

1456

1457
1458

Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the
day and year first above written.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

By:

Regional Director
[nterior Region 10: California-Great Basin
Bureau of Reclamation

THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
(SEAL)

By:

President of the Board of Directors

Attest:

By:

Secretary of the Board of Directors

63



Irrigation and M&I
Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-L.TR1-P

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION
Central Valley Project, California

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES
AND
THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PROVIDING FOR PROJECT WATER SERVICE
FROM DELTA DIVISION AND FACILITIES REPAYMENT

Exhibits

Exhibit A — Map of Contractor’s Service Area

This Exhibit is unchanged from current Contract..

Exhibit B — Rates and Charges

This Exhibit template is unchanged from current Contract and is updated annually. Rate Schedules may be found
at: https://www.usbr.cov/mp/cvpwaterrates/ratebooks/index.htm|

Exhibit C — Repayment Obligation

This Exhibit template was developed during the WIIN Act Negotiations. Relevant data will be incorporated upon
contract execution.



- District Boundary

o 543 -

The West Side Irrigation District

- —

..‘:."'T'\

— BUREAU OF —

Contractor's Service Area

- Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P @ RECLAMATION
Exhibit A i

Date: 41172020 Miles

F-Iaeel;inme: N:Districts\Contractsithe_west_sidethe_west_side_20200401.mxd 0 1 2 A 214-202-885




EXHIBIT B

Irrigation and M&I
Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1

THE WEST SIDE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

2020 Rates and Charges
(Per Acre-Foot)

COST-OF-SERVICE (COS) RATE
Construction Costs
DMC Aqueduct Intertie
0&M Components
Water Marketing
Storage
Deficit Cost
TOTAL COS RATE (Tier I Rate)

IRRIGATION FULL-COST RATE
Section 202(3) Rate is applicable to a Qualified Recipient or to a Limited
Recipient receiving irrigation water on or before October 1. 1981.

Section 205(a)(3) Rate is applicable to a Limited Recipient that did not
receive irrigation water on or before October 1. 1981.

TIERED PRICING COMPONENTS in Addition to Total COS Rate Above)
IRRIGATION

Tier 2 Rate : >80% <=90% of Contract Total [Section 202(3) Irrigation Full
Cost Rate - Irrigation COS Rate]/2 (dmount to be added to Tier | Rate)

Tier 3 Rate : >90% of Contract Total [Section 202(3) Irrigation Full Cost Rate
- Irrigation COS Rale] (Amount to be added to Tier | Rate)
CHARGES AND ASSESSMENTS (Pavments in addition to Rates)

P.L. 102-575 Surcharge (Restoration Fund Payment)
[Section 3407(d)(2)(A)]

P.L. 106-377 Assessment (Trinity Public Utilities District)
[Appendix B, Section 203]

EXPLANATORY NOTES

Irrigation Water

M&I Water!

$8.97
$18.01
$0.00
£78.26

$108.09

$133.62

$14.92

£29.83

510.91

50.12

## The Contractor has not projected any delivery of M&I Water for the 2020 contract year. A temporary Méel Rate will be applied

upon any M&I water delivery.

The CVP M&I Water Shortage Policy per EIS/EIR dated August 2015 and Record of Decision dated November 2015 defines the M&1
Historic Use as the average quantity of CVP water put to beneficial use during the last three years of water deliveries, unconstrained (100%
allocation) by the availability of CVP water for South of the Delta. Contractor’s last three years in acre feet (AF) are revised as follows: 2006
=0 AF; 2011 =0 AF; 2017 = 0 AF; which equals a M&I Historic use average quantity of 0 AF,

Additional detail of rate components is available on the Internet at:

hitp:/lwaww.usbr.gov/mpl/cvpwaterrates/ratebooks/index.html

IL 3/20/20



Exhibit C%

Repayment Obligation - Current Calculation under the WIIN Act, Section 4011 (a) (2)

= _a
Unpaid Construction Cost from the 2020 Water Rate Books*

Contractor: The West Side Irrigation District
Facility: Delta-Mendota Canal
Contract: 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P
Irrigation Construction Cost (2020 Irrigation Ratebook, Schedule A-2Ba
Unpaid Cost Discount
Construction Cost e 335,513
2019 Repayment (Estimate) **
Adjusted Construction Cost 5 335,513 & 325,650
Intertie Construction Cast (N/A): 5 24,850 S 22,256
Total ] 360,363 5 347,906
If Paid in Installments (Used 20 yr CMT)
Due- LS
Payment 1 9/1/2020 5 88,067
Payment 2 9/1/2021 S 88,067
Payment 3 9/1/2022 5 88,067
Payment 4 ~~ 9/1/2023 5 88,067
Total Installment Payments s 352,266
20 yr CMT Rates - 04/28/2020 (to be adjusted to effective date of conlract]@ 1.000%
Discount Rate (1/2 of the Treasury Rate per the WIIN Act, Section 4011(a)(2)(A)) 0.500%

M&I Construction Cost (2020 M&I Ratebook, Sch A-2Ba)
Unpaid Cost
Construction Cost: e =
2019 Repayment (Estimate) **
Adjusted Construction Cost***: S =
Calculation Support: |rrigation Lump Sum or First Payment**** 9/1/2020
Days Until the End of the Fiscal Year 29
| Unpaid Allocated Construction Cost | | Unpaid Intertie Construction Cost | | Total |
Beginning Straight Line Present Beginning Straight Line Present Present
Fiscal Yr Balance Repayment Value Balance Repayment Value Values
2020 5 335,513 § 30501 S 30,337 5 24,850 $ 565 & 562 s 30,899
2021 § 305,012 § gs01 S 30,198 5 24,285 $ 565 S 559 $ 30,758
2022 § 274511 5 30,501 S 30,048 ] 23,720 § 565 S 556 L] 30,605
2023 § 244,009 § 30,501 S 29,899 S 23,156 § 565 S 554 5 30,452
2024 § 213508 § 30,501 S 29,750 5 22,501 § 565 S 551 5] 30,301
2025 § 183,007 S 30,501 S 29,602 S 22,026 $ 565 5 548 S 30,150
2026 5 152,506 S 30,501 $ 29,455 S 21,461 $ 565 S 545 s 30,000
2027 § 122,005 S 30,501 S 29,308 s 20,897 S 565 5 543 ] 29,851
2028 & 91,504 § 30,501 § 29,162 5 20332 § 565 5 540 ] 29,702
2029 § 61,002 5 30501 S 29,017 5 19,767 $ 565 S 537 S 29,555
2030 § 30,501 § 30,501 & 28,873 s 19,202 S 565 S 535 s 29,407
2031-63 5 18,638 § 18,638 S 16,227 & 16,227
Total, Lump Sum Payment 5 325,650 5 22,256 H] 347,906
Amount of Reduction, Lump Sum S 9,863 5 2,594 S 12,457

* Costs are assumed to be paid and all charges are assumed to be accurate. If at a later date charges are determined to need
update, they are still required. Also, unpaid charges are still a requirement under contract.

** 2019 Repayment is based on a conservative estimate. If not sufficient, the remainder will be billed.

*** Excludes Interest to payment date as Interest will be computed as an annual expense as usual,

****Contractor has 60 days from the effective date of the contract or instaliment dates to make payment.

~ M&I Credit from Schedule A-2Ba has been applied to Irrigation Unpaid Amount.

®Tobe updated. The WIIN Act requires us to have a Constant Maturity Treasury rate based on the effective date of the contract.

~~Final Payment made in installments must be repaid by this date,



AGENDATTEM 11

BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: 24 SEPTEMBER, 2020

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: RICK GILMORE, GENERAL MANAGER-

SUBJECT: CONSIDER PAYING OFF THE DIDTRICT'S FINANCIAL
OBLIGATION REGARDING THE DELTA HABITAT
CONSERVATION AND CONVEYANCE PLAN,

BACKGROUND:

In March of 2009, the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA) entered into a
partnership with the California Department of Water Resources (DWR), the United States Bureau
of Reclamation (USBR), and the State Water Contractors (SWC), for the Initial Planning,
Preliminary Design, and Environmental Documentation of the Delta Habitat Conservation and
Conveyance Plan (DHCCP) through the execution of a Memorandum of Agreement between the

agencies.

The work had been estimated at approximately $140 million of which 50% was to be recovered
from the federal portion consisting of both USBR and SLDMWA. Bond financing was secured to
cover the federal share of the costs. In 2013, a refunding occurred. SLDMWA is currently
exploring a 2020 refunding, the District’s portion of the Debt Service is approximately $695,332.In

lien of refunding, the District can save approximately $211,000 as outlined below:

Debt Service before 2020 refunding: $695,332.00
Debt Service after 2020 refunding:  $621,180.00
Debt Service Prepayment: $483,579.00

Revenue for Debt Service Prepayment would be from the DHCCP Reserve Account.

RECOMMENDATION;
The General Manager respectfully requests the Board of Directors authorize staff to
proceed with Debt Service Prepayment of the DHCCP.



AGUENDATTEM 12

BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: 24 SEPTEMBER, 2020

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: RICK GILMORE, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT:  VEHICLE REPLACEMENT

BACKGROUND:;
The District has three pick-up trucks meeting the criteria for replacement. Two units for
the Tracy/West Side service area and one unit operating in Byron.

While reviewing quotes, the District is investigating the purpose of purchasing Ford
Rangers in lieu of the standard pick-up truck. Ford's fleet price concession continues to
be favorable. Unit price is $30,726.54 for the F-150 and $26,881.03 for the Ford Ranger.

RECOMMENDATION:
The General Manager respectfully requests the Board of Directors authorize the purchase
of three replacement vehicle for an amount not to exceed $92,300.00



